
 

 
1 
 

 
  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – AGENDA  
February 20, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A. Scot Turner - Instant Runoff Voting/Ranked-Choice Voting 
     Bill (HB 200) Presentation 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024 

 
B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 5, 2024 

 
C. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for the Love & Soul Family 

Festival on June 1, 2024 
 

D. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for the 5K Friendship Fun Run on 
July 27, 2024  
 

E. Department Reports 
1. Public Works 
2. Finance 
3. Fire-Rescue Services 
4. Police  
5. Parks & Recreation 
6. Planning & Development 
 

VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Ordinance O2024-02.A – Council Meeting Start Time (Second Reading) 

 
B. Ordinance O2024-02.B – Zoning Text Amendment to Appendix A, Articles II 

and III to Provide Provisions Related to Multi-Use Development (Public 
Hearing, Action) 
 

C. Resolution R2024-02.A – Amendment to the 2024 Schedule of Fees 
 



  

2 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Zoning Map Amendment for Property on Clear Lake Way from C-2 to R-3(C) 

(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

B. Zoning Map Amendment for the Warnell Tract at Demott Drive from PUD to I-2 
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

C. Conditional Use Request for a Place of Worship at 1324 South Rogers St 
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

D. Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse Expansion at 125 Coleman 
Boulevard (Public Hearing, Action) 
 

E. Conditional Use Request for an Auto Body Repair at 800 Clear Lake Way 
(Public Hearing, Action) 
 

F. Site Plan for 212 East Highway 80 
 

G. Site Plan for Wawa at 1480 Pooler Parkway 
 

H. Site Plan for 780 Pooler Parkway 
 

I. Site Plan for TTRES at 2300 Pooler Parkway 
 

J. Westside Commerce Center/Native Development Group Request for 
Consideration 
 

K. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Asian River/Miyah Buffet 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 

 
1 
 

 
  

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – MINUTES 
February 5, 2024, at 4:00 p.m. | 100 US Highway 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Karen Williams, Mayor  
    Aaron Higgins, Mayor Pro Tem 
    Wesley Bashlor, Councilmember 
    Michael Carpenter, Councilmember 
    Tom Hutcherson, Councilmember  
    Shannon Valim, Councilmember    
    John Wilcher, Councilmember 
    Caroline Hankins, Assistant City Manager 
    Craig Call, City Attorney     
    Chris Lightle, Finance Officer    
    Hadassa Villafana, Assistant Finance Officer    
 
Absent:  Matthew Saxon, Interim City Manager 
 

II. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 
Pastor Jeff Hubbard gave the invocation. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Pastor Jeff Hubbard led the pledge. 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Mayor Karen Williams announced that a Public Comment section has been added 
to the agenda and anyone who wishes to speak may sign up using the Request to 
Speak form. Mayor Karen Williams also explained the rules for speaking before 
Council. 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of January 16, 2024 

 
B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of January 16, 2024 

 
C. City Council Orientation & Retreat Minutes of January 11, 2024 

 



  

2 

D. City Council Orientation & Retreat Executive Session Minutes of 
January 11, 2024 
 

E. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for a Boat Show on 
February 22-25, 2024 
 

F. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for a Car Show on April 
20, 2024 
 

G. Temporary/Special Event Permit Application (Dispensing Alcohol) for 
a St. Patrick’s Day Festival on March 16, 2024 

 
Councilmember Tom Hutcherson moved to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
 

VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
 
A. Proclamation for Georgia State Arbor Day 

 
Mayor Karen Williams read aloud the proclamation for Georgia State Arbor 
Day.  
 

B. Proclamation Honoring Spc. Kennedy Ladon Sanders, Spc. Breonna 
Alexsondria Moffett, and Sgt. William Jerome Rivers of Georgia 
 
Mayor Karen Williams read aloud the proclamation honoring Spc. Kennedy 
Ladon Sanders, Spc. Breonna Alexsondria Moffett, and Sgt. William Jerome 
Rivers and requested a moment of silence.  
 

C. Ordinance O2024-02.A – Council Meeting Start Time (First Reading) 
 
Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the proposed ordinance 
for consideration that would change the regular Council Meeting start time to 
6:00 p.m. effective April 1, 2024.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (4-2-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson  
NAYS: Valim, Wilcher 
 
 

VIII. OUTSTANDING BUSINESS 
 
A. City Council Meeting Minutes of December 18, 2023 
 

Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the minutes for 
consideration. City Attorney Craig Call stated that the pending legal review 
was completed; approval of minutes is for the record only and does not imply 
action. A member of the public inquired whether the minutes were being 



  

3 

approved with any changes. Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to approve 
the City Council Meeting Minutes of December 18, 2023 without any changes. 

 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-1) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
ABSTAINED: Hutcherson 

 
B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of December 18, 2023 
 

Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the minutes with a staff 
recommendation for approval. City Attorney Craig Call stated that the pending 
legal review was completed; approval of minutes is for the record only and 
does not imply action. Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to approve the 
Executive Session Minutes of December 18, 2023. 

 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (5-0-1) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
ABSTAINED: Hutcherson 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Site Plan for Tanger Outparcel #4 at 220 Tanger Outlets Blvd 

 
Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the site plan for 
consideration. Travis Burke from Coleman Company, representing Mr. Yogesh 
Patel, was present to answer questions. Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved 
to approve the Site Plan for Tanger Outparcel #4 at 220 Tanger Outlets Blvd 
contingent upon receipt of the Georgia Power Lighting Agreement. 

 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (4-2-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Valim 
AYES: Bashlor, Higgins, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: Carpenter, Hutcherson 

 
B. Acceptance of a Lift Station Performance Bond and Final Plat for 360 

Communities, Phase 1B 
 
Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the performance bond and 
final plat for consideration. Michael Lerque from Thomas & Hutton was present 
on behalf of 360 Communities to answer questions. Councilmember Tom 
Hutcherson moved to approve Acceptance of the Lift Station Performance Bond 
in the Amount of $71,250.00 and the Final Plat for 360 Communities, Phase 
1B, subject to City Attorney review.  
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Hutcherson 
SECONDER: Wilcher 



  

4 

AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

C. Preliminary Subdivision Plan for Canal Bank Subdivision 
 

Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the plan for consideration. 
Mehul Sheth, Owner, was present to answer any questions. Mayor Pro Tem 
Aaron Higgins moved to approve the Preliminary Subdivision Plan for Canal 
Bank Subdivision.  
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

D. Pooler Tennis Complex Change Order #1 for Contract C (#4 for the 
Total) 
 

Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the change order for 
consideration. Lamar Mercer from Thomas & Hutton and Hugh Elton, Parks & 
Recreation Director, were present to answer questions. Mayor Pro Tem Aaron 
Higgins moved to approve the Pooler Tennis Complex Change Order #1 for 
Contract C (#4 for the Total) in the Amount of $25,793.00. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (4-3-0)  
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Bashlor 
AYES: Bashlor, Higgins, Hutcherson, Williams 
NAYS: Carpenter, Valim, Wilcher 
 

E. Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency 
(GEMA/HS) Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement Renewal 
 
Assistant City Manager Caroline Hankins presented the agreement renewal for 
consideration. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the Georgia 
Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS) 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement Renewal subject to City 
Attorney review. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS: 
 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Karen Williams opened the floor to comment. There were none. 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
With no further public business to conduct, Councilmember Shannon Valim 
moved to enter Executive Session.  
 



  

5 

Motion to Enter; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Valim 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS:   
 
Mayor Karen Williams called the meeting back to order at 5:37 p.m. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Aaron Higgins moved to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (7-0-0) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Bashlor, Carpenter, Higgins, Hutcherson, Valim, Wilcher 
NAYS:   
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:37 p.m. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and are approved on this  
 
________ day of ________________ , ________ . 
 
 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Karen L. Williams, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Hadassa Villafana, Assistant Finance Officer 

 
 

 
 





























 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

 
 

Council Report for the month of January  

 

 

Date: 02/09/2023 

 

To: Council and Mayor  

 

From: John Winn  

 

Subject:   Council Report  

 

Cc:  Kiley Fusco  

 

Council and Mayor, 

It gives me great pleasure to present to you, the work that our Wastewater Treatment 

Plant, Sewer, and Water Departments have accomplished since the last council meeting: 

 

Water: 

 

Repaired water main on 100 block of Durden Dr.  

93 C.O inspections conducted. 

Replaced 15 residential and/or commercial laterals. 

Completed multiple misc. service orders throughout the city. 

          Repaired and/or replaced 42 water meters/mxu’s. 

Tapped 8” water main on S. Rogers Street. 

Reviewed 7 Excavation/Encroachment Permits.  

Conducted 3 flow inspections on hydrants.  

          Witnessed the testing and certification of 226 backflow preventers. 

           

 

Sewer & WWTP: 

EOM report attached. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

John Winn 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


  

City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


 

 
City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 

www.pooler-ga.gov 

 

 
 

Council Report for the month of January  
 

 

Date: 02/12/2024 

 

To: Council and Mayor  

 

From: John Winn  

 

Subject:   Council Report  

 

Cc:  Kiley Fusco   

 

 

Street: 

 

• Continued routine maintenance throughout the city repairing potholes, sidewalks, 

and shoulder work.  

• LEMIG, South Rogers Street.  

 

Signs: 

• Replaced 19 signs throughout the city. 

• Repaired 43 signs throughout the city. 

 

Storm Water:  

 

• Completed routine residential workorders. 

• Began work on replacing pipe culvert at 612, 614 and 616 Holly Ave.  

• Replaced broken catch basin at Benton Dr. & Newton St. 

• Completed 13,148 feet of routine roadside ditch and outfall maintenance.  

• Cleaned out and dug roadside ditches in various locations. 

• Replaced 30’ of an 18” culvert at Polks Produce. 

• Started building headwalls on Cemetery Road to help with bank erosion. 

• Removed bamboo and brush behind homes on the canal easement on Benton Canal.  

• Re-bottomed 697.4 feet of ditches on Manden Road. 

 

 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


  

City of Pooler • 100 SW Hwy 80 • Pooler, Georgia 31322 • (912) 748-7261 
www.pooler-ga.gov 

Canal Maintenance:  

 

• Removed fallen trees and mowed access roads/canals throughout the city.  

• Routine maintenance of canals throughout the city. 

• Remove beaver dams from Sharon Ct. Canal and SH Mogan box culverts on Pooler 

Parkway.  

 

Public Works Admin: 

 

• Reviewed 4 sets of site plans.  

• Approved 1 pre-construction meeting. 

• Released 5 warranty bonds. 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.pooler-ga.gov/


 

 JANUARY 
2024 

Monthly Report 

PO BOX 1648 
Richmond Hill, GA 31324 
912.445.0050 
www.eomworx.com 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

16 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
         
 
 
 
Content                 Section 
 
Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………………………… 1.0 
 
Wastewater Treatment ……………………………………………………………….………... 2.0  
 
Collections & Distribution….…………………….…………………………………….……….. 3.0 
 
Engineering …..…………….……………………………………………………………….………….....  4.0 
 
Administration………………………..……………………………………………………………………. 5.0 
 
Appendix …………………………………………………………………………………………………………6.0 
 
 
   



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

SECTION 1.0  
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City 
of Pooler for review.  Departmental reports and requested 
supplemental data can be found enclosed.  
 
MONTH HIGHLIGHT 
 

▪ SEWER – Replaced (3) faulty grinder pumps 
▪ SEWER – Cleared (1) sewer blockage  
▪ SEWER – Repaired (1) grinder discharge pipe 

 
WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS 
 

▪ PO-LS-13.01 FOREST LAKES: Installed rebuilt pump 
▪ PO-LS-37.02 NORTH SKINNER STREET: Removed pump blockage 
▪ PO-LS-18.02 BLUE MOON CROSSING: Removed pump blockage 
▪ PO-LS-26.02 RAINDANCE: Removed pump blockage 

 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 

▪ Responded to (1) After hours calls 
▪ PO-WW-PM-19 PERMEATE PUMP OUTLET VALVE_2 : Replaced 

Actuator and Electrical Connections 
▪ PO-WW-MB-42 SUBMERGED MEMBRANE UNIT_MBR 2: 

Replaced Membranes 
▪ PO-WW-CH-07 ALUMINUM SULFATE TANK: Repaired Discharge 

Line 
▪ PO-WW-PM-24: SERVICE AIR COMPRESSOR 2: Replaced Air 

Compressor 
▪ PO-WW-PS-01: PLANT DRAIN PUMP STATION: Installed Backup 

Floats 
▪ PO-WW-PM-11: PERMEATE PUMP_2: Replaced Pump 
▪ PO-WW-EQ-12: EQ Basin Pump_1: Replaced Drive and Motor 
 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

  
 
 
  

WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT 

Section 2.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

 

SECTION 2.0 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT 
 
Table 1 – WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PERMIT COMPARISON 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

  

COLLECTIONS & 
DISTRIBUTION 

Section 3.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

SECTION 3.0 
COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION 
 
 
Table 1 – SEWER MAINTENANCE WORK ORDER REPORT 
 
 

  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

  

ENGINEERING 

Section 4.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

 

SECTION 4.0 
ENGINEERING 
Site Plan Review: 
 

I. Approved Projects 
▪ 125 Coleman Blvd Building Expansion 
▪ 780 Pooler Pkwy 
▪ Wawa 
▪ Canal Bank Rd Subdivision 
▪ Tanger Outlets Outparcel #4 

 
II. Projects Under Review 

▪ Hwy 80 Gym (Submittal #1) 
 

III. Projects Waiting On Responses 
▪ Mana Nutrition – 1st review completed 1/26/2024 
▪ Thompson Thrift Residential – 3rd review completed 1/26/2024 
▪ Providence at Pooler – 1st review completed 1/25/2024 
▪ DST Trailer Yard – 2nd review completed 1/23/2024 
▪ Harmony Subdivision Phase 8A (Revised) – 5th review completed 1/17/2024 
▪ Harmony Subdivision Phase 8B (Revised) – 4th review completed 1/11/2024 
▪ Lot A Blakely Commons – 1st review completed 12/28/2023 
▪ Circle K Expansion – 1st review completed 12/26/2023 
▪ Barret Pond Reshaping – 1st review completed 12/14/2023 
▪ Oglethorpe Speedway Industrial Park – 1st review completed 11/13/2023 
▪ National Museum of the Mighty 8th Airforce – 1st review completed 

10/25/2023 
▪ Lift Station 193 Force Main Upgrade – 1st review completed 9/25/2023 
▪ Memorial Blvd Commercial Development – 1st review completed 9/12/2023 
▪ Pipemakers Independent Senior Living Center – 2nd review completed 

9/11/2023 
▪ Little Neck Trailer Yard – 3rd review completed 9/7/2023 
▪ Old Louisville Storage Yard – 1st review completed 7/13/2023 

 
 
Bond Review: 
 

I. Approved Bond Requests 
▪ Clear Lake Phase 1B (Performance Bond) 

 
II. Bond Requests Under Review 

▪ N/A 
 
 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

 
Additional Engineering Services: 

 
▪ City Standard Specifications: A number of updated sections/details for 

Standard Specifications document were submitted to City for review 
in December 2023. The updated City Standard Specifications 
document is expected to be complete in Winter. 
 

▪ Lift Station #21 & 22: EOM submitted proposal for construction of Lift 
Stations to City in August 2023. It is understood that the City Attorney 
currently working on a contract for proposed work.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

  

ADMINISTRATION 

Section 5.0 



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

SECTION 5.0 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
BUDGET 
 

 
  



 

Pooler Monthly Report – JANUARY 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 

Section 6.0 



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 12 01 23 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 24 01 10

1

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

OXYGEN, DISSOLVED
(DO)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

7.9 **** ****
 mg/L

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00300  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** ****

 mg/L
  01/01 GR GRAB

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

49.6 54.2
 lb/d

**** 2.0 2.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

82.6
MO AVG

102.6
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 3.0
MO AVG

4.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

BOD, 5-DAY
(20 DEG. C)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

7365 7946
 lb/d

**** 284 290
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00310  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PH
 

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

6.7 **** 7.3
 SU

0 01/01 GR GRAB

00400  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

6.0
MINIMUM

**** 8.5
MAXIMUM  SU

  01/01 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

24.8 27.1
 lb/d

**** 1.0 1.0
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

138.0
MO AVG

172.0
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 5.0
MO AVG

7.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

SOLIDS, TOTAL
SUSPENDED

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

5746 6191
 lb/d

**** 222 230
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00530  1  0  0
RAW SEWAGE INFLUENT

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

Req Mon
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, ORGANIC
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.800 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00605  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 mg/L
  01/30

CP
COMPOS



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 12 01 23 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 24 01 10

2

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

NITROGEN, AMMONIA
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

7.1 8.5
 lb/d

**** 0.3 0.3
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00610  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

11.0
MO AVG

13.8
WKLY AVG  lb/d

**** 0.4
MO AVG

0.6
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

NITROGEN, KJELDAHL
TOTAL (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 2.100 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00625  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 mg/L
  01/30

CP
COMPOS

NITRITE PLUS NITRATE
TOTAL 1 DET. (AS N)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 13.0 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

00630  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 mg/L
  01/30

CP
COMPOS

PHOSPHORUS, TOTAL
(AS P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

1.2 2.5
****

**** 0.1 0.2
 mg/L

0 03/DW
CP

COMPOS

00665  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

27.5
MO AVG

34.4
WKLY AVG ****

**** 1.0
MO AVG

1.5
WKLY AVG  mg/L

  03/DW
CP

COMPOS

PHOSPHATE, ORTHO (AS
P)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 0.108 ****
 mg/L

0 01/30
CP

COMPOS

04175  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 mg/L
  01/30

CP
COMPOS

FLOW, IN CONDUIT OR
THRU TREATMENT PLANT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

3.0 3.18
 MGD

**** **** ****
 ****

0 99/99 CN CONTIN

50050  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

3.3
MO AVG

4.2
WKLY AVG  MGD

**** **** ****

****
  99/99 CN CONTIN

COLIFORM, FECAL
GENERAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 1.6 6.1
 #/100mL

0 02/DA GR GRAB

74055  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** 23
MO GEO

23
WKLY GEO  #/100mL

  02/DA GR GRAB



PERMITTEE NAME/ADDRESS (Include Facility Name/Location if Different)

NAME:

ADDRESS:

FACILITY:

LOCATION:

 

Pooler City of

100 Southwest Hwy 80

Pooler, GA 31322

Pooler, City of (Bloomingdale Regional WPCP)

Winskie Road

Pooler GA 31322

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES)

DISCHARGE MONITORING REPORT (DMR)

FROM TO

PERMIT NUMBER DISCHARGE NUMBER

MONITORING PERIOD

YEAR YEARMO MODAY DAY

GA0047066 002-B3

23 12 01 23 12 31

DMR MAILING ZIP CODE:

Form Approved

OMB No. 2040-0004

Page

MAJOR

WPCP Discharge

External Outfall

No Discharge

EPA Form 3320-1 (Rev.01/06) Previous editions may be used.

COMMENTS AND EXPLANATION OF ANY VIOLATIONS (Reference all attachments here)

NAME/TITLE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TYPED OR PRINTED
SIGNATURE OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER OR

AUTHORIZED AGENT AREA Code NUMBER YEAR MO DAY

TELEPHONE DATEI certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or
supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

Marcus Hobgood

Wastewater Manager WW1-015056
912 445-1894 24 01 10

3

 

    QUANTITY OR LOADING QUALITY OR CONCENTRATION
NO.
EX

FREQUENCY
OF ANALYSIS

SAMPLE
TYPEPARAMETER

  VALUE VALUE UNITS VALUE VALUE VALUE UNITS      

CYANIDE, TOTAL
(AS CN)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** 2.1000 ****
 ug/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

00720  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** ****
MO AVG

****

 ug/L
  01/30 GR GRAB

MERCURY, TOTAL
(AS HG)

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

**** **** ****
 ng/L

0 01/30 GR GRAB

71900  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

**** ****
MO AVG

****

 ng/L
  01/30 GR GRAB

SOLIDS, SUSPENDED
PERCENT REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
 dry ton

99.5 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81011  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 dry ton

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****

 %
  01/30 CA CALCTD

BOD, 5-DAY PERCENT
REMOVAL

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

**** ****
****

99.3 **** ****
 %

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

81010  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

**** ****

****

>85
MINIMUM

**** ****

 %
  01/30 CA CALCTD

SOLIDS, SLUDGE, TOT,
DRY WEIGHT

SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

58 ****
 dry ton

**** **** ****
****

0 01/30 CA CALCTD

78477  1  0  0
EFFLUENT GROSS VALUE

PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

Req Mon
MO AVG

****

 dry ton

**** **** ****

****
  01/30 CA CALCTD

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   

 

     

 
     

  SAMPLE
MEASUREMENT

   
 

     
 

     

  PERMIT
REQUIREMENT

   

 

     

 
     



December 2023 Permit Data

Daily Data

Daily

12/1/2023 - 12/31/2023

Pooler

Pooler RainFall

Precip In/Day

Inches/Day

Pooler

Influent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

EQ-Flow

MGD

Pooler

Effluent

Flow Mgd

MGD

Pooler

Influent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Influent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Bod 5

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Solids TSS

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Nh3 N 

Ammonia

MG/L

12/1/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.462 2.804 293.00 234.00 2.00 1.00 0.21

12/2/2023 - Saturday 0.02 2.896 2.884

12/3/2023 - Sunday 0.10 2.877 2.784

12/4/2023 - Monday 0.01 3.075 2.649 3.076

12/5/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 2.735 2.526 2.936 259.00 220.00 2.00 1.00 0.23

12/6/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 2.674 2.447 2.796 265.00 228.00 2.00 1.00 0.23

12/7/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.175 2.410 2.763 298.00 225.00 2.00 1.00 0.23

12/8/2023 - Friday 0.00 2.786 2.333 2.725

12/9/2023 - Saturday 0.00 2.607 2.297 2.697

12/10/2023 - Sunday 0.00 2.899 2.406 2.827

12/11/2023 - Monday 0.50 2.845 2.412 2.759

12/12/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 2.641 2.367 2.690

12/13/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.112 2.498 2.898 293.00 270.00 2.00 1.00 0.36

12/14/2023 - Thursday 0.00 2.566 2.391 2.750 274.00 216.00 2.00 1.00 0.30

12/15/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.211 2.439 2.818 304.00 205.00 2.00 1.00 0.31

12/16/2023 - Saturday 0.00 3.440 2.357 2.671

12/17/2023 - Sunday 3.34 3.348 2.676 3.239

12/18/2023 - Monday 0.92 3.053 2.795 3.246

12/19/2023 - Tuesday 0.00 3.634 2.689 3.109

12/20/2023 - Wednesday 0.00 3.566 2.764 3.179 258.00 216.00 2.00 1.00 0.34

12/21/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.473 2.663 3.055 280.00 204.00 2.00 1.00 0.35

12/22/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.167 2.472 2.876 305.00 205.00 2.00 1.00 0.31

12/23/2023 - Saturday 0.00 2.959 2.671 3.054

12/24/2023 - Sunday 0.00 2.955 2.619 3.072

12/25/2023 - Monday 0.03 2.805 2.490 2.914

12/26/2023 - Tuesday 0.91 3.391 2.838 3.322

12/27/2023 - Wednesday 0.03 3.116 2.875 3.329 310.00 248.00 2.00 1.00 0.41

12/28/2023 - Thursday 0.00 3.100 2.788 3.214 253.00 205.00 2.00 1.00 0.21

12/29/2023 - Friday 0.00 3.039 2.777 3.202 297.00 208.00 2.00 1.00 0.20

12/30/2023 - Saturday 0.00 3.016 2.762 3.192

12/31/2023 - Sunday 0.00 3.080 2.755 3.214

Sum 5.86 94.700 72.166 92.095 3689.00 2884.00 26.00 13.00 3.71

Avg 0.19 3.050 2.577 2.971 284.00 221.80 2.00 1.00 0.29

Max 3.34 3.630 2.875 3.329 310.00 270.00 2.00 1.00 0.41

Min 0.00 2.570 2.297 2.671 253.00 204.00 2.00 1.00 0.20

GMean



December 2023 Permit Data

Pooler

Effluent

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Fecal Coliform

#/100ML

Pooler

Effluent

Nitrate + Nitrite

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

TKN

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Org Nitrogen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Ortho 

Phosphorus

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Cyanide

UG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Mercury

1631E

NG/L

Pooler

Effluent

Diss Oxygen

MG/L

Pooler

Effluent

pH

SU

Pooler

Solids 

Removed

Dry TON

0.25 7.90 7.10

7.97 7.10

8.07 7.18

1.00 7.96 7.17 3.71

0.14 7.92 6.96 3.66

0.14 1.00 7.97 7.11 3.75

0.17 8.31 7.12 3.84

8.11 7.13

8.14 7.22

7.92 7.25

7.89 7.21 3.52

1.00 8.32 7.05 3.66

0.14 8.45 6.81 3.69

0.12 1.00 13.00 2.10 1.80 0.11 8.50 7.01 3.67

0.11 8.19 6.97

7.92 7.11

8.21 7.16

8.25 7.04 3.75

5.00 8.35 6.76 3.36

0.12 8.60 6.99 3.33

0.05 7.50 8.38 7.03 3.29

0.07 8.48 7.07 1.78

8.44 7.14

8.21 7.12

8.16 7.15

1.00 8.31 6.69 3.68

0.04 8.25 6.82 3.71

0.05 1.00 8.35 6.85 3.70

0.06 8.30 6.85 1.80

8.52 7.08

8.32 7.05

1.46 18.50 13.00 2.10 1.80 0.11 254.67 218.30 58.00

0.11 1.60 13.00 2.10 1.80 0.11 8.22 7.04 3.00

0.25 7.50 13.00 2.10 1.80 0.11 8.60 7.25 4.00

0.04 1.00 13.00 2.10 1.80 0.11 7.89 6.69 2.00

1.60



 

 

INTERIM 

COMPARATIVE 

OPERATING 

STATEMENTS 

 
 

City of Pooler, Georgia 
For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

Finance Department 



 

 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Interim Comparative Operating Statements (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 

 

PAGE

COMPARATIVE OPERATING STATEMENTS

Fund 100 ‐ General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.................................... 1

Fund 201 ‐ Tree Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.......................................... 2

Fund 210 ‐ Forfeiture Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................................. 3

Fund 230 ‐ ARP Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances..... 4

Fund 275 ‐ Accommodation Excise Tax Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances... 5

Fund 320 ‐ Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances............................................................................................................................................... 6

Fund 350 ‐ Local Resources Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances...................... 7

Fund 505 ‐ Water and Sewer Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position............................... 8



 

 

 



 

     

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(UNAUDITED)



 

     



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 100 ‐ General Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

1 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... 634,771.95$       265,162.45$      

Licenses and permits............................................. 76,293.23           90,694.50          

Intergovernmental................................................. 18,221.79           293,138.33        

Charges for services............................................... 58,640.60           60,334.92          

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. 50,478.67           78,022.03          

Investment earnings.............................................. 63,559.11           43,606.62          

Contributions and donations.................................. 5,500.00             42,390.62          

Miscellaneous........................................................ 5,345.26             1,573.41            

Total revenues............................................................ 912,810.61         874,922.88         37,887.73           4.33%

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government.......................................... 247,159.49         183,027.33        

Judicial................................................................ 33,087.02           23,536.36          

Public safety....................................................... 1,091,828.15      864,328.18        

Public works........................................................ 209,186.41         120,999.63        

Health and welfare............................................. 8,671.90             8,005.18            

Culture and recreation....................................... 83,425.89           75,799.50          

Housing and development................................. 58,858.23           44,779.41          

Debt service

Principal.............................................................. 297,865.39         291,909.30        

Interest............................................................... 34,424.33           42,601.84          

Total expenditures..................................................... 2,064,506.81      1,654,986.73      409,520.08         24.74%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures...................................... (1,151,696.20)     (780,063.85)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Transfers out.......................................................... (58,575.00)          ‐                     

Sale of general capital assets................................ 224,250.00         2,150.00            

Insurance recoveries.............................................. ‐                      45,691.40          

Total other financing sources (uses) 165,675.00         47,841.40           117,833.60         246.30%

Net changes in fund balances.................................... (986,021.20)        (732,222.45)       

Fund balances at beginning of year........................... 36,985,151.51    32,947,279.67   

Fund balances at end of year..................................... 35,999,130.31$  32,215,057.22$ 



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 201 ‐ Tree Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

2 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Contributions.......................................................... ‐$                    297,588.50$      

Investment earnings.............................................. ‐                      253.77               

Total revenues........................................................ ‐                      297,842.27         (297,842.27)        ‐100.00%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Parks................................................................... ‐                      5,161.50            

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      5,161.50             (5,161.50)            ‐100.00%

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      292,680.77        

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 2,817,933.65      2,581,923.20     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 2,817,933.65$    2,874,603.97$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 210 ‐ Forfeiture Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

3 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Fines and forfeitures.............................................. ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. ‐                      18.87                 

Total revenues........................................................ ‐                      18.87                  (18.87)                 ‐100.00%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety....................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. ‐                      18.87                 

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ 182,668.11         120,812.07        

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... 182,668.11$       120,830.94$      



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 230 ‐ American Rescue Plan Local Fiscal Recovery Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

4 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental grants...................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings.............................................. ‐                      891.09               

Total revenues........................................................ ‐                      891.09                (891.09)               ‐100.00%

EXPENDITURES

Current

Health and welfare............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. ‐                      891.09               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      ‐                     

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      891.09               

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      7,675.69            

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    8,566.78$          



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 275 ‐ Accommodation Excise Tax Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

5 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Taxes...................................................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   

Total revenues........................................................ ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

EXPENDITURES

Intergovernmental:

Assistance.......................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures................................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.................................. ‐                      ‐                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out.......................................................... ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐                      ‐                     

Net change in fund balance....................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year.......................................... ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 320 ‐ Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

6 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings..................................... 42,123.34           11,893.15          

Total revenues.............................................. 42,123.34           11,893.15           30,230.19           254.18%

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

Public safety.............................................. ‐                      52,377.07          

Public works.............................................. ‐                      27,778.15          

Recreation................................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Debt service

Principal.................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Interest...................................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures........................................ ‐                      80,155.22           (80,155.22)          ‐100.00%

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ 42,123.34           (68,262.07)         

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... 9,652,831.48      7,698,715.93     

Fund balance, end of year................................ 9,694,954.82$    7,630,453.86$   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 350 ‐ Local Resources Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

7 
 

2024 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental........................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   

Investment earnings..................................... ‐                      ‐                     

Total revenues.............................................. ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay

General government................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Public safety.............................................. 58,575.00           ‐                     

Public works.............................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Recreation................................................. ‐                      ‐                     

Total expenditures........................................ 58,575.00           ‐                      58,575.00          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures........................ (58,575.00)          ‐                     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in................................................... 58,575.00           ‐                      58,575.00          

Total other financing sources (uses) 58,575.00           ‐                     

Net change in fund balance.............................. ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, beginning of year...................... ‐                      ‐                     

Fund balance, end of year................................ ‐$                    ‐$                   



CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 

Fund 505 ‐ Water and Sewer Fund 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the One Month Ended January 31, 2024 and 2023 

8 
 

2024 2023

OPERATING REVENUES

Water fees............................................................. (11,575.03)$        (12,485.44)$       

Sewer fees.............................................................. (82,939.04)          (124,404.25)       

Miscellaneous fees................................................ 14,900.22           15,221.64          

Total operating revenues........................................... (79,613.85)          (121,668.05)        42,054.20           ‐34.56%

OPERATING EXPENSES

Sewer and Wastewater Treatment Plant

Purchased and contracted services.................... 81,107.65           82,260.32          

Materials and supplies....................................... ‐                      31,326.33          

Total sewer and wastewater treatment plant....... 8,108.62             (34,381.35)          42,489.97           ‐123.58%

Water

Personnel services and employee benefits....... 57,256.14           46,721.22          

Purchased and contracted services.................... 36,314.19           1,879.95            

Materials and supplies....................................... 140.70                857.34               

Total water............................................................. (441,475.16)        (308,266.95)        (133,208.21)        43.21%

Total operating expenses........................................... (433,366.54)        (342,648.30)        (90,718.24)          26.48%

Operating income (loss)............................................ 353,752.69         220,980.25         132,772.44         60.08%

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income...................................................... 47,233.89           35,069.21          

Interest expense..................................................... (29,554.34)          (19,650.07)         

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).................. 17,679.55           15,419.14           2,260.41             14.66%

Income (loss) before capital contributions................ 371,432.24         236,399.39         135,032.85         57.12%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Tap fees.................................................................. 48,131.40           98,347.54          

Capital cost recovery charges................................ 292,203.94         546,777.64        

Transfers in............................................................ ‐                      ‐                     

Total capital contributions......................................... 340,335.34         645,125.18         (304,789.84)        ‐47.25%

Change in net position............................................... 711,767.58         881,524.57         (169,756.99)        ‐19.26%

Net position, beginning of year................................. 80,122,554.18    63,204,310.41   

Net position, end of year........................................... 80,834,321.76$  64,085,834.98$ 
 



City of Pooler
Fire-Rescue Services

Fire-Rescue Report Jan. 1st – 31st , 2024

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS 
Jan. 2024

% Of TOTAL 
Jan. 2024

YEAR to Date 
2024

YEAR to Date 
2023

Fires 13 2.69% 13 15
❖ Structure Fires 6 - 6 3

Emergency Medical Service 279 57.64% 279 244
Motor Vehicle Collisions 46 9.50% 46 39
Technical Rescues 7 1.45% 7 2
Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 6 1.24% 6 2
Service Call 45 9.30% 45 34
Good Intent Call 49 10.12% 49 39
False Alarm & False Call 39 8.06% 39 36
Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 0 0 0 0
Special Incident/Citizen Complaint 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 484 100% 484 411

Jan. Call Volume Increased from 411 in 2023 to 484 in 2024, (17.76 % increase)

For the year, call volume has increased by 73 calls or 17.76%.

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2024 - $133,921

Total Fire Loss Year to Date 2023 - $29,543

January     Year to Date
1. Child Locked in Auto      2 2
2. Animal Locked in Auto      0 0
3. Blood Draws     6             6



 
         

 
 

 

 

 

 

• A total of 59 Part 1 crimes were reported in the month of January.  

• From the prior year 2023, there is a decrease of 2% 

• A total of 27 shopliftings were reported in the month of January.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is an increase of 8%. 

• Total Calls for service in January were 2,441. 

• From the prior year 2023, this is an increase of 10%. 

• A total of 1,510 citations were issued in the month of January.  

• From prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 6% 

• A total of 137 arrests were made in the month of January.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is an increase of 21%. 

• A total of 21 DUI arrests were made in the month of January.  

• From the prior year 2023, this is a decrease of 19%. 

 

 

 
            ACTIVITY 

TIME PERIOD 
1/1 TO 1/31/2024 

YEAR TO 
DATE 2023 

YEAR TO 
DATE 2022 

PERCENTAGE 
CHANGE 

FROM 23 - 24 

PART 1 CRIMES 59 59 60 -2% 
SHOPLIFTINGS 27 27 25 8% 
CALLS FOR SERVICE 2,441 2,441 2,225 10% 
CITATION 1,510 1,510 1,607 -6% 
ARRESTS 137 137 113 21% 
DUI ARRESTS 21 21 26 -19% 

  

Tuesday February 20, 2024 

January 2024   



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

2

 

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

Parks performed routine maintenance at the parks, the community and senior

centers, and the cemetery.

Parks

AARP offered a driving course designed for seniors at the center.

Seniors were able to attend day trips to Rincon and Richmond Hill.

All regularly scheduled classes continued in January. 

Seniors had the opportunity to participate in ceramics with Sunshine Pottery.

Senior Center

Gymnastics, classes resumed in January.  Registrations for new

sessions opened.

Registrations for youth spring sports opened, which includes baseball, softball, tball,

Pooler Parks & Recreation

Monthly Report: January 2024

Recreation Department

Dance classes resumed in January. Registration was opened for February

Youth basketball games began at the gyms.

soccer and volleyball.



1  

City of Pooler  
Planning & Zoning Minutes 

January 22, 2024 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 

Chair Nicole Dixon called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.  
Commissioner Simmons led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Attendee Name Title Status 
Nicole Dixon Planning & Development Director Present 
Brad Rife Commissioner Present 
Shirlinia Daniel Commissioner Present 
Jeremy Kelly Alternate Present 
Scott Cribbs (Fire) Commissioner Present 
Mark Williams (Public Works) Commissioner Present 
Jim Ward (Police) Commissioner Present 
Pete Chaison Commissioner Present 
Brian Crooks City Planner Present 

Kimberly Dyer Zoning Administrator/Secretary Absent 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the December 11, 2023, Pooler Planning and Zoning Commission were 
reviewed, and no corrections or amendments were noted. 
 
Result: Approved 
 
1-Motion: Commissioner Chaison  

  2-Second: Commissioner Rife 
Passed without opposition (Daniel abstained). 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Text Amendment to Amend Appendix A, Art. II and Art. III to Provide Provisions 

Related to Multi-use Development 
 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation. The request has previously been before the board but was modified 
from discussion with Council.  There was a question related to open space and its 
definition and requirements.  There was also a question about how parcels and PINs 
would function with this type of development. 
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the text amendment for 
Appendix A, Art. II and Art. III to provide for provisions related to multi-use development. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Daniel 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Simmons 
 Passed without opposition.           



2  

Commissioner Rife stepped down from the dais and exited the room.  Commissioner Kelly 
replaced Mr. Rife.   
 
B. Zoning Map Amendment for property on Clear Lake Way from C-2 to R-3(C) 

 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  Harold Yellin was present on behalf of the applicant to provide an 
overview of the map amendment. The were questions about entrances related to the 
proposed development.  There were questions related to the amount of units presently 
allowed within the overall development and zoning of adjacent properties. 
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the map amendment for 
lot 5 on Clear Lake Way from C-2 to R-3(C). 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Simmons 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Daniel 
Passed 5-1 (Brown opposed). 
 
Commissioner Kelly stepped down from the dais and Commissioner Rife returned to the 
dais. 
 

C. Preliminary Development Plans for Canal Bank Subdivision 
 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  Ben McKay with Maupin Engineering was present to provide an 
overview of the item and answer any questions.  There was a question related to where 
access for the site is located. 
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the preliminary development 
plans for Canal Bank Subdivision. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Williams 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Simmons 
 Passed without opposition.           
 

D. Site Plan for Tanger Outlet Parcel #4 at 220 Tanger Outlets Blvd 
 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  Travis Burke with Coleman Company was present to provide an 
overview of the item and answer any questions.   
 

Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the site plan for Tanger 
Outparcel #4 at 220 Tanger Outlets Blvd. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Williams 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Daniel 
 Passed without opposition.           

 
E. Site Plan for 212 E US Highway 80 

 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  The applicant was not present.  The Commission had questions related 
to the application and proposed development. 



3  

 
Result:  A motion was moved to table the item so the applicant can be present to address the Commission’s 
questions. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Daniel 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Brown 
 Passed without opposition.           

 
Commissioner Rife stepped down from the dais and exited the room.  Commissioner Kelly 
replaced Mr. Rife.   
 
F. Final Plat for 360 Communities Phase 1B and Performance Bond for Lift Station 

electrical work. 
 
Brian Crooks presented the request to the Commission for their review and 
recommendation.  Nathan Long with Thomas & Hutton was present to provide an 
overview of the item and answer any questions. 

 
Result:  After review of the criteria, a motion was made to recommend approval of the Final Plat for 360 
Communities Phase 1B and acceptance of the Performance Bond for Lift Station electrical work. 
 

1- Motion:  Commissioner Simmons 
  2- Second:  Commissioner Williams 
 Passed without opposition.           

 
 

The meeting was adjourned by motion at approximately 3:30. 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this 5th day of 
February 2024. 
__________________________________________________ 

 
Brian Crooks, City Planner 



City of Pooler
Single Family Detached Permits

January 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
1/22/2024 231606 Westbrook 180 Spanton Crescent, Lot 511 Transcend Custom Homes, LLC Brennan Capital Investments, LLC 51009F04053
1/19/2024 231738 Westbrook 105 Wood Glenn Retreat, Lot 407 Michael Rogers Construction Harold and Jessica McLendon 51009G01121 Yes/No
1/18/2024 231809 Westbrook 719 Blue Moon Xing, Lot 914 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03007
1/18/2024 231812 Westbrook 113 Binscombe Ln., Lot Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05026
1/18/2024 231813 Westbrook 713 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 911 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03004
1/18/2024 231814 Westbrook 715 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 912 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03005
1/16/2024 231815 Telfair Park 115 Juliette Low Ln., Lot 411 Mungo Homes Same 51009S05013
1/16/2024 231816 Telfair Park 141 Jepson Way, Lot 426 Mungo Homes Same 51009S06008
1/18/2024 231817 Westbrook 717 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 913 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R03006
1/18/2024 231818 Westbrook 718 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 940 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05015
1/18/2024 231819 Westbrook 109 Binscombe Ln., Lot 959 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05024
1/18/2024 231820 Westbrook 120 Binscombe Ln., Lot 1001 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05067
1/18/2024 231821 Westbrook 118 Binscombe Ln., Lot 1002 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05068
1/18/2024 231822 Westbrook 110 Binscombe Ln., Lot 1006 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05072
1/18/2024 231823 Westbrook 125 Holloway Hill, Lot 1013 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05080
1/18/2024 231824 Westbrook 123 Holloway Hill, Lot 1014 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05081
1/18/2024 231825 Westbrook 121 Holloway Hill, Lot 1015 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05082
1/18/2024 231826 Westbrook 134 Holloway Hill, Lot 1042 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05110
1/18/2024 231827 Westbrook 136 Holloway Hill, Lot 1043 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05111
1/18/2024 231828 Westbrook 138 Holloway Hill, Lot 1044 Lennar Carolinas Same 51009R05112
1/30/2024 24-0041 Westbrook 135 Greenhill Close, Lot 755 HD Construction S. Thakor/Parvati Patel 51009P02016

Total 21



City of Pooler
Townhome Permits

January 2024

Date Permit # Subdivision Address Contractor Owner PIN #
1/10/2024 231800 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 285 Oldwood Dr., Lot 558 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06088
1/10/2024 231801 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 287 Oldwood Dr., Lot 559 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06090
1/10/2024 231802 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 289 Oldwood Dr., Lot 560 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06091
1/10/2024 231803 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 291 Oldwood Dr., Lot 561 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06092
1/10/2024 231804 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 293 Oldwood Dr., Lot 562 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06093
1/10/2024 231805 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 295 Oldwood Dr., Lot 563 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06094
1/18/2024 24-0006 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 160 Overbrook Ct., Lot 554 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06084
1/18/2024 24-0007 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 162 Overbrook Ct., Lot 555 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06085
1/18/2024 24-0008 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 164 Overbrook Ct., Lot 556 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06086
1/18/2024 24-0011 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 166 Overbrook Ct., Lot 557 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06087
1/29/2024 24-0031 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 351 Oldwood Dr., Lot 564 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06096
1/29/2024 24-0032 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 353 Oldwood Dr., Lot 565 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06097
1/29/2024 24-0033 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 355 Oldwood Dr., Lot 566 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06098
1/29/2024 24-0034 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 357 Oldwood Dr., Lot 567 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06099
1/29/2024 24-0035 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 359 Oldwood Dr., Lot 568 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06100
1/29/2024 24-0036 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 361 Oldwood Dr., Lot 569 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06101
1/29/2024 24-0037 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 363 Oldwood Dr., Lot 570 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06102
1/29/2024 24-0038 Savannah Quarters-Easthavent 365 Oldwood Dr., Lot 571 Dream Finders Homes, LLC Same 51009N06103

Total 18



City of Pooler
Commercial Permits

January 2024

Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Type/Project PIN #

Flood 
Zone/Flood 

Way
1/9/2024 231479 201 Tanger Outlets Blvd., Ste 100 Fulcrum Construction LLC Dicks's Sporting Goods Interior Renovation 50017A01101
1/23/2024 231792 260 Tanger Outlets Blvd. Dewiitt-Tilton Group 260 Ink Properties Ink Retail Shell 51009A01112
1/25/2024 231793 133 Ventura Blvd. Heritage Maintenance Berkely Walk  HOA Pool Pump House 51009J08015
1/5/2024 24-0001 118 Pipemakers Cir, Unit 101 Dewiitt-Tilton Group Pooler Real Estate Group Batthroom/Shower Addition 50017B06064

1/25/2024 231837 211 E. Mell St. Units 18, 20-24 Property Masters Inc. Pooler 24 LLC Interior Renovation 5000519001

 

 

Total 4   



Misc. Permits January 2024
Date Permit # Address Contractor Owner Project Type PIN # Flood Zone

1/4/2024 231784 110 Southern Junction Blvd Unit 105 Doug Bean Signs Rumors Properties LLC Wall Sign
1/8/2024 231794 9 Sundance Rd. Backyard Products Steven Brennan Storage Building
1/8/2024 231795 Old Dean Forest Rd AT&T Same Excavation/Encroachment

1/10/2024 231799 314 Silver Brook Cir. Low Country Foundation Repair William Middleton Foundation
1/11/2024 231807 7 Glenwood Ct Palmetto Solar Robin Reeves Roof Mounted Solar Panels
1/10/2024 231808 1127 Forest Dr Charity Daniels Same Culvert
1/11/2024 231811 1465 Quacco Rd. K&H Maintenance Inc. HDK Properties LLP Electrical
1/17/2024 231829 Merlot Dr/Cheval Ln National Land Co Same Timber Harvesting 
1/18/2024 231830 1 Serene Way TEC Electric LLC Electrical
1/19/2024 231831 320 E. Hwy 80 K&S Tractor Services Lovezzola' Inc. Tree Removal
1/22/2024 231832 421 Morgan Lakes Ind. Blvd. Coastal Empire Fire & Security Inc Morgan Lakes Industrial XIII Fire Alarm
1/22/2024 231833 63 Columbia Dr. AT&T Same Excavation/Encroachment
1/22/2024 231834 Pipemakers Cir. AT&T Same Excavation/Encroachment
1/31/2024 231838 Hwy 80 and Brighton Woods Dr. AT&T Same Excavation/Encroachment
1/5/2024 24-0002 129 Chinese Fir Ct. Great Day Improvements Debbie Weaver Sunroom and Covered Patio 51014B01040

1/30/2024 24-0003 880 Towne Center Blvd Abraheem Kussim Same Temporary Sign
1/9/2024 24-0004 34 Cross Gate Ct. Mark Hartley Mark Hartley Interiror Renovation 
1/5/2024 24-0005 304 E. Hwy 80 Tim Lovezzola Same Enclose Carport 5000704018

1/17/2024 24-0010 100 Canal Cove Childs Electrical Contracting Tracy Walker Electrical
1/19/2024 24-0013 504 Pinewood Dr. Thompson & Thompson Larry Aguilar Mechanical
1/19/2024 24-0014 12 Mackinac Ct. Thompson & Thompson Chris Howard Mechanical
1/23/2024 24-0017 211 James Rd. Poly Energy Baily Anspach Roof Mounted Solar Panels
1/22/2024 24-0018 136 Tahoe Dr. Dyess Air and Plumbing Tim Tyner Plumbing
1/23/2024 24-0019 131 Bramswell Rd. Owens Contracting Joe Broce 4' Aluminum Fence
1/22/2024 24-0020 96 Woodfrod Reserve Dr. Superioo Fence and Rail Jason Yoo 6' White Vinyl Privacy Fence
1/24/2024 24-0021 231 N Newton St. Daniel Hatcher Same Electrical
1/17/2024 24-0024 117 Westwind Dr. Brian Lorello Same Storage Building 51015B05023
1/29/2024 24-0025 313 Benton Dr. Nathanael Barham Same Electrical
1/25/2024 24-0027 1627 Dean Forest Rd Power Solved Brett Smith Electrical
1/26/2024 24-0028 901 Hadens Dr. Thompson & Thompson John Hopkins Mechanical
1/31/2024 24-0029 211 James Rd. Poly Energy Baily Anspach Electrical
1/30/2024 24-0043 110 Southern Junction Blvd Unit 105 Pye Barker Rumors Properties LLC Fire Suppression 50017A01063
1/30/2024 24-0048 1105 Hwy 80 Ste C Fastisigns of Savannah I Vape Wall Sign
1/30/2024 24-0068 116 Verse Ln. Custom Sign Factory Willow Bridge Property Co Monument Sign

Total 34



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

January 2024
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

1/5/2024 221373 Westbrook 629 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 859 Single Family Detached Logan Homes SC LLC Same
1/5/2024 230899 Telfari Park 131 Jepson Way, Lot 431 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/8/2024 230949 1024 W Hwy 80 Ste 201 Live Karaoke/Restaurant Buildout R/GEO Construction Randy Chu
1/8/2024 230895 Telfari Park 128 Jepson Way, Lot 382 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/9/2024 221372 Westbrook 627 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 858 Townhome Logan Homes SC LLC Same

1/11/2024 230281 Benton Grove Townhomes 51 Amalfi Ave, Lot 23A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/11/2024 230282 Benton Grove Townhomes 53 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/11/2024 230285 Benton Grove Townhomes 55 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/11/2024 230286 Benton Grove Townhomes 57 Amalfi Ave., Lot 23D Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/11/2024 230289 Benton Grove Townhomes 65 Amalfi Ave., Lof 24C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/11/2024 230293 Benton Grove Townhomes 71 Amalfi Ave., Lot 25A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/16/2024 231706 Westbrook 200 Blue Moon Xing, Unt 203 Interior Renovations Ace Remodeling Services HTIMS LLC
1/16/2024 231433 Ellis Park 139 Kraft Kove, Lot 298 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/17/2024 230571 Towne Park 331 governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 175 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/17/2024 230287 Benton Grove Townhomes 61 Amalfi Ave., Lot 24A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/17/2024 230288 Benton Grove Townhomes 63 Amalfi Ave., Lot 24B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/17/2024 230294 Benton Grove Townhomes 73 Amalfi Ave., Lot 25B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/17/2024 230295 Benton Grove Townhomes 75 Amalfi Ave, Lot 25C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/18/2024 231143 417 E. Mell St., Lot 31 Single Family Detached ECHO HomeBuilders Beta Fish, LLC
1/18/2024 230752 Westbrook 173 Holloway Hill, Lot 1072 Townhome DR Horton Same
1/18/2024 230753 Westbrook 171 Holloway Hill, Lot 1073 Townhome DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 220985 Westbrook 123 Waterside Ln., Lot 194 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/19/2024 220951 Westbrook 121 Waterside Ln., Lot 193 Single Family Detached Village Park Homes, LLC Same
1/19/2024 231270 Ellis Park 132 Kraft Kove, Lot 274 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 231275 Ellis Park 130 Kraft Kove, Lot 275 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 231331 Ellis Park 142 Kraft Kove, Lot 269 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 231444 Ellis Park 137 Kraft Kove, Lot 299 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 231445 Ellis Park 135 kraft Kove, Lot 300 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/19/2024 230479 Westbrook 142 Binscombe Ln., Lot 990 Single Family Detached Lennar Carolinas Same
1/22/2024 230573 Towne Park 335 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 177 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/22/2024 230570 Towne Park 329 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 174 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/22/2024 230572 Towne Park 333 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 176 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/22/2024 231332 Ellis Park 140 Kraft Kove, Lot 270 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/22/2024 231330 Ellis Park 144 Kraft Kove, Lot 268 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/22/2024 231267 Ellis Park 138 Kraft Kove, Lot 271 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/22/2024 231164 Ellis Park 124 Kraft Kove, Lot 278 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/23/2024 231276 Ellis Park 128 Kraft Kove, Lot 276 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/23/2024 231190 Harmony 5 Cantata Cir., Lot 701 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
1/23/2024 231191 Harmony 7 Cantata Cir., Lot 702 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

January 2024
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

1/23/2024 231193 Harmony 11 Cantata Cir., Lot 704 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
1/23/2024 231194 Harmony 13 Cantata Cir., Lot 705 Single Family Detached Landmark 24 Homes of Savannah Same
1/23/2024 230349 Westbrook 184 Holloway Hill, Lot 1113 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/23/2024 230231 Benton Grove Townhomes 56 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230232 Benton Grove Townhomes 54 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230233 Benton Grove Townhomes 52 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230235 Benton Grove Townhomes 50 Amalfi Ave., Lot 27D Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230218 Benton Grove Townhomes 48 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230219 Benton Grove Townhomes 46 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/23/2024 230220 Benton Grove Townhomes 44 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/24/2024 231109 Telfari Park 139 Jepson Way, Lot 427 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/24/2024 230896 Telfari Park 132 Jepson Way, Lot 384 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/24/2024 230643 Telfari Park 114 Jepson Way, lot 375 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/24/2024 231112 Telfari Park 133 Jepson Way, Lot 430 Single Family Detached Mungo Homes Same
1/24/2024 230296 Benton Grove Townhomes 68 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/24/2024 230297 Benton Grove Townhomes 66 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/24/2024 230298 Benton Grove Townhomes 64 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/24/2024 230299 Benton Grove Townhomes 62 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26D Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/24/2024 230300 Benton Grove Townhomes 60 Amalfi Ave., Lot 26E Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/25/2024 230852 Westbrook 186 Holloway Hill, Lot 1114 Townhome DR Horton Same
1/25/2024 231268 Ellis Park 136 Kraft Kove, Lot 272 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/25/2024 231269 Ellis Park 134 Kraft Kove, Lot 273 Single Family Detached DR Horton Same
1/25/2024 231024 Westbrook 109 Holloway Hill, Lot 1021 Single Family Detached Lennar Carolinas Same
1/26/2024 230226 Benton Grove Townhomes 38 Amalfi Ave.,Lot 29A Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/26/2024 230227 Benton Grove Townhomes 36 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29B Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/26/2024 230228 Benton Grove Townhomes 34 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29C Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/26/2024 230229 Benton Grove Townhomes 32 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29D Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/26/2024 230230 Benton Grove Townhomes 30 Amalfi Ave., Lot 29E Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/26/2024 230446 Westbrook 737 Blue Moon Xing., Lot 923 Single Family Detached Lennar Carolinas Same
1/29/2024 230802 Towne Park 346 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 139 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/29/2024 230803 Towne Park 344 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 140 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/29/2024 230804 Towne Park 342 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 141 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/29/2024 230805 Towne Park 340 Governor Gwinnett Way, Lot 142 Townhome Horizon Home Builders Same
1/30/2024 220614 760 Pine Barren Rd., Lot 3B Single Family Detached Hugo Alfaro Same
1/30/2024 230221 Benton Grove Townhomes 42 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28D Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/30/2024 230222 Benton Grove Townhomes 40 Amalfi Ave., Lot 28E Townhome Dream Finders Homes Same
1/31/2024 200376 Pooler III 3002 Benton Grove Bldg 900 Multi-Family Morrow Construction



City of Pooler
Certificate of Occupancy

January 2024
Date Permit # Subdivision Address Type of Construction Contractor Owner

Total 76



Monthly Report
January 2024

INSPECTORS
Scott MacPherson 319 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Frank Garza 717 Inspections (Included in Salary)
Josh Moody Inspections
Total Inspections: 1,036 Inspections



1

   STATE OF GEORGIA }
)

   COUNTY OF CHATHAM }

 ORDINANCE O2024-02.A
City Council Regular Meeting Start Time Change

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE
CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO SET
AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS OF THE CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA,
do hereby ordain as follows:

I.

       Chapter 2, Section 2-31 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Pooler is hereby 
amended by deleting the strikethrough text and adding the underlined text as follows:

Sec. 2-31. Meetings.

  (a) The regular meetings of the aldermanic board Mayor and City Council shall be held 
       at the city hall on the first and third Monday of each month, at 6:00 p.m. 4:00 p.m.,
       except when such day is a legal holiday observed by the city, in which case the
       regular meeting shall be held on the following day at the same time and place. 
       Mayor and City Council may change the day and time for a regularly scheduled meeting
       by majority vote during any regularly scheduled or specially called meeting.

  (b) Special meetings of the Mayor and City Council may be called by either the Mayor or
       any four Councilmembers upon 48 hours' notice to the Mayor and all City
       Councilmembers. This notice may be waived by the Mayor or any Councilmember.
       Notice to the public of special meetings shall comply with state law regarding 
       open meetings.

II.

This ordinance or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.

III.

This ordinance shall be deemed adopted immediately upon its approval by the Mayor and 
City Council of the City of Pooler, Georgia. The effective date of this ordinance following 
approval shall be April 1, 2024. 



2

FIRST READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________

SECOND READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________

ADOPTED: _______ day of _____________________, __________

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

__________________________________
Karen L. Williams, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council

CITYS SEAL:



1 

   STATE OF GEORGIA } 

) 

   COUNTY OF CHATHAM } 

ORDINANCE O2024-02.B

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF POOLER CODE OF ORDINANCES APPENDIX 

A – ZONING, ARTICLE II – DEFINITIONS AND ARTICLE III – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

BY ADDING SECTION 32 – MULTI-USE DEVELOPMENT AND AMENDING TABLE 4.1 – 

ALLOWED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT TO PROVIDE PROVISIONS RELATED TO 

MULTI-USE DEVELOPMENT; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Pooler, Georgia are hereby amended as follows: 

I 

That APPENDIX A – ZONING, Article II. DEFINITIONS be amended by adding the following 

language: 

Multi-use development.  A development site consisting of multiple detached buildings 

with differing land uses including both residential and non-residential components. 

Mixed-use development.  A development site consisting of one or more multi-story 

buildings that include both residential and non-residential principal uses.  Mixed-use 

development typically has non-residential uses on the first floor with upper story residential 

uses.  

II 

That APPENDIX A – ZONING, Article III. GENERAL PROVISIONS be amended by adding the 

following: 

Section 32. – Multi-use development. 

(A) Applicability.

(1) The provisions of this section shall apply to any new multi-use development as

defined in this ordinance.

(2) Any new multi-use development shall only be allowed as part of an approved

site plan.

(3) Any multi-use development existing prior to the adoption of this ordinance shall

be allowed to continue to exist without express compliance with these

requirements.  Any redevelopment, alteration, expansion, or extension of at

least 50 percent of an existing multi-use development shall be required to

comply with these requirements.



  

2 

(B) Definitions.  

(1) Non-residential component.  The minimum required non-residential use portion 

related to a multi-use development. 

(2) Open space set-aside.  Portion of the site that is not occupied by buildings, 

structures, impermeable areas, or driveways, which are intended for the use 

and enjoyment of the development’s residents, employees, and users and is at 

least 500 sq feet in size and consisting of primarily pervious or semi-pervious 

surfaces.  Open space set-aside is meant to serve as an amenity and includes 

features such as: 

a. Natural features, such as groupings of trees and areas of preserved 

vegetation;  

b. Recreation areas, such as gazebo and picnic areas, playgrounds or 

courts, parks, or other like features;  

c. Any vegetation, tree plantings, or landscape areas not part of parking 

lots or other hardscapes (unless part of another identified open space 

set-aside); or,  

d. Squares, forecourts, or plazas, which are framed and oriented by 

buildings or streets to provide gathering spaces that are not ancillary or 

allocated to a residential or non-residential use component, i.e., outdoor 

dining area or hang-out pad, unless accessible to all users of the site. 

(3) Phasing plan.  A general development plan that identifies the sequence or 

phases in which the development is proposed to be accomplished, including the 

timing of construction of residential and non-residential components, along with 

all infrastructure, open space, amenities, or other proposed features associated 

with such. 

(4) Residential component.  The minimum required residential use portion related 

to a multi-use development.  The residential component shall include 

apartments, condominiums, or townhouses. 

(C) General Requirements.  Where permitted, any multi-use development shall comply 

with the following requirements: 

(1) A minimum size requirement of at least 5 acres and a maximum size 

requirement of no more than 50 acres. 

(2) At least 15 percent of the development shall be designated as open space set-

aside as defined in this section. Open space set-aside shall be parceled out and 

labeled as open space on the plat. 

(3) A phasing plan shall be submitted as part of any application for the 

development.  A Certificate of Occupancy for at least one non-residential 

building shall be required prior to or simultaneously with the issuance of any 

Certificate of Occupancy for a residential building.   

(4) A minimum of three distinct use categories shall be required for the 

development, with at least one comprising the residential component and two 

comprising the non-residential component.  Staff shall review and determine if 



  

3 

the proposed uses within each component are satisfied during a pre-application 

meeting, prior to site plan submittal. 

(5) No use component shall exceed 75 percent of the uses by acreage within the 

development. 

(6) No use category, except for residential, shall exceed 65 percent of the total 

acreage of the site. 

(7) Each use category shall comprise at least 10 percent of the gross floor area of 

all uses. 

(8) Any use proposed for inclusion within the development shall comply with all use 

permissions and use requirements related to such use for the zoning district. 

(9) The development may receive a reduction in the minimum number of required 

parking spaces by submitting a parking demand study demonstrating that there 

is reasonable probability the number of parking spaces needed to serve the 

development is less than what would otherwise be required because of the 

location, nature, and mixture of uses.  An alternative parking or shared parking 

plan shall be provided with the parking demand study. 

(10) The land comprising the site shall not be subdivided into separate, individual 

parcels, except through a horizontal property regime, condominium, land or 

ground lease, HOA or POA, or other similar property framework. 

(D) Violations.  Any violation of the requirements of this section shall be subject to the 

provisions set forth within Article V, Section 12 of Appendix A, along with any and all 

applicable enforcement procedures, including Section 1-12 of the City of Pooler Code 

of Ordinances. 

III 

That APPENDIX A, ARTICLE IV. ZONING DISTRICTS, Table 4.1 Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

be amended to include “Multi-Use Development” as a conditional use in the C-1, Light 

Commercial, C-2, Heavy Commercial, C-P, Commercial Professional, I-1, Light Industrial, and 

I-2, Heavy Industrial, districts: 



  

4 

 

 

IV 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the ordinance are hereby repealed. 

V 

If any section, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, the said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of this ordinance. 

VI 

This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Mayor and City 

Council of Pooler, Georgia. 

 

FIRST READING:  _______ day of _____________________, __________ 

 

SECOND READING: _______ day of _____________________, __________ 

 

ADOPTED:   _______ day of _____________________, __________ 

 

 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA 
 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________________ 

Clerk of Council 

 



1

STATE OF GEORGIA }
)

COUNTY OF CHATHAM }

RESOLUTION R2023-02.A
To Amend the 2024 Pooler Schedule of Fees

WHEREAS, the City of Pooler provides a number of services on a regular basis within
the city; and

WHEREAS, each of these services cost the city to administer and carry out; and

WHEREAS, there is a desire to accurately and correctly reflect the costs of these
various services in schedules that reimburse the city for the time and
expenses incurred by performing these services; and|

WHEREAS, the fees and fines for all departments are reviewed and adjusted periodically
as deemed appropriate and fiscally responsible; and

WHEREAS, the most recent review has determined that costs associated with providing
services has increased to a degree that it is necessary to make adjustments
in order to meet current needs and demands; and

WHEREAS, the amended Schedule of Fees is attached as Exhibit A;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Pooler that 
the amended Schedule of Fees as attached is hereby adopted.

ADOPTED this 20th day of February 2024. 

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA

__________________________________
Karen L. Williams, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

32 LICENSES AND PERMITS

32.1000 BUSINESS LICENSES

32.1100 Alcoholic Beverage License Fees:
A1  Retail package: liquor, beer and wine 1,850.00          
A2  Retail package: beer and wine 800.00             
A3  Retail package: beer only 600.00             
B1  Consumption on‐permises: liquor, beer and wine 2,150.00          
B2  Consumption on‐permises: beer and wine 1,000.00          
B3  Consumption on‐permises: beer only 750.00             
C    Wholesale liquor 3,200.00          
D    Wholesale beer and wine 1,900.00          
E    Brewer, manufacturer of malt beverages, (does not include brewpubs or homebrewers) 1,075.00          
F1  Hotels 2,500.00          
F2  Special event venue 2,000.00          
G    Manufacturer of wine 2,250.00          
H    Distiller, manufacturer of distilled spirits 2,250.00          
I     Temporary/private event (not including home‐brew events), per day, max 2‐days 100.00             
J     Home‐brew special event permit, per day, max 2‐days and 6‐days per annum 100.00             
K    Complimentary beer and wine 250.00             
L     Consumption off‐premises (caterer): liquor, beer and wine 1,500.00          

32.1100 Alocholic Beverage Add‐on fees:
A    Brewpub operator permit, requires qualifying license (B1, B2, B3, or E) 850.00             
C1  Sunday sales (retail) permit, requires qualifying license (A1, A2, A3, C, D, E, F1, F2, G, or H) 750.00             
C2  Sunday sales (11:00 am) permit, requires qualifying license (B1, B2, B3, F1 or F2) 1,000.00          

32.1900 Alcohol Application Fees:
New application fee (license classes A1 ‐ H, and L) 290.00             
New application fee (license classes I, J,  and K) 20.00               
Application renewal fee 50.00               

32.1900 Investigative fee for alcoholic beverage licenses 20.00               

32.1900 Nonprorated, nonrefundable business license administration fee 25.00               

1 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

32.2000 NON‐BUSINESS LICENSES AND PERMITS

32.2210 Cell Tower Submittal Fee:
New structure (does not include cost for site plan or conditional use) 5,000.00           3,500.00          
Modification of existing cell tower 500.00             
Replacement or co‐location 500.00             

32.2210 Conditional Use Request (CUP):
Includes one (1) sign 350.00             
Amendment to conditions placed on CUP 350.00             

32.2210 Culvert permit 35.00               

32.2210 Land Disturbing Activity (LDA) permit 150.00             
Per acre 40.00               

32.2210 Map amendment for PUD Master Plan fees:
Change in development standards, density, etc 350.00             

32.2210 Map amendment petition:  Fees shall accompany application
Area less than or equaling 1 acre + $50 per lot 300.00             
Area greater than 1 acre + $50 per lot 600.00             

32.2210 Sign permit ‐ $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation (minimum fee $50.00)
Sign permit ‐ special events 50.00               

32.2210 Subdivisions:
Minor subdivision:

Preliminary plan ‐ plus $20.00 per lot 350.00             
Final plat 350.00             

Major subdivision:
Sketch plan 350.00             
Preliminary plan ‐ plus $20.00 per lot 2,000.00          
Final plat w/maintenance bond review 600.00             
Final plat w/performance bond review 600.00             

Five‐acre tract subdivision:
Final plat 350.00             

Revisions to recorded plat fees:

2 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

Recombinations, combinations 350.00             
Resubmittal of pending subdivision plan for review (Major & Minor only)

≥ 20 outstanding comments 500.00             
Between 19 and 11 outstanding comments 375.00             
Between 10 and 4 outstanding comments 250.00             
≤ 3 outstanding comments 125.00             

32.2210 Variance request (includes one (1) sign) 350.00             

32.2210 Well permit:
Shallow wells (less than 75 feet) 35.00               
Deep wells (75 ft and over) 65.00               

32.2210 Zoning text amendment 350.00             

32.2900 Burn permit 50.00               

32.2900 Door‐to‐Door Solicitation; Base annual fee 200.00             
Per person/per day fee 50.00               

32.2900 Live Entertainment permit, per year 100.00             

32.2900 Special Event permit 300.00             

32.2900 Timber harvesting permit  50.00               

32.2900 Tree Removal permit  50.00               

32.2900 Tire disposal fees:
Passenger cars/light weight truck tires (off rim) 3.00                  
Passenger cars/light weight truck tires (on rim) 5.00                  
Heavy weight truck tires (off rim) 15.00               
Heavy weight truck tires (on rim) 25.00               

3 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

32.3000 REGULATORY FEES

32.3100 Boring Fees:
0' to 20' 1,500.00          
20' to 50' 2,500.00          

32.3100 Building Permit Fees:
Single family residence ‐ 2,500 sq ft or less 500.00             
Single family residence ‐ 2,501 sq ft ‐   5,000 sq ft 600.00             
Single family residence ‐ 5,001 sq ft ‐   7,500 sq ft 700.00             
Single family residence ‐ 7,501 sq ft ‐ 10,000 sq ft 800.00             
Single family residence ‐ 10,001 sq ft and over 900.00             
Multi‐family (per unit) 500.00             

Commercial projects (i.e.,  pools, buildings) ‐ by total valuation:
0 999 50.00               

1,000 to 50,000 First     1,000      50.00  (+ 10.00 for each add'l thousand or fraction thereof)
50,001 to 100,000 First   50,000    540.00  (+   8.00 for each add'l thousand or fraction thereof)
100,001 to 500,000 First 100,000    940.00  (+   6.00 for each add'l thousand or fraction thereof)
500,001 and over First 500,000 3,340.00  (+   4.00 for each add'l thousand or fraction thereof)

32.3100 Residential‐ Remodel, Renovations, Additions ‐ $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation with minimum fee of $50.00

32.3100 Demolition permit ‐ $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation with minimum fee of $50

32.3100 Fence permit ‐ $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation with minimum fee of $50

32.3100 Solar Panel: $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation (includes cost of inspection) with minimum fee of $50

32.3100 Inspection fees (per inspection):
Electrical 50.00               
Garages, storage building 50.00                35.00               
Mechanical 50.00               
Plumbing 50.00               
Emergency Responder Communication Coverage (commercial) 500.00             

Reinspection fees:
1st building pemit reinspection 50.00               

4 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

2nd building permit reinspection 75.00               
Curb and gutter 50.00               
Meter 50.00               
Sidewalk 50.00               
Stabilization 50.00               
Tree 50.00               

32.3100 Mobile home or construction trailer permit 65.00               

32.3100 Moving permit (relocation of existing structure) 65.00               

32.3100 Pool permits:
Above ground 50.00               
Private pool ‐ inground ‐ $10 per each $1,000 or fraction thereof by total valuation with minimum fee of $100

5 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

34 CHARGES FOR SERVICES

34.1000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT

34.1300 Arborist (per acre) 150.00             

34.1300 Flood Maps:
Small 5.00                  
Large 10.00               

34.1300 Plan Review Fee:
Residential 50.00               
Commercial 300.00             
Commercial retrofitting space 150.00             
Commercial buildout 150.00             

34.1300 Site plan review submittal fees:
Site plan submittal fee 3,000.00          
Resubmittal of pending site plan for review
≥ 20 outstanding comments 500.00             
Between 19 and 11 outstanding comments 375.00             
Between 10 and 4 outstanding comments 250.00             
≤ 3 outstanding comments 125.00             

Revisions to an approved site plan 1,500.00          
Site Addition 350.00             

34.1300 Zoning fees:
Verification letter 50.00               

34.1300 Zoning maps:
Small 5.00                  
Large 10.00               

34.1400 Copy fee (per page) 0.10                  

34.1900 Notary fee (per page) 2.00                  

34.1900 Stop work order fee 500.00             

6 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

34.1900 Towing fees:
Services provided by head‐out wrecker service, not to exceed 85.00               
Vehicle storage (provided by head‐out wrecker service), per day 15.00               

7 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

34.4000 UTILITIES / ENTERPRISE

34.4100 Sanitation rates *
Sanitation‐only user deposit (renters) 75.00               
Wheeled trash carts ‐ non‐refundable deposit, per cart 75.00               
Residential trash service (includes one (1) recycling cart service), per month, one (1) trash cart 23.72                23.14               
Residential trash service ‐ additional trash cart, per month 11.25                10.97               
Commercial trash service (carts), per month 26.89                26.23               
Additional recycling cart ‐ residential/commercial (with trash cart service) carts, non‐refundable deposit, per cart 25.00               
Additional recycling service fee, per month/per cart 8.73                   8.52                  
Re‐delivery fee for repossessed carts 50.00               

34.4211 Water rates:*
Residential, single family dwelling units, condominiums, townhouses, apartments per unit, per month:

Base charge for first 2,000 gallons 10.88                10.62               
2,001 gallons to 8,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 2.86                   2.79                  
8,001 gallons to 14,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.53                   4.42                  
Over 14,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 8.59                   8.38                  

Commercial, per month:
Base charge for first 5,000 gallons 48.94                47.75               
5,001 gallons to 25,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 2.86                   2.79                  
25,001 gallons to 225,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.27                   4.17                  
Over 225,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 8.59                   8.38                  

Hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing homes, per month, per room:
Base charge for first 1,000 gallons 3.43                   3.35                  
1,001 gallons to 2,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 2.86                   2.79                  
2,001 gallons to 5,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.27                   4.17                  
Over 5,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 8.59                   8.38                  

Senior citizens, per month:
Base charge for first 2,000 gallons 7.76                   7.57                  
2,001 gallons to 8,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 2.11                   2.06                  
8,001 gallons to 14, 000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 3.13                   3.06                  
Over 14,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 6.30                   6.15                  

Multi‐family on master meter, per unit, per month:

8 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

Base charge for first 2,000 gallons 10.88                10.62               
2,001 gallons to 8,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 2.86                   2.79                  
8,001 gallons to 14,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.53                   4.42                  
Over 14,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 8.59                   8.38                  

Industrial:  Water rates same as commercial

Service call / disconnect / re‐connect fee, requested by customer 55.00               
Service call ‐ more than one (1) hour, per 1/4 hour 10.00               

Water:  Backflow preventer inspection fees (effective 08‐20‐12):
Up to 2", per device 75.00               
Up to 2", more than five (5) devices for same property, per device 50.00               
Over 2", per device 100.00             
Re‐test, if device fails and has to be repaired by certified plumber 25.00               

Utility service rates (effective 08‐21‐17):
Residential water service deposit (renters only) 150.00             
Commercial water service deposit (renters only)  300.00             
Water service fee ‐ courtesy, three (3) days maximum, non‐refundable 50.00               
Penalty for non‐payment for each meter scheduled for disconnection: 50.00               

Hydrant meters, monthly fee 48.94                47.75               
Per 1,000 gallons 3.09                   3.02                  
Charge for failure to bring meter in for reading 50.00               

Swimming pool ‐ fee for fire department to fill pools, plus charge for water used as stated above 25.00               
Deposit 993.00             
Permit fee 120.00             

34.4212 Water meters:
Three‐fourths inch 682.73              565.00             
One inch 1,115.46           820.00             
One and one half inch, plus flange kit 1,290.00           1,287.00          
Two inch, plus flange kit 1,490.00           1,465.00          
Three inch 1,885.00           1,725.00          
Four inch 3,275.00           2,950.00          
Six inch 5,650.00           5,210.00          

9 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

Eight inch 9,135.00           8,425.00          
Ten inch 11,810.00        10,840.00       

Water meters ‐ Fire line:
Four inch F2 compact 7,295.00           7,275.00          
Six inch F2 compact 9,695.00           9,675.00          
Eight inch F2 Fire Service 15,375.00        14,080.00       
Ten inch F2 Fire line 20,720.00        19,400.00       

MXU Radio Read Fee: per meter  160.00              150.00             

Replace damaged MXU 160.00              150.00             
(No charge for first device replacement)

34.4214 Water meter repair parts/repair fees:
Dual check for 3/4" meter 70.00                49.50               
Star 3/4" 47.96                34.75               
Iron lid for 3/4" box 31.80                30.00               
3/4" meter 145.00              140.00             
3/4" box (includes brass and recessed lids) 419.77              335.00             

Dual check for 1" meter 113.74              67.50               
Ball valve for 1" meter ‐                     77.50               
Star 1" 80.58                55.35               
Iron lid for 1" 66.00                50.00               
1" meter 230.00              195.00             
1" box (includes brass and recessed lids) 691.14              545.00             
Sensor wire 26.00                22.00               
MXU mushroom lid housing assembly 30.50                ‐                    

34.4255 Sewer rates *
Residential, single family dwelling units, condominium, townhouses and apartments, per unit, per month:

Base charge 14.67                14.31               
Per 1,000 gallons 3.79                   3.70                  
Unmetered residences or residences on private waterwells, flat rate, per month 31.07                30.31               

Commercial, per month
Base charge 48.94                47.75               

10 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

0‐5,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 3.79                   3.70                  
Over 5,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.22                   4.12                  

Hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing homes, per month, per room
Base charge 6.52                   6.36                  
First 3,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 3.79                   3.70                  
Over 3,000 gallons, per 1,000 gallons 4.23                   4.12                  

Multi‐family on master meter
Base charge, per unit 14.67                14.31               
Per 1,000 gallons 3.79                   3.70                  

Senior Rate
Base charge 12.42                12.12               
Per 1,000 gallons 2.96                   2.89                  

Industrial
Domestic strength sewage ‐ rate same as commercial
Industrial strength sewage ‐ rates to be negotiated
Municipal ‐ rates to be negotiated

Septic tank companies ‐ dumping fee, per 1000 gallons ‐ effective 6‐1‐19 150.00             
Reuse water, per 1000 gallons 0.75                  

*2.5% increase effective every January 1st

11 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

34.6000 OTHER FEES

34.6410 Background Check Fees 30.00               

34.7000 CULTURE AND RECREATION

34.7500 Recreation program fees:
Youth Sports:
Online Resident fee 40.00               
Walk‐in Resident fee 45.00               
Online Non‐Resident fee 85.00               
Walk‐in Non‐Resident fee 90.00               
Late registration fee 10.00               

Adult Sports:
Basketball ‐ Team Registration 400.00             

34.7500 Gymnastics and Tumbling:
Online fee 40.00               
Walk‐in fee 45.00               

34.7500 Dance:
10 years old and under 50.00               
10 years old or older 60.00               

34.7800 Leisure Services ‐ Senior Citizens:
Membership fee ‐ non Pooler/Bloomingdale residents ‐ quarterly fee 25.00               

34.9000 OTHER CHARGES FOR SERVICES NOT INCLUDED ABOVE

34.9000 Returned check charge 35.00               

34.9100 Cemetery Fees:
Burial Administrative Fee 75.00               

34.9900 Convenience Fee ‐ online utility payments 3.50%

12 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

37 CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS FROM PRIVATE SOURCES

37.1000 Tree Fund Contributions
Payment in lieu for tree replacement, removal of significant trees (per Sec. 42‐198) 2,000.00          
Payment in lieu for tree replacement, commercial and industrial hardship alternative (per Sec. 42‐199) 475.00             

37.1001 Tap‐in fees ‐ Water (does not include cost of meter):
Three‐fourths by five‐eighths inch meter (single family residential) 500.00             
One inch meter 500.00             
One and one‐half inch meter or two inch meter, plus $150 per unit 500.00             
Three inch meter, plus $150 per unit 1,250.00          
Four inch meter, plus $150 per unit 2,500.00          
Six inch meter, plus $150 per unit 4,700.00          
Eight inch meter, plus $150 per unit 5,800.00          
Ten inch meter, plus $150.00 per unit 6,900.00          

Hotels, motels, inns, initial connection expansion, plus $150 per room 4,500.00          

Restaurants:
Freestanding, plus $140 per seat 2,500.00          
Buildout / Hotel restaurant, per seat 125.00             

Service Stations:
Service stations, no facilities 2,500.00          
With car washing facilities 4,500.00          
Car wash only 4,000.00          

Office, retail, shops, other commercial establishments:
Three‐fourths inch meter 500.00             
One inch meter 500.00             
One and one‐half inch meter or two inch meter 500.00             
Two inch meter ‐ plus $10.00 per 1,000 gallons of anticipated water use over 8,000 gallons, per month 500.00             

13 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

Industrial:
Three‐fourths by five‐eighths inch meter 500.00             
One inch meter 500.00             
One and one‐half inch meter or two inch meter 500.00             
Three inch meter 1,250.00          
Four inch meter 2,500.00          
Six inch meter 4,700.00          
Eight inch meter, plus $10.00 per 1,000 gallons of anticipated water use over 8,000 gallons, per month 5,800.00          

37.1002 Tap‐in fees ‐ Sewer:
Single family and multi‐family residential, per unit 500.00             
Commercial/industrial, plus $10.00 per 1,000 gallons of anticipated water use over 8,000 gallons per month 500.00             
Special commercial ‐ hotels, motels, hospitals, nursing homes, plus $75.00 per room 500.00             

Capital Cost Recovery Fees (per ERU):
37.1004 1998 GEFA Loan (Savannah Quarters) 1,666.00          
37.1005 2003 GEFA Loan (Morgan Tract, Morgan Pines, Oglethorpe Square) 3,400.00          
37.1006 2005 GEFA Loan (Hunt Club) 1,830.00          
37.1006 2005 GEFA Loan (Morgan Lakes) 1,780.00          

Capital Cost Recovery Fees (per ERU):
37.1007 City of Savannah 1,415.00          

Godley Station area north end Pooler Pkwy
JACP Properties
Capallo Family (Hunt Club)
Morgan Lakes
Savannah Quarters area south end of Pooler Pkwy

37.1008 Wastewater treatment plant capital cost recovery fee per gallon 13.58               
per ERU 4,074.00          

14 of 15



Printed: 2/14/2024

CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FEES 2024 Fee 2023 Fee

38 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

38.1000 RENTS AND ROYALITES

38.1000 Picnic shelter rental (in Sangrena Woods):
Deposit ‐ refundable once key is returned and no damage found 50.00               
Rental fee (per day ‐ Pooler Resident) 200.00             
Rental fee (per day ‐ Non  Resident) 300.00             

38.1000 Recreation park rental fees:
Complex @ 200 Preston Stokes Drive, per field, weekdays beginning 5:00 p.m. or later 75.00               
Complex @ 200 Preston Stokes Drive, per field, Saturday/Sunday/weekdays prior to 5:00 p.m. 150.00             
Complex @ 900 S. Rogers Street), per field, per day 100.00             
Pitching machines, per machine, per day 25.00               

38.1000 Standard Specifications CD 75.00               

38.9001 Excavation permit 35.00               

15 of 15



 

 

1 

 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Zoning Map Amendment for Clear Lake Reserve Lot 5 

 

Project:  #231730 

P&Z Meeting Date:  January 22, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC (Adam Bryant) 

Location (Address):  Clear Lake Way (Clear Lake Reserve, Lot 5) 

Parcel (PIN):  51011F 01005 

Existing Zoning:  C-2 

   

Zoning Action:  Zoning Map Amendment 

Request:  Request to rezone the subject site from C-2 to R-3-C 

   

Application Filed:  December 12, 2023 

Legal Notice Published:  January 21, 2024 

Sign Posted:  January 10, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  January 10, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   

Background:  The subject site is approximately 14.845 acres located in Clear Lake 

Reserve.  The subject site is centrally located within the 



  

2 

development and bounded by Kita Ave, E Marketplace, and Clear 

Lake Way.  The site is undeveloped and presently wooded.   

The applicant is requesting to rezone from C-2 to R-3-C for a 

multifamily development.  Under the requested zoning, a maximum 

of 296 units would be permitted for multi-family.   

Clear Lake Reserve is centrally located along Pooler Parkway 

approximately halfway between US Highway 80 and I-16.  It is a 

mixed-use development with a variety of commercial and residential 

uses planned, permitted, and under construction.  The residential 

components are located to the south of the subject site off of Clear 

Lake Way.  The only active commercial use, a retail shopping plaza, 

is located across the subject site on E Marketplace Way.   

The Pooler 2040 Comprehensive Plan includes this area within the 

Residential character area.  The FLUM designates this area as 

Residential. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which 

would improve the pattern of uses in the general area? 

• In part, yes, this would be a logical extension of an 

existing zoning boundary.  The residential component 

of Clear Lake Reserve (360 Communities) is zoned R-

3-C.  This request would then be an extension of that 

same zoning district.  The larger portion of the 

residential zone is separated by commercial frontage 

that generally is not usable for commercial 

development (wetlands or drainage ponds).  Because 

of this, the rezoning would serve to improve the 

pattern of potential uses for the residential 

components where there is a transition from 

commercial to higher intensity residential to less 

intense residential uses throughout the development. 

2. Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing 

zoning or the pattern of development of the area?  

• No, the request would entail extension of existing 

zoning districts.  Likewise, the request is of a 

substantial enough size to exist on its own.  Further, 

the request is consistent with the recommendations of 

the 2040 Comp Plan as the area is designed as 

residential in the FLUM and Character Area map. 

3. Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses 

permissible under the zoning sought traverse established 



  

3 

single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to 

congestion, noise, and traffic hazards? 

• The proposed use would be located off a major 

roadway and corridors designed and intended for 

higher levels of traffic.  The proposed use would not 

traverse through residential neighborhoods but 

through a mostly commercial development. 

4. Will this request place irreversible limitations on the area as it 

is or on future plans for it? 

• No, the FLUM designates this area for residential 

development.  Likewise, the proposed zoning districts 

would be compatible and consistent with the existing 

districts and uses found within the general area.  

Further, Clear Lake Reserve is designed and intended 

as a mixed-use development with a variety of uses. 

5. Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property 

likely to be used for the use requested? 

• There is a need for additional housing within the City 

as commercial development and growth in the larger 

region continues.  The master developer of Clear Lake 

Reserve appears to have an intended user for the site 

with the intent to develop the site for multifamily 

residential. 

6. Will the proposed use substantially conflict with existing 

density patterns in the zone or neighborhood? 

• No, the proposed multifamily residential use would not 

be in conflict with the existing development pattern 

and would complement the nearby residential and 

commercial development. 

7. Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which 

would generate or accelerate adverse land use changes in the 

zone or neighborhood? 

• It is unlikely that additional requests for R-3-C would 

occur within the area.  Most of the other sites are not 

conducive to multifamily uses and are suitable for 

commercial or retail.  Likewise, potential land use 

impacts related to multifamily development are less 

than those that would occur with commercial 

development. 

8. Will the action adversely impact adjacent or nearby properties 

in terms of: 

o Environmental quality or livability resulting from the 

introduction of uses or activities which would create traffic, 

noise, odor or visual hazards or the reduction of light and 



  

4 

air that is incompatible with the established development 

pattern? 

• No, the proposed use would not affect the surrounding 

development or properties.  Any potential traffic issues 

would need to be addressed as part of the site plan 

process in order for the use to be established.   

o Property values, by rendering such properties less suitable 

and therefore less marketable for the type of development 

to which they are committed or restricted in order to 

promote the public welfare and protect the established 

development pattern? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 

properties as it relates to property values or make 

them less marketable.  Additionally, because the 

property is surrounded by right-of-way, the subject 

site would not abut any commercial tracts, thereby 

negating any potential required buffers for future 

commercial development. 

o Will the action create development opportunities of such 

increased intensity that stormwater runoff from the site 

cannot be controlled within previous limits, with [which] 

results in adverse impacts upon existing down-stream 

drainage problems or potential problems? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 

properties as it relates to stormwater runoff. Any large 

site development proposed in the City will need to go 

through site plan review and approval to ensure items 

such as stormwater runoff are addressed on site so 

that down-stream drainage or off-site impacts do not 

occur. 

9. Will the action result in public service requirements such as 

provision of utilities or safety services which, because of the 

location or scale of the development, cannot be provided on 

an economic basis and therefore would create an actual 

burden to the public? 

• No, the proposed rezoning would not result in public 

service requirements that could create a burden on the 

public.  Any potential infrastructure improvements 

related to this development would be the responsibility 

of the developer and would not place a burden on the 

City. 

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request complies with the required criteria for a 

zoning map amendment.  As such, staff recommends Approval of 

the request. 



  

5 

   

Attachments:  
A. Vicinity Map 

B. Clear Lake Reserve Map 

C. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231730 -
Clear Lake

Reserve Rezoning
01/17/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231730 -
Clear Lake

Reserve Rezoning
01/17/2024

 Parcels
PET PARADISE

CHATHAM SUBARU

RETAIL CENTER

360 COMMUNITIES

ATTACHMENT B



Clear Lake Vista - Pooler, GA

VISTA RESIDENTIAL PARTNERS | DECEMBER 8, 2023 | DRAFT 

Conceptual Site Plan 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY:

APARTMENTS: 300 UNITS
8 BLDGS AT 3-STORIES EACH

CLUBHOUSE: 6,000 SF (FREE-STANDING)

PROPOSED UNIT MIX:
UNIT TYPE # OF UNITS UNIT MIX
1BR 150 50.00%
2BR 126 42.00%
3BR 24 8.00%
TOTAL 300 UNITS 100%

PARKING: 514 SPACES (SURFACE)
PARKING RATIO: 1.72 SP/UNIT (0.90 SP/BED)
ZONING MINIMUM PARKING: 525 SPACES

700700
51 UNITS51 UNITS

30
0

30
0

30
 U

N
IT

S
30

 U
N

IT
S

80
0

80
0

30
 U

N
IT

S
30

 U
N

IT
S

200200
36 UNITS36 UNITS

100100
51 UNITS51 UNITS

400400
30 UNITS30 UNITS

500500
36 UNITS36 UNITS

600
60036 UNITS

36 UNITS

CLUBCLUB

POOLPOOL

BOCCEBOCCE
COURTSCOURTS

DOG DOG 
PARKPARK

GUEST &GUEST &
LEASINGLEASING 
PARKINGPARKING

ENTRYENTRY 
GATESGATES

ENTRYENTRY 
GATESGATES

PAVPAV

SECONDARYSECONDARY
ENTRANCEENTRANCE

COMPACTORCOMPACTOR

CAR WASH / MAINTCAR WASH / MAINT

MAIN ENTRANCEMAIN ENTRANCE

SITE DATA: 

PARCEL AREA: +/- 14.84 ACRES

0’ 200’100’50’

N

CLEAR LAKE WAYCLEAR LAKE WAY

E MARKETPLACE WAYE MARKETPLACE WAY

K
IT

A
 A

V
E

K
IT

A
 A

V
E

ATTACHMENT C











1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Zoning Map Amendment for Warnell Tract 

Project: #231710 

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024 

Public Hearing Date: February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Port I-95, LLC (Robert McCorkle) 

Location (Address): Demott Drive (accessed via Bloomingdale from Jimmy DeLoach) 

Parcel (PIN): 51015 01032 

Existing Zoning: PUD [Wynn-Capallo] 

Zoning Action: Zoning Map Amendment 

Request: Request to rezone the subject site from PUD to I-2 

Application Filed: December 8, 2023 

Legal Notice Published: January 18, 2024 

Sign Posted: January 10, 2024 

Letters Mailed: January 12, 2024 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

• In the event Council finds the requested zoning to be too

intense, Staff recommends approval of I-1 (Light Industrial)

as it would be an extension of the adjacent industrial zoning

within Pooler.

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 



  

2 

   

Background:  The subject site is approximately 63 acres located in the Wynn-

Capallo PUD.  The subject site is located along the City’s boundary 

with Bloomingdale along Jimmy DeLoach Blvd.  The property is 

accessible through Bloomingdale off Demott Drive. 

The applicant is requesting to rezone from PUD to I-2 (Heavy 

Industrial) for trucking and logistics uses.  The property is adjacent 

to an industrial park in Bloomingdale that is similarly zoned and 

utilized.  The property is not visible from any Pooler properties or 

roadways.  The surrounding area is forested wetlands.  The adjacent 

Pooler properties are either undeveloped (wetlands) or an industrial 

use. 

The Pooler 2040 Comprehensive Plan includes this area within the 

Industrial character area.  The FLUM designates this area as 

Industrial. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which 

would improve the pattern of uses in the general area? 

• In part, yes, this would be a logical extension of an 

existing zoning boundary.  The property is generally 

landlocked except through the neighboring parcel in 

Bloomindale.  Any access from Pooler would have to 

be through wetlands, which would unfeasible.  

Likewise, the zoning would allow for the limited 

amount of uplands to be utilized in a similar manner 

as the adjacent property. 

2. Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing 

zoning or the pattern of development of the area?  

• No, the adjacent properties are of a similar zoning of 

I-1.  Likewise, the request is of a substantial enough 

size to exist on its own.  Further, the request is 

consistent with the recommendations of the 2040 

Comp Plan as the area is designed as residential in the 

FLUM and Character Area map. 

3. Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses 

permissible under the zoning sought traverse established 

single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to 

congestion, noise, and traffic hazards? 

• The proposed use would be located off a major 

roadway and corridors designed and intended for 

higher levels of traffic, specifically industrial uses.  The 



  

3 

proposed use would not traverse through residential 

neighborhoods. 

4. Will this request place irreversible limitations on the area as it 

is or on future plans for it? 

• No, the FLUM designates this area for industrial 

development.  Likewise, the proposed zoning district 

would be compatible and consistent with the existing 

districts and uses found within the general area.  

Further, the property is zoned within the PUD for future 

development (unassigned) and the request would 

allow for utilization of the property. 

5. Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property 

likely to be used for the use requested? 

• The property is likely to be utilized as requested.  The 

property owner is intending to expand the existing use 

on the adjacent property and in order to do so would 

need this property zoned accordingly. 

6. Will the proposed use substantially conflict with existing 

density patterns in the zone or neighborhood? 

• Potentially, while the surrounding properties are zoned 

industrial, they are zoned as I-1 (including the 

Bloomingdale property per the zoning map on their 

webpage).  The I-2 district could allow for more 

intense development than the I-1 district, the primary 

difference is the use permissions allowed. 

7. Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which 

would generate or accelerate adverse land use changes in the 

zone or neighborhood? 

• It is unlikely to see additional requests such as this or 

accelerate adverse land use changes in the area.  

Generally all other properties in this area are zoned 

and developed.  The only potential requests would only 

likely be more a new use or more favorable use 

permission to an otherwise permitted use. 

8. Will the action adversely impact adjacent or nearby properties 

in terms of: 

o Environmental quality or livability resulting from the 

introduction of uses or activities which would create traffic, 

noise, odor or visual hazards or the reduction of light and 

air that is incompatible with the established development 

pattern? 

• No, the proposed use would not affect the surrounding 

development or properties.  Any potential traffic issues 

would need to be addressed as part of the site plan 



  

4 

process in order for the use to be established.  

Likewise, this property would be accessed through the 

City of Bloomingdale from the adjacent property. 

o Property values, by rendering such properties less suitable 

and therefore less marketable for the type of development 

to which they are committed or restricted in order to 

promote the public welfare and protect the established 

development pattern? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 

properties as it relates to property values or make 

them less marketable. 

o Will the action create development opportunities of such 

increased intensity that stormwater runoff from the site 

cannot be controlled within previous limits, with [which] 

results in adverse impacts upon existing down-stream 

drainage problems or potential problems? 

• No, the request would not adversely impact the nearby 

properties as it relates to stormwater runoff. Any large 

site development proposed in the City will need to go 

through site plan review and approval to ensure items 

such as stormwater runoff are addressed on site so 

that down-stream drainage or off-site impacts do not 

occur. 

9. Will the action result in public service requirements such as 

provision of utilities or safety services which, because of the 

location or scale of the development, cannot be provided on 

an economic basis and therefore would create an actual 

burden to the public? 

• No, the proposed rezoning would not result in public 

service requirements that could create a burden on the 

public.  Any potential infrastructure improvements 

related to this development would be the responsibility 

of the developer and would not place a burden on the 

City. 

   

Conclusion:  Staff finds the request complies with the required criteria for a 

zoning map amendment.  As such, staff recommends Approval of 

the request. 

   

Attachments:  
A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231710 -
Warnell Tract

Rezoning
02/07/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231710 -
Warnell Tract

Rezoning
02/07/2024

 Parcels

 Business/Commercial

 Industrial

 PUD

 Residential





ATTACHMENT B

ndixon
Line

ndixon_1
Line







ndixon_2
Line















1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Request for a Place of Worship at 1324 S Rogers St 

Project: #231760 

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024

Public Hearing Date: February 20, 2024

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Rev. Frankie Smith, True Vine Harvest Ministries Inc 

Location (Address): 1324 S Rogers St 

Parcel (PIN): 51011 02037A and 02043 

Existing Zoning: R-1-A (One Family Residential)

Zoning Action: Conditional Use 

Request: Request to establish a place of worship 

Application Filed: December 15, 2023 

Legal Notice Published: January 18, 2024 

Sign Posted: January 18, 2024 

Letters Mailed: January 12, 2024 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z disagreed with staff and recommends disapproval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

Background: The subject site is approximately 6.8 acres with frontage on S 

Rogers St.  The site comprises two parcels.  The main parcel has a 



  

2 

residence and an accessory structure, and the other is generally 

undeveloped.  The surrounding properties are all zoned R-1-A and 

consist of residences or undeveloped property.  This is another place 

of worship located approximately 900’ south of the subject site on 

S Rogers St. 

The applicant is requesting to develop a place of worship at the site 

with an associated recreational building (gymnasium).  The intent is 

to convert the residence into a parsonage for the church and use 

the accessory structure as a storage building.  The main days of use 

of the property would be Sundays along with Tuesday through 

Thursdays.   

Sec. 24 of Art. III, App. A provides specific criteria related to places 

of worship.  One requirement sets forth a setback from property 

lines (except a right-of-way) of 50’ for a place of worship and 

associated structures.  Another requires places of worship only be 

permitted on a site that abuts a collector or arterial street.   

The lot and proposed concept layout would allow for the setback 

requirements to be met for the sanctuary and recreational building; 

however, Council would need to authorize a reduced setback for the 

proposed parsonage and storage building as they would not be 50’ 

from the side setbacks.  S Rogers St is considered a minor arterial 

roadway and satisfies the road classification criteria. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. III, Sec. 24 – Churches and Other Places of Worship 

App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purpose of this 

ordinance. 

• The proposed use would be consistent with the 

surrounding residential uses and other development.  

The proposed use would be consistent with the 

purpose of the ordinance for places of worship 

development and uses in the R-1-A zoning district. 

2. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or 

development of adjacent properties or the general 

neighborhood or adversely affect the health and safety of 

residents and workers.  

• The proposed use would not be detrimental to adjacent 

properties or surrounding areas.  The proposed use is 

an allowed use within the R-1-A district and would be 

similar to the other place of worship located nearby.   

3. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard 

because of the number of persons who will attend or use such 

facility, vehicular movement acquainted with the use, noise or 



  

3 

fumes generated by or as a result of the use, or type of 

physical activity associated with the land use. 

• The proposed use is consistent and compatible with 

existing uses nearby and those otherwise allowed in 

the district and would not constitute a nuisance or 

hazard.  The use would have to meet all site plan 

standards as part of the development of the site. 

4. The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the 

existing uses of adjacent properties. 

• The proposed use will not be affected adversely by 

the existing uses of adjacent properties as the 

proposed use is similar and compatible with existing 

uses. 

5. The proposed use will be placed on a lot which is of sufficient 

size to satisfy the space requirements of said use. 

• The subject site is of sufficient size to satisfy all site 

design requirements for the use.  

6. The parking and all development standards set forth for each 

particular use for which a permit may be granted will be met. 

• The proposed concept layout satisfies the various 

development requirements for the proposed use.  A 

site plan will be required in order for development to 

move forward. 

7. The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering such 

properties less suitable and therefore less marketable for the 

type of development to which they are committed or restricted 

in order to promote the public welfare and protect the 

established development pattern. 

• The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering 

such properties less suitable and therefore less 

marketable for the type of development to which they 

are committed or restricted in order to promote the 

public welfare and protect the established 

development pattern. 

   

Conclusion:  The request complies with the required criteria for a conditional use.  

As such, staff recommends Approval of the request. 

   



  

4 

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231760 -
1324 S Rogers St

02/07/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





ATTACHMENT B

ndixon_3
Line

ndixon_4
Line

ndixon_5
Line

ndixon_6
Line

ndixon_7
Line







ndixon_8
Line

ndixon_9
Line









 

 

1 

 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse expansion at 125 Coleman Blvd 

 

 

Project:  #231761 

P&Z Meeting Date:  February 12, 2024 

Public Hearing Date:  February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Thomas & Hutton (Agent) 

Location (Address):  125 Coleman Blvd 

Parcel (PIN):  50985 04075 

Existing Zoning: 
 

I-1 (Light Industrial)  

   

Zoning Action:  Conditional Use 

Request:  Request to expand an existing warehouse. 

   

Application Filed:  December 14, 2023 

Legal Notice Published:  January 18, 2024 

Sign Posted:  January 18, 2024 

Letters Mailed:  January 16, 2024 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Planning & Zoning Commission:  P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   



  

2 

Background:  The subject site is approximately 7.21 acres with access from 

Coleman Blvd.  The site has an existing warehouse of approximately 

101,100 sf.   

The applicant is requesting to expand the existing warehouse by 

approximately 40,000 sf. As the Warehousing and Storage (493) 

use is a conditional use, any expansion of such use requires a 

conditional use approval. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Sec. 4 – Conditional Uses 

App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purpose of this 

ordinance. 

• The proposed use would be consistent with 

surrounding uses, which includes other warehouses 

and similar uses.  The proposed use would be 

consistent with the purpose of the ordinance for 

industrial development. 

2. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or 

development of adjacent properties or the general 

neighborhood or adversely affect the health and safety of 

residents and workers.  

• The proposed use would not be detrimental to adjacent 

properties or surrounding areas.  The proposed use is 

an existing use at this site and expands the footprint.  

The use is an allowed use within the I-1 District and 

would be similar to the other warehousing and 

industrial uses nearby.   

3. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard 

because of the number of persons who will attend or use such 

facility, vehicular movement acquainted with the use, noise or 

fumes generated by or as a result of the use, or type of 

physical activity associated with the land use. 

• The proposed use is consistent and compatible with 

existing uses nearby and those otherwise allowed in 

the district and would not constitute a nuisance or 

hazard. 

4. The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the 

existing uses of adjacent properties. 

• The proposed use will not be affected adversely by 

the existing uses of adjacent properties as the 



  

3 

proposed use is similar and compatible with existing 

uses. 

5. The proposed use will be placed on a lot which is of sufficient 

size to satisfy the space requirements of said use. 

• The subject site is of sufficient size to satisfy all site 

design requirements for the use.  

6. The parking and all development standards set forth for each 

particular use for which a permit may be granted will be met. 

• The proposed concept layout satisfies the various 

development requirements for the proposed use. 

7. The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering such 

properties less suitable and therefore less marketable for the 

type of development to which they are committed or restricted 

in order to promote the public welfare and protect the 

established development pattern. 

• The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering 

such properties less suitable and therefore less 

marketable for the type of development to which they 

are committed or restricted in order to promote the 

public welfare and protect the established 

development pattern. 

   

Conclusion:  The request complies with the required criteria for a conditional use.  

As such, staff recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231761 -
125 Coleman Blvd

02/07/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





ATTACHMENT B

ndixon_10
Line

ndixon_11
Line

ndixon_12
Line

ndixon_13
Line

ndixon_14
Line







ndixon_15
Line





N/F
JCB INC.

PIN: 5-0985-04-042
1008 E U.S. HWY. 80

ZONING: I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

N/F
JCB INC.

PIN: 5-0985-04-042
1008 E U.S. HWY. 80

ZONING: I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

EXISTING WAREHOUSE
101,100 SF
FFE: 20.3

EXISTING DRAINAGE CANAL
BOTTOM: 11.00'

TOP:17.00'
3:1 SIDE SLOPES (TYP.)

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 B
O

UL
EV

A
RD

10
0'

 C
ITY

 O
F 

SA
V

A
N

N
A

H 
R/

W

N/F
112 COLEMAN BOULEVARD, LLC.

PIN: 5-0985-04-018
112 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

ZONING: I-H HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

N/F
VHC, INC.

PIN: 2-0985-04-017
118 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

ZONING: I-H HEAVY INDUSTRIAL

EXISTING ADJACENT DRIVEWAY

N/F
125 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

LLC
PIN: 5-0985-04-075

125 COLEMAN BOULEVARD
ZONING: I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

 -
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
LY

12/12/2023

http://www.thomasandhutton.com


N/F
JCB INC.

PIN: 5-0985-04-042
1008 E U.S. HWY. 80

N/F
125 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

LLC
PIN: 5-0985-04-075

125 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

EXISTING WAREHOUSE
101,100 SF
FFE: 20.3

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 B
O

UL
EV

A
RD

10
0'

 C
ITY

 O
F 

SA
V

A
N

N
A

H 
R/

W

N/F
112 COLEMAN BOULEVARD, LLC.

PIN: 5-0985-04-018
112 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

N/F
VHC, INC.

PIN: 2-0985-04-017
118 COLEMAN BOULEVARD

BUILDING EXPANSION
39,941 SF
FFE: 20.3

50 Park of Commerce Way
 Savannah, GA  31405  •  912.234.5300

www.thomasandhutton.com

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

 -
 F

O
R

 R
E

V
IE

W
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

N
LY

12/12/2023

http://www.thomasandhutton.com


1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Conditional Use Request for an Auto Body Repair at 800 Clear Lake Way 

Project: #231762 

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024 

Public Hearing Date: February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Thomas & Hutton (Agent) 

Location (Address): 800 Clear Lake Way 

Parcel (PIN): 51011F 01022 

Existing Zoning: C-2 (Heavy Commercial)

Zoning Action: Conditional Use 

Request: Request to establish and Auto Body Repair and Paint use 

Application Filed: December 14, 2023 

Legal Notice Published: January 18, 2024 

Sign Posted: January 18, 2024 

Letters Mailed: January 29, 2024 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z disagreed with staff and recommends disapproval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

Background: The subject site is approximately 1.9 acres with frontage on Clear 

Lake Way.  The site is generally undeveloped.  The neighboring lot 



  

2 

is the location of the recently approved American Pet Resort.  The 

under-construction Chatham Subaru is also located nearby. 

The applicant is requesting approval for the development and 

operation of an auto body repair and paint facility.  The proposed 

building is approximately 12,500 sf.  The hours of operation as listed 

as 7:30am through 5:30pm, Monday through Friday.  All repair 

activities will be conducted indoors and screened from public view. 

Relevant Ordinances:  App. A, Art. IV, Sec. 4 – Conditional Uses 

App. A, Art. IV, Table 4.1: Allowed Uses by Zoning District 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. The proposed use will not be contrary to the purpose of this 

ordinance. 

• The proposed use would be consistent with 

surrounding uses at this time, which include a pet 

resort and car dealership.  The proposed use would be 

consistent with the purpose of the ordinance for 

commercial development. 

2. The proposed use will not be detrimental to the use or 

development of adjacent properties or the general 

neighborhood or adversely affect the health and safety of 

residents and workers.  

• The proposed use would not be detrimental to adjacent 

properties or surrounding areas.  The proposed use is 

an allowed use within the C-2 district and would be 

similar to the other commercial uses nearby, 

particularly the Chatham Subaru. 

3. The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard 

because of the number of persons who will attend or use such 

facility, vehicular movement acquainted with the use, noise or 

fumes generated by or as a result of the use, or type of 

physical activity associated with the land use. 

• The proposed use is consistent and compatible with 

existing uses nearby and those otherwise allowed in 

the district and would not constitute a nuisance or 

hazard. 

4. The proposed use will not be affected adversely by the 

existing uses of adjacent properties. 

• The proposed use will not be affected adversely by 

the existing uses of adjacent properties as the 

proposed use is similar and compatible with existing 

uses. 



  

3 

5. The proposed use will be placed on a lot which is of sufficient 

size to satisfy the space requirements of said use. 

• The subject site is of sufficient size to satisfy all site 

design requirements for the use.  

6. The parking and all development standards set forth for each 

particular use for which a permit may be granted will be met. 

• The proposed concept layout satisfies the various 

development requirements for the proposed use. 

7. The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering such 

properties less suitable and therefore less marketable for the 

type of development to which they are committed or restricted 

in order to promote the public welfare and protect the 

established development pattern. 

• The action will not adversely impact adjacent or nearby 

properties in terms of property values, by rendering 

such properties less suitable and therefore less 

marketable for the type of development to which they 

are committed or restricted in order to promote the 

public welfare and protect the established 

development pattern. 

   

Conclusion:  The request complies with the required criteria for a conditional use.  

As such, staff recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231762 -
800 Clear Lake

Way
02/07/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





Bret Flory

1255 W 15th St Suite 125

Plano TX 75013

972  467 - 9749

Melissa Hernandez

972  214-2543

mhernandez@
crossarchitects.com

C-2

Clear Lake Way and Kita Ave (Parcel # 51011F01004)

We are requesting approval of Conditional Use Permit to allow operation of an Auto Body
Paint & Repair Shop.

Vacant Lot

Hours of Operation. 7:30 a.m. – 5:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. All repair activities will be
conducted in-doors and completely screened from public view.

(site and building) will be designed by licensed Architects/Engineers who are thoroughly versed in Body
Shop Designs. Interior Lighting, HVAC Ventilation, and Storm Sewer oil/sand interceptors shall be properly
placed to facility safe conditions within and outside the entire property. These designs shall receive City of
Pooler  Plan Review/Permit Approval to ensure structural, life safety, ADA and Building Code compliance
for the proposed operations

The proposed facility

Proposed date of Construction: June 2024, Date of Completion/Use Opening: February 2025

Pooler Parkway of GA, LLC

Pooler GA 31322

ATTACHMENT B

ndixon_16
Line

ndixon_17
Line

ndixon_18
Line

ndixon_19
Line

ndixon_20
Line







(972) 467-9749

ndixon_21
Line

ndixon_22
Line





KITA AVE.

C
LE

AR
 L

AK
E 

W
AY

CC PROPERTY LINE 300.00' (+\-)

CC PROPERTY LINE 300.00' (+\-)

C
C

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
14

6.
03

' (
+\

-)
C

C
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

14
3.

88
' (

+\
-)

C
C

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
85

.4
9'

 (+
\-)

C
C

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
C

1

C
C

 P
R

O
PE

R
TY

 L
IN

E
87

.6
4'

 (+
\-)

15' BUILDING SETBACK

60
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

15' BUILDING SETBACK

25
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

15
' U

TI
LI

TY
 S

ET
BA

C
K

ELEC PANEL

ELEC PANEL

CALIBER
COLLISION

123 PROTOTYPE
1.91 ± ACRES

  16 CUSTOMER PARKING
45 STORAGE PARKING

6

5

19

5

16

10

9.00'

18
.0

0'
24

.0
0'

2.
00

'

5.
00

'

9.
00

'

18.00'
24.00'

38.94'

5.00'

9.00'

18
.0

0'
24

.0
0'

5.
00

'

9.00'

18
.0

0'

9.
00

'

18.00' 20.00'

24.00'
7.00'

9.00'

18
.0

0'

1 SITE PLAN
1" = 20'-0"

ACREAGE TOTAL =

PROPOSED HEIGHT =

1.91

PARKING CALCULATIONS

BICYCLE CALCULATIONS

SITE DATA

TBD

OFFICE @ 1:XXX REQ'D =

SHOP @ 1:XXX REQ'D =

MAX. HEIGHT =

  18    CITY TOTAL REQUIRED (18 BAYS)     =

TOTAL BUILDING SQ.FT. =

SHOP FLOOR SQ.FT. =

OFFICE SQ. FT. =

SETBACKS:

FRONT: TBD REAR: TBD SIDES: TBD

TBD

TBD

OFFICE @ 5% OF 10 =

SHOP @ 5% OF 47 =

TBDCITY TOTAL REQUIRED =

TBD

61TOTAL PARKING SHOWN =

0TOTAL BICYCLE SHOWN =

ZONING TBD

USE TBD

WATER TBD

SEWER TBD

N/A

PARCEL CONTROL NUMBER:

FLOOD ZONE 'X' (OUTSIDE 500 YEAR PLAIN)

KITA AVE. & CLEAR LAKE PKWY.
POOLER, GA.

BRET FLORY
1913 GARDENGROVE COURT

PLANO, TEXAS 75075
PH: 972.467.9749

23.09.26DATE:PROJECT #:DRAWN: SCHESGM

00

GRAPHIC SCALE (IN FEET)
1 INCH =       FT.

20 40

20

TBD

TBD

SITE DATA (123)

12,475 SQ. FT. ±

 1,698 SQ. FT. ±

 10,777 SQ. FT. ±

CALIBER COLLISION
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 01

McNEEL PROPERTIES

C-2

AUTO BODY PAINT & REPAIR SHOP

PUBLIC

PUBLIC

51011F01004

10' 10'60'

ONE-HALF SPACE FOR EACH GAS PUMP, PLUS
ONE SPACE FOR EACH SERVICE BAY OR SIMILAR
FACILITY

(19 BAYS) 19



 

 

1 

 

  
PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 

Site Plan for 212 E Hwy 80 

 

 

Project:  #221523 

P&Z Meeting Date:  January 22, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date:  February 5, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent:  Mark Boyles (Engineer) / Dr. Toni Sylvester (Applicant) 

Location (Address):  212 E Highway 80 

Parcel (PIN):  50006 13033 

Acreage:  0.97 total – 0.57 disturbed 

Zoning:  C-1 (Light Commercial) / Main Street Overlay 

Proposed Use:  Physician’s office 

   

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission:  P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval. 

Recommended Motion:  “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

   

Zoning Action Standards:  1. Whether the site plan is consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan for the City of Pooler and any other small area plans. 

o The site plan is consistent with the recommendations and 

policies of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan for the FLUM 

designation and Character Area. 

2. Whether the site plan provides for adequate pedestrian and 

traffic access. 



  

2 

o The site plan complies with the provisions for access and 

circulation; Sec. 11 of App. A, Art. V related to traffic 

impacts; and Sec. 2 of App. A, Art. III for traffic access. 

3. Whether the site plan provides for adequate space for off-

street parking and loading/unloading zones where applicable. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of Sec. 5 of 

App. A, Art. III for parking and loading standards. 

4. Whether the site plan provides for the appropriate location, 

arrangement, size, and design of buildings, lighting, and 

signs, giving due consideration to the applicable zoning 

district(s). 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

development standards for commercial development, 

including setbacks, building separation, and height and 

Chapter 74, Art. VI for lighting. 

5. Whether the site plan is appropriate in scale and relation to 

proposed use(s) to one another and those of adjacent 

properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to the 

location of uses/development areas, development 

standards for commercial development, and buffer 

standards. 

6. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by existing or proposed public facilities, including roads, 

water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater infrastructure. 

o The site plan complies with Sec. 606 of App. B, Art. VI; 

Chapter 74, Art. V; and Chapter 42, Art. V related to 

servicing of utilities and infrastructure. 

7. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by other public serves to account for current or projected 

needs. 

o The site is adequately served by any other public services 

for current or projected needs. 

8. Whether the site plan provides adequate protection for 

adjacent properties against noise, glare, unsightliness, or 

other objectionable features. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

buffer and screening standards. 

9. Whether the site plan provides adequate landscaping, 

including type and arrangement of trees, shrubs, and other 



  

3 

landscaping, which may provide a visual or noise-deterring 

buffer between adjacent properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of Chapter 42, 

Art. VI for tree and landscaping requirements, in general, 

and related buffers. 

10. Whether the site plan provides for improvements in 

accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

including without limitation the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Pooler. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the City of 

Pooler Code of Ordinances, specifications, or standards, 

and all other applicable laws. 

   

Conclusion:  The site plan addresses the site plan approval criteria.  As such, staff 

recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

C. Approval Letter 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #221523 -
212 E Hwy 80

Office
01/18/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





Dr Toni Sylvester
(973)220-4399

sylvester.reynolds@gmail.com

NEW OFFICE
PIN #50006 13033
212 East Hwy 80
Pooler Georgia

SHEET INDEX
C1.0--COVER SHEET
C1.1--GENERAL NOTES
C1.2--EXISTING SITE PHOTOGRAPHS
C2.0--ORIGINAL SURVEY & DEMOLITION PLAN
C2.1--SITE PLAN
C2.2--GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
C2.3--UTILITY PLAN
C2.4--EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C3.0--SITE DETAILS
C3.1--SITE DETAILS
C3.2--SITE DETAILS
C3.3--SITE DETAILS
L1.0--LANDSCAPE PLAN
L2.0--LANDSCAPE DETAILS
A1--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
A2--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
A3--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
A4--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
T01--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
T02--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
T11a--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS
T12b--GADOT STANDARD DETAILS

VICINITY MAP

Vince Helmly
(912)429-9395

SURVEYOR

OWNER/DEVELOPER

S. MARK BOYLES, PE, PC
P.O. BOX 22324

SAVANNAH, GA 31403
CONTACT: MARK BOYLES

(912)657-1155
SMBOYLES@BELLSOUTH.NET

ENGINEER

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

C1.0

22-046

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

Cover

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1
11/17/23PER GDOT2

11/17/23

ATTACHMENT B



Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

C1.1
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

General Notes

22-046
10/19/22

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1

11/15/23



C1.2
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Existing Site
Photographs

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046
10/19/22

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

7/19/23



Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

C2.0
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Existing Survey &
Demolition Plan

22-046
2/7/23

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

11/17/23PER GDOT2

11/17/23



C2.1
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Site Plan

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1
11/17/23PER GDOT2

11/17/23



C2.2
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Grading &
Drainage Plan

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1
11/17/23PER GDOT2

11/17/23



C2.3
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Utility Plan

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1

11/15/23



C2.4
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Erosion Control
Plan

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

7/19/23



L1.0
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Landscape Plan

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

11/15/23PER GDOT & POOLER1

11/15/23

attachment b



L2.0
S.M.B.
S.M.B.

Landscape
Details

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Designed by

No. Description Date

S. Mark Boyles, PE, PC

MB
S

22-046

N
ew

 O
ffi

ce

As Shown

Fu
ll 

S
iz

e:
 2

4X
36

21
2 

H
w

y 
80

Po
ol

er
 G

eo
rg

ia

U
nc

tio
n 

U
ro

gy
ne

co
lo

gy
, L

LC

2/7/23

7/19/23

attachment 



DN

UP

W REF.

R 25' - 0"

SCAL
E:

PROJECT NUMBER:

DATE
:

DRAWN 
BY:

CHECKED BY:

1.   This Drawing is the property of Wubbena A&D PC. and is not to be reproduced or copied 
in whole or in part. It is not to be used on any other project and is to be returned on request.

2.   Scales as stated hereon are valid on the original drawings only and are hereby changed in 
proportion to the difference in size between the print and the original drawing.

3.   Do not scale dimensions from prints. Plans and details are not always to scale. 
Use dimensions given or consult the Architect for further clarification.

COPYRIGHT & REPRODUCTION OF DRAWINGS

SHEET NO.

SHEET TITLE

James Wubbena, RA. NCARB
40 Drayson Circle

Bluffton, SC 29910
P - 912 660 5438

jim@wubbenapc.com

1" = 10'-0"

Y
:\
A

R
C

H
IV

E
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
\2

2
0
0
\2

2
1
5
 R

e
y
n
o
ld

s
 O

ff
ic

e
\2

2
1
5
 R

e
y
n
o
ld

s
 O

ff
ic

e
.r

v
t

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

3
 3

:3
4
:0

7
 P

M

C1.2

SITE LIGHTING
PLAN

2215

9/9/2022

MRS

JFW

N
E

W
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
P

A
C

E
 F

O
R

U
N

C
T

IO
N

U
R

O
G

Y
N

E
C

O
L
O

G
Y

 L
L
C

2
1

2
 U

S
 H

W
Y

 8
0

P
O

O
L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3
2

2

Unction
Urogynecology, LLC

1" = 10'-0"C1.2
1 SITE LIGHTING PLAN

REVISIONS

PARKING LOT LIGHT FIXTURE LOCATION

FIXTURE LEGEND

WALL LIGHT FIXTURE LOCATION W/ BATTERY BACKUP

NOTE:
POLE HEIGHT SHALL BE 20FT MAX







M
IN

O
R
 

C
R

O
S

S
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

CURB

ONE WAY

TYPICAL LOCATION OF CROSSWALKS AND STOP BARS

50’
MIN

M
A
J

O
R

C
R

O
S

S
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

50’
DOUBLE YELLOW LINE

MIN. DISTANCE OF SOLID

NO SIDEWALK

5’ MIN. WITH

5" SKIP WHITE

5" SKIP WHITE

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SOLID DOUBLE YELLOW

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP WHITE

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP YELLOW

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP YELLOW

5" SOLID YELLOW

5" SKIP WHITE

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP WHITE 5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP WHITE

25’

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP YELLOW

5" SKIP WHITE

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SOLID WHITE

5" SKIP YELLOW

CROSSWALK  DETAIL

TWO-WAY TRAFFIC WITH A REVERSIBLE CENTER LANE

TWO-WAY TRAFFIC WHERE MOTORISTS IN A SINGLE LANE ARE PERMITTED TO PASS

TWO-WAY TRAFFIC WHERE MOTORISTS IN A SINGLE LANE ARE NOT PERMITTED TO PASS

TWO-LANE, TWO-WAY TRAFFIC WITH PASSING PERMITTED 

MULTI-LANE, TWO-WAY TRAFFIC WITH SINGLE LANE, TWO-WAY LEFT TURN CHANNELIZATION

ONE-WAY TRAFFIC WITH ADDED TURN LANES

4’ MIN.

PARALLEL WITH DIRECTION OF TRAVEL 

NOTE: CROSS PATTERN LINES ARE ALWAYS

(2’ SEG., 6’ GAP)

5" SKIP WHITE

TP 2 ARROW, (TYP)

10’ 30’
(TYP) (TYP)

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

24" SOLID WHITE (TYP)

GENERAL NOTES:

REVERSIBLE LANE SIGN OR SIGNAL SYSTEM REQUIRED

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

5" SOLID YELLOW

DIVIDED HIGHWAY WITH RAISED MEDIAN

(2’ SEG., 6’ GAP)

5" SKIP WHITE

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

TRAFFIC

L/2 L/2 L/2 L/2

*

5’

 

8" SOLID WHITE 

(TYP)

24" (TYP)

8"GAP

*

5’

*

5’

*

5’

OR WHERE LANE LINES HAVE BEEN OMITTED

USE WHERE THE LANE WIDTH EXCEEDS 12’ 

*

LANE WIDTH (L) LANE WIDTH (L) LANE WIDTH (L)

SIDEWALK)

MORE THAN 1’ BEYOND EDGE OF

WHICHEVER IS GREATER (BUT NOT

8’ MIN., OR WIDTH OF SIDEWALK, 

                             

5" SOLID DOUBLE YELLOW

5" SOLID DOUBLE YELLOW

STATE PROJECT NUMBER

GA.

NO.

SHEET

SHEETS

TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
STATE OF GEORGIA

B
Y

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
D

A
T

E

DESIGNED

DRAWN

TRACED

CHECKED

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

NUMBER

NON-LIMITED ACCESS ROADWAY
PAVEMENT MARKING PLACEMENT

T-11A

  SHOWN IN DETAIL T-11B.

3. CONTRAST MARKINGS FOR SKIP STRIPING SHALL BE AS

   FROM THE NORMAL EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

2. EDGE LINES SHALL BE PLACED A MINIMUM OF 4 INCHES

   THE LINE WIDTH.

1. SPACING BETWEEEN DOUBLE LINES SHALL BE EQUAL TO

A
D

D
E

D
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

N
O

T
E
 
3

C
D

R
9
-
15
-
16

NO SCALE                    JANUARY 2000



6’-0"

4’-4" R 2’-8"

3’-4"

3’-1"

3’-4"

8"

1’-11"

8’-3"

1’-3"

6’-7"

1’-8"

4’-4" R

24"

20"

*

8"

4"

8’-0"

24"

20"

*

2’-11"

1’-8"

1’-11"

3’-3"

7’-9"

4’-7" 1’-4" 4’-7"

10’-6"

24"

20"

*

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 8

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 6

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 7

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 5A

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, WRONG WAY

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 4

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 1

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 2

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 2A

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 3

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 3A

WHITE

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 5

WHITE

A
R

R
O

W
S
 

F
O

R
 

R
O

U
N

D
A

B
O

U
T

S

A
D

D
E

D
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 

M
A

R
K
IN

G
 

O
N
 

W
R

O
N

G
 

W
A

Y
 

A
R

R
O

W

C
H

A
N

G
E

D
 

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 

O
F
 

R
P

M
s

STATE PROJECT NUMBER

GA.

NO.

SHEET

SHEETS

TOTAL

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
STATE OF GEORGIA

B
Y

R
E

V
IS
IO

N
D

A
T

E

DESIGNED

DRAWN

TRACED

CHECKED

NUMBER

T-12B

PAVEMENT MARKINGS - ARROWS

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 

23’-6"

18’-8"

2’-0"3’-6"

9’-0"

8"

4" (TYP)2’-0"

9’-0"

8"

3’-6"

23’-6"

18’-8"

6’-0"

1’-0" (TYP)

2’-6"

9’-2"

1’-3"

1’-10"

2’-5" R
8’-0"

8"

3’-0"

2’-5"R

2’-6"

9’-2"

1’-3"

13’-4"

8"

1’-8"
4’-4" R

4’-6"

1’-11"

19’-4"

10’-6"

4’-7" 1’-4" 4’-7"

2’-11"

1’-8"

1’-11"

7’-9"

3’-3"

8’-0"

8"

13’-4"

10"

3’-8"

8"

1’-5"

9’-4"

5’-0"

4" 1’-3"

6’-7"

4"

4"

1’-3"

4"

1’-3"

3’-4"

1’-11"

8’-3"

8"

1’-8"

2’-8"

3’-1"

3’-4"

BI-COLOR REFLECTOR (TP 3)

REFER TO GDOT DETAIL T-15C

CLEAR

RED

(TYP)

 2’-0"

4"4"

2’-5"

16’-4"

4"

4"

4"

4"

4"

2’-5"

6’-5"

2’-8"

3’-4"

5’-0"

2’-0" 3’-6"

4’-2"

THE INSIDE LANE ONLY

BE USED ALONG MULTI-LANE ROUNDABOUT APPROACHES ALONG 

1. PAVEMENT MARKING ARROWS WITH A DOT (2A, 3A, 5A) SHALL 

NOTES

5’-11"

2’-1"

2’-9"

2’-0"

1’-10"2’-1"2’-4"

9’-4"3’-8"

10’-11"

8"

3’-6"

4’-9"

3’-9"

3’-9"

1’-8"

1’-0"

4’-1"

4’-8"

4’-7"

10"

1’-9"

2’-10"

0
5
-
3
0
-
19

R1
0.

3’

R12.
3’

R12.
1’

R2
1.

5’

1
3
’
-
1
"

5
’
-
7
"

7
’
-
6
"

7’-8"

1’-5"

2’-2"

1’-10"

2’-3" 5’-5"

6
’
-
9
" 1
2
’
-
8
"

5
’
-
1
1
"

1
’
-
2
"

A
R

R
O

W
S
 

F
O

R
 

M
IN
I 
R

O
U

N
D

A
B

O
U

T
S

A
D

D
E

D
 

T
P
 
9
 

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 

M
A

R
K
IN

G
 

PAVEMENT MARKING, ARROW, TYPE 9

WHITE (MINI ROUNDABOUTS)

NO SCALE                      APRIL 2000

A
C

P

A
C

P

A
C

P
1 
1-

0
4
-
2
0

0
4
-
1 
1-

0
0



January 16th, 2024
S. Mark Boyles, P.E.
SMB
PO BOX 22324
Savannah, GA 31403

Dear Mr. Boyles,

I am pleased to provide you with a recommendation for Approval of the site development plans for 212 E 
Hwy 80 Office, which is provided below.

Submittal Documents: Site Development Plans        Nov. 2023
Stormwater Management Narrative & Calculations        Nov. 2023
GDOT Review Submittal (w/ responses)        Aug. 2023

We have reviewed the submittal for the referenced project. The plans were reviewed for general 
conformance with the requirements of the City of Pooler.  This review of the submitted site plans does not 
relieve the Owner, Designer and Contractor, or their representatives, from their individual or collective 
responsibility to comply with the applicable provisions of the local, State and Federal Laws and 
Engineering Standards, and all Development Codes that apply to the City of Pooler. This review is not to 
be construed as a check of every item in the plans or construction. Failure of this office to note any 
conflict with said requirements does not relieve the developer from compliance. 

The Owner and the Design Consultant are fully responsible for all testing and inspections of their project 
during construction, and they also are fully responsible that the project is constructed in accordance with 
the approved construction plans. The design engineer is solely responsible that their designs are in 
compliance to all Federal, State, and City codes and regulations.  All required permits and approvals, 
pursuant to land disturbing activities and land development shall be provided and found acceptable to the 
City of Pooler. All the required testing results, plans and related material must be available to the City of 
Pooler, or assigned representation, during and after the construction is complete.

To the best of our knowledge, it is our opinion that the plans are in general conformance with the City of 
Pooler’s applicable design standards, codes and ordinances. We hereby recommend Approval of the site 
development plans.

Please contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached via email or phone at 
tshoemaker@eomworx.com or (912) 445-0050 ext. 4400.

Sincerely,

Trevor Shoemaker 
Project Manager
EOM

CC: Nicole Dixon; Director of Planning and Development – City of Pooler
Brian Crooks; City Planner - City of Pooler
Liberto Chacon, PE; Sr. Vice President – EOM

ATTACHMENT C

mailto:tshoemaker@eomworx.com


1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Site Plan for Wawa at 1480 Pooler Parkway 

Project: #231502 

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Jamie Gwaltney (Kimley-Horn) 

Location (Address): 1480 Pooler Parkway 

Parcel (PIN): 51011 01027 

Acreage: 2.3 total – 2.3 disturbed 

Zoning: PUD [Morgan Family Tract] 

Proposed Use: Gas station with convenience store 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

Zoning Action Standards: 1. Whether the site plan is consistent with the Comprehensive

Plan for the City of Pooler and any other small area plans.

o The site plan is consistent with the recommendations and

policies of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan for the FLUM

designation and Character Area.

2. Whether the site plan provides for adequate pedestrian and

traffic access.

o The site plan complies with the provisions for access and

circulation per the Morgan Family Tract PUD; Sec. 11 of



  

2 

App. A, Art. V related to traffic impacts; and Sec. 2 of 

App. A, Art. III for traffic access. 

3. Whether the site plan provides for adequate space for off-

street parking and loading/unloading zones where applicable. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the Morgan 

Family PUD and Sec. 5 of App. A, Art. III for parking and 

loading standards. 

4. Whether the site plan provides for the appropriate location, 

arrangement, size, and design of buildings, lighting, and 

signs, giving due consideration to the applicable zoning 

district(s). 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

development standards for commercial development, 

including setbacks, building separation, and height and 

Chapter 74, Art. VI for lighting. 

5. Whether the site plan is appropriate in scale and relation to 

proposed use(s) to one another and those of adjacent 

properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to the 

location of uses/development areas, development 

standards for commercial development, and buffer 

standards. 

6. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by existing or proposed public facilities, including roads, 

water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater infrastructure. 

o The site plan complies with Sec. 606 of App. B, Art. VI; 

Chapter 74, Art. V; and Chapter 42, Art. V related to 

servicing of utilities and infrastructure. 

7. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by other public serves to account for current or projected 

needs. 

o The site is adequately served by any other public services 

for current or projected needs. 

8. Whether the site plan provides adequate protection for 

adjacent properties against noise, glare, unsightliness, or 

other objectionable features. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

buffer and screening standards. 

9. Whether the site plan provides adequate landscaping, 

including type and arrangement of trees, shrubs, and other 



  

3 

landscaping, which may provide a visual or noise-deterring 

buffer between adjacent properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of Chapter 42, 

Art. VI for tree and landscaping requirements, in general, 

and related buffers. 

10. Whether the site plan provides for improvements in 

accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

including without limitation the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Pooler. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the City of 

Pooler Code of Ordinances, specifications, or standards, 

and all other applicable laws. 

   

Conclusion:  The site plan addresses the site plan approval criteria.  As such, staff 

recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

C. Approval Letter 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231502 -
1480 Pooler

Parkway
02/07/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

I-16

I-9
5

PINE BARRENROAD

POOLER PARKWAYI-16I-95PINE BARRENROAD

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
0-

00
 - 

C
IV

IL
 C

O
VE

R
 S

H
EE

T.
dw

g 
  C

0-
00

 C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T 

  D
ec

 2
1,

 2
02

3 
 1

:4
8p

m
   

by
: d

av
id

.s
m

ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/20/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

12/20/2023

No.
PROFESSIONAL

REG ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

CIVIL CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS
 FOR

WAWA - POOLER PARKWAY
POOLER PARKWAY, POOLER, GA 31322

1ST DISTRICT
PARCEL NO.: 51011-01027

EXISTING ZONING: PUD - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
CITY OF POOLER, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA

PROPERTY AREA = 2.27 ACRES
TOTAL DISTURBED AREA = 2.3 ACRES

IMPERVIOUS AREA = 1.61 ACRES (70.9%)
PERVIOUS AREA = 0.66 ACRES (29.1%)

PROJECT CONTACTS
OWNER / DEVELOPER: DG POOLER PARKWAY, LLC

11520 DAVIS DRIVE, SUITE 300
ALPHRETTA, GA 30009
PHONE: 770.680.2721
CONTACT: BRENT DAVIS

ARCHITECT: CUHACI PETERSON
2600 MAITLAND CENTER PARKWAY, SUITE 200
MAITLAND, FLORIDA 32751
PHONE: 407-661-9100
CONTACT: MARY ROSARIO

CIVIL ENGINEER: KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
25 BULL STREET, SUITE 400
SAVANNAH, GA 31401
PHONE:  912.231.4384
CONTACT: JAMIE GWALTNEY, P.E.

SURVEYOR: HUSSEY GAY BELL
329 COMMERCIAL DRIVE
SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31406
PHONE: 912.354.4626
CONTACT: NATHAN BROWN, P.L.S.

24-HR CONTACT: BRENT DAVIS / SERGIO MARTINEZ
DG POOLER PARKWAY, LLC / WAWA SOUTHEAST, LLC
678.392.3618 / 561.564.7247

PROJECT NARRATIVE:
THE WAWA SERVICE STATION IS A FUEL SERVICE AND CONVENIENCE STORE DEVELOPMENT. IT WILL CONTAIN
AN 8 MULTIPLE PRODUCT DISPENSER (MPD) FUEL CANOPY WITH 16 FUELING SPACES AND A 6,119 SF
CONVENIENCE STORE.

THE PROJECT, PROPOSED PARCEL R-3A, IS A PORTION OF A LARGER DEVELOPMENT, PROVIDENCE AT POOLER,
CURRENTLY KNOWN AS PARCEL R-3. TO BE FURTHER SUBDIVIDED BY THE MAJOR SUBDIVISION PLAT
SUBMITTED ON 10.26.23 BY HUSSEY GAY BELL SURVEYING.

THE PROJECT WILL INCLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF STORMWATER CONVEYANCE TO OFFSITE DETENTION,
AND ALL ASSOCIATED UTILITIES. THE PROPERTY AREA ON SITE IS 2.27 ACRES, AND THE TOTAL DISTURBED
AREA IS 2.3 ACRES.

NOTES:
1. ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE FACT THAT THE SCALE OF THESE DRAWINGS MAY HAVE BEEN DISTORTED

DURING THE REPRODUCTION PROCESS. THIS DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH THE CONCEPTS AND
DESIGNS PRESENTED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC
PURPOSE AND CLIENT FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED. REUSE OF AND IMPROPER RELIANCE ON THIS
DOCUMENT WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION AND ADAPTATION BY KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES,
INC. SHALL BE WITHOUT LIABILITY TO KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

2. IF ANY CONFLICTS, DISCREPANCIES, OR ANY OTHER UNSATISFACTORY CONDITIONS ARE DISCOVERED,
EITHER ON THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS OR FIELD CONDITIONS, THE  MUST NOTIFY
THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY AND SHALL NOT COMMENCE FURTHER OPERATION UNTIL THE CONFLICTS,
DISCREPANCIES, OR OTHER UNSATISFACTORY CONDITIONS ARE RESOLVED.

3. THE APPROVAL OF THESE PLANS AND THE ISSUANCE OF THIS LAND DISTURBANCE PERMIT DOES NOT IN
ANY WAY SUGGEST THAT ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR THE LEGAL OR APPROPRIATE OPERATIONS
FOR THIS ACTIVITY, WHICH MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PERMITTING HAVE BEEN MET. THE ONUS IS ON THE
OWNER/DEVELOPER/ BUILDER TO DISCOVER WHAT ADDITIONAL PERMITTING OR APPROVALS MAY BE
NECESSARY TO OPERATE FROM THIS POINT IN AN APPROPRIATE AND LEGAL MANNER. PLAN APPROVAL
OR PERMIT ISSUANCE DOES NOT ABSOLVE THE APPLICANT FROM COMPLYING WITH ALL APPLICABLE
LAWS, STANDARDS, OR OTHER PERMITS WHICH MAY BE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT.

4. IN CASE OF CONFLICT BETWEEN THESE PLANS AND THE CITY OF POOLER'S ORDINANCES, STANDARDS,
SPECIFICATIONS OR DETAILS, THE CITY OF POOLER REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE REQUIRED.

5. THE OWNER MUST CERTIFY THAT ALL LAND DISTURBING AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES WILL BE
COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN PLAN
(CHAPTER 42, ARTICLE V, SECTION 42-183.4(6))

6. THE DESIGNER MUST CERTIFY THAT THE DESIGN MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF POOLER
AND THE LATEST EDITION OF THE COASTAL STORMWATER SUPPLEMENT TO THE GEORGIA STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT MANUAL, AND ANY RELEVANT LOCAL ADDENDA (CHAPTER 42, ARTICLE V, SECTION
42-183.4(5))

THE PROJECT SITE DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A FLOOD HAZARD AREA PER FIRM
PANEL 13051C0107H DATED 8/16/2018.

PROJECT SITE
PROJECT SITE

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

N
O

R
TH

FEMA MAP

C0-00

COVER SHEET

SITE DATA TABLE:

CERTIFICATION NUMBER

ISSUED: EXPIRES:

Lev el II Certified Design Professional

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
GEOR GIA  SOIL  AND  WATERGSWCC

0000092734

JAMIE N. GWALTNEY

12/18/202612/18/2020

CIVIL SHEET LIST
REVISIONS NO. SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE

C0-00 COVER SHEET

C0-80 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

C2-00 SITE PLAN

C3-00 GRADING PLAN

C3-01 DRAINAGE PLAN

C3-50 STORM SEWER PROFILES

C4-00 UTILITY PLAN

C4-50 SANITARY SEWER PROFILES

C5-00 EROSION CONTROL NOTES

C5-01 EROSION CONTROL NOTES

C5-02 EROSION CONTROL NOTES

C5-03 EROSION CONTROL NOTES

C5-20 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - PHASE 2

C5-30 EROSION CONTROL PLAN - PHASE 3

C5-80 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

C5-81 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

C6-00 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C6-01 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C6-02 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C6-03 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C6-04 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

C6-40 STORM STRUCTURE DETAILS

C6-50 SANITARY SEWER DETAILS

C6-60 WATER CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

L1-00 TREE PROTECTION PLAN

L2-10 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

SHEET 1 PHOTOMETRIC LIGHTING PLAN (BY OTHERS)

ATTACHMENT B



WVMHTOP=19.58
IE OF BOX=8.55

TOP OF 12"PVC=11.08

WVMHTOP=18.13

IE OF BOX=12.13

TOP OF 12"PVC=14.33

S2
6°

 0
7' 

16
"W

15
3.

72
'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

15
' P

ER
M

AN
EN

T 
UT

IL
IT

Y 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PB
 3

2 
"P

", 
PG

. 4
1D

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

16''W

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

OHE

OHE

OHE O
HE

18" RCPI.E.=16.96

12''W

12''W

12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

UGT

UGT

UGE

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UNDERGROUND FIBER/TELECOM.

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 20"-30"

UNDERGROUND FIBER/TELECOM.

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 20"-30"

EXISTING 12" WATER MAIN

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 3'

EXISTING 12" WATER MAIN

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 3'

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

S

S

8''SAN

8''SAN

20

21

22

23

18.000

PINE BARREN ROAD

PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

23
0' 

RO
W

AD
T:

 2
0,

00
0

10
,0

00
 (N

B)
10

,0
00

 (S
B)

100' ROWADT: 4,6302,315 (NB)2,315 (SB)

R-3A
2.27 ACRES

R-3B
1.30 ACRES

19

INTERNAL PROPERTY PROPERTY
LINES BASED ON MAJOR

SUBDIVISION PLAT BY OTHERS

20

20

20

20

17

17

17
17

18

18

18 18

18

18

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

21

21

21

21

CI-6A
RIM: 18.56
INV OUT: 13.30

CI-6B
RIM: 18.56

INV IN: 13.15
INV OUT: 13.15

CI-5A
RIM: 18.85
INV IN: 12.88
INV OUT: 12.88

30 LF OF 36" RCP @ 0.50%

54 LF OF 36" RCP @ 0.50%

MANHOLE No. 9B
TOP = 19.00

I.E. = (IN) 10.40 N
I.E. = (OUT)10.30 W

S2
2°

04
'2

8"
W

30
9.

6'

N2
6°

07
'16

"E
15

3.
7'

N69°50'12"E

23.2'

S67°55'32"E302.1'

N67°56'20"W

64.4'

N63°08'41"W

42.4'

N63°52'44"W

233.4'

∆=1°11'02"
R=5856.2'

L=121.0'
CB=N26°30'17"E

C=121.0'

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
0-

80
 - 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

  C
0-

80
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

PL
AN

   
D

ec
 2

1,
 2

02
3 

 2
:4

1p
m

   
by

: d
av

id
.s

m
ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/20/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

12/20/2023

No.
PROFESSIONAL

REG ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

N
O

R
TH

C0-80

EXISTING
CONDITIONS

PLAN

EXISTING CONDITIONS NOTES:
1. EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM DAVIS

GROUP MASTER SITE PLAN FILE PROVIDED HUSSEY GAY BELL
DATED 09/01/2023. THE SITE IS CURRENTLY CLEARED BY
OTHERS.

2. EXISTING BENCHMARK ON PARCEL R-1 USED

NORTHING: 765666.2498
EASTING: 931787.1820
ELEVATION: 16.95'
DATUM: NAVD 88

3. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING
ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR
ADJACENT TO THE WORK AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE
THE UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE
UTILITY COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN
NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

4. WHERE EXISTING RUNOFF LEAVES THE SITE IN A SHEET FLOW
CONDITION, RUNOFF SHALL LEAVE THE SITE IN A SHEET FLOW
CONDITION AFTER DEVELOPMENT.

5. ALL PROPERTIES SHOWN ARE CURRENTLY OWNED BY DG
POOLER PARKWAY, LLC

6. WATER, SANITARY SEWER, AND STORM STRUCTURES SHOWN
ADJACENT TO FOX FARM ARE BASED ON MASTER
DEVELOPMENT (BY OTHERS).



STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

S2
6°

 0
7' 

16
"W

15
3.

72
'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

15
' P

ER
M

AN
EN

T 
UT

IL
IT

Y 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PB
 3

2 
"P

", 
PG

. 4
1D

OHE

OHE

OHE O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

S

S
E

A

A

PINE BARREN ROAD

PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

23
0' 

RO
W

AD
T:

 2
0,

00
0

10
,0

00
 (N

B)
10

,0
00

 (S
B)

100' ROWADT: 4,6302,315 (NB)2,315 (SB)

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1
(6

,1
19

 S
F)

FF
E:

 2
0.

20
E

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP STOP

STOP

R2.00'

R2.00'

R15.00'

R15.00'

12
.0

0'

5.
00

'12
.0

0'

75.71'

12.00'

38.43'

30.00'

20.00'

14
.0

0'

26
.0

0'

87
.0

0'

30
.0

0'

26
.6

0'

11

12

9

8

12

21
4.

00
'

10
.0

0'

25
.0

0'

25.00'

PROPOSED
INTERSECTION

BY OTHERS

PROPOSED
DRIVE AISLE
BY OTHERS

R15.00'

15
.0

0'

6.
00

'

R10.00'

R3.00'

R2.00'

R13.00'

R2.00'

R2.00'

R2.00'

10
.0

0'

20.00'

35.00'

28.83'

30.00'

10.00'

20
.0

0'

30
'

20
.0

0'
14

.0
0'

10.00'

R3.00'

R2.00'

R13.00'

R30.00'

R3.00'

8

R8.00'

R3.00'

R2.00'

R10.00'

R10.15'

FUTURE PARCEL
(BY OTHERS)

PROPOSED
DRIVE AISLE
BY OTHERS

30
' C

RO
SS

AC
CE

SS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

30
' C

RO
SS

AC
CE

SS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

SS

10
.0

0'

30
.0

0'

20
.0

0'

4.
89

'
5.

00
'

13.00'

24
.0

0'

20.00'

15.00'

15.00'

10
.0

0'

10.00'

R25.00'

R20.00'

PROPOSED ADJACENT DEVELOPMENT
UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

32.50'

10
.0

0'
R25.00'

R3.00'

5.00'

5.
00

'

5.
00

'

12.30'

8.
00

'

EX
IS

TI
NG

 1
5' 

PE
RM

AN
EN

T

UT
IL

IT
Y 

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
LI

NE

30
' 12.61'

75.00'

9.
06

'

3.
74

'

8.00'

135.35'

5.00'

12
.0

0'

12
.0

0'

SS

4'x3' AIR  MACHINE
PAD W/ 2 BOLLARDS

E-STOP W/
2 BOLLARDS

"AIR PUMP PARKING
ONLY" SIGN

AIR PUMPS SHALL BE VISIBLE
FROM INSIDE THE STORE

TYPE F1
CURB

DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

LOCATION

(2) 22K & (1) 20K GALLON UST'S

6'x6'  VENT
STACK PAD

TRANSFORMER
PAD AND CT

CABINET

PROPOSED SIGN LOCATION
(BY OTHERS)

MAXIMUM SIGN HEIGHT: 30'
MAXIMUM SIGN AREA: 350SF

PROPOSED SIGN LOCATION (BY OTHERS)
MAXIMUM SIGN HEIGHT: 30'
MAXIMUM SIGN AREA: 350SF
SETBACK:15' (SIDE BUFFER PER PUD)

TYPE B1 CURB

TYPE B1 CURB

TYPE B1
CURB

TYPE F1 CURB

TYPE F1
CURB

RAISED LANDSCAPE
PLANTER (TYP.)

E-FREE
(3+1+1 MPD)

PROPANE KIOSK
3' MIN CLEAR ZONE

ICE BOX

PROPANE
KIOSK

E-FREE
(3+1+1 MPD)

PROPOSED
BOLLARDS (TYP)

PROPOSED
BOLLARDS
(TYP)

PROPOSED
BOLLARDS
(TYP)

4'x3' AIR  MACHINE
PAD W/ 2 BOLLARDS

AIR SPACE, AISLE,
AND ADJACENT SPACE

TO BE 6" CONC.

ARROWS SHOWN FOR
TRAFFIC PATTERN, NOT TO

BE CONSTRUCTED (TYP)

ARROWS SHOWN FOR
TRAFFIC PATTERN, NOT TO

BE CONSTRUCTED (TYP)

4" PAINTED YELLOW
STRIPE (TYP)

4" PAINTED YELLOW
STRIPE (TYP)

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

STOP SIGN (R1-1)

STOP SIGN (R1-1)

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

STOP SIGN
(R1-1)

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

E-STOP W/
2 BOLLARDS

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

24" SOLID WHITE
STOP BAR

PROPOSED RAMP PER CITY
OF POOLER DETAIL P-17

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF POOLER DETAIL P-15

PROPOSED ADA
STALL AND SIGN

PROPOSED ADA
SIGNS AND STALLS

15' WATER UTILITY EASEMENT
TO CITY OF POOLER

5" DOUBLE
YELLOW

4" SOLID WHITE
CROSSWALK
STRIPING

8" WHITE CROSSWALK
PER GDOT DETAIL T-11A

STOP SIGN (R1-1)

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK PER
CITY OF POOLER DETAIL P-15

PROPOSED RAMP PER CITY
OF POOLER DETAIL P-17

PROPOSED RAMP PER CITY
OF POOLER DETAIL P-17

ACCESS TO RIGHT-IN LEFT-IN RIGHT-OUT
DRIVEWAY AND RIGHT IN ONLY DRIVEWAY

FROM POOLER PARKWAY (BY OTHERS)

PRIVATE ACCESS TO
RIGHT-IN-RIGHT-OUT
DRIVEWAY ON PINE BARREN
ROAD (BY OTHERS)

CONCRETE PAVING UP
TO BUILDING (TYP.)

PRIVATE ACCESS ROAD TO
FOX FARM STREET INTERSECTION
(BY OTHERS)

FOX FARM STREET TO BE
PRIVATE ROAD (BY OTHERS)

25 FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER
AND 25 FT FRONT BUILDING SETBACK

25 FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER
AND 25 FT FRONT BUILDING SETBACK

10 FT SIDE BUILDING SETBACK

CONTRACTOR TO SAW CUT NEAT EDGE INTO EXISTING
ASPHALT DRIVE TO TIE WAWA ASPHALT PAVEMENT TO
CIRCULATION ROAD (BY OTHERS)

12' CROSS ACCESS EASEMENT
ACROSS ENTIRE PROPERTY LINE

12' CROSS ACCESS
EASEMENT ACROSS

ENTIRE PROPERTY LINE

5" SOLID WHITE
STRIPED LINE

13 SQ. YDS. THERMOPLASTIC TRAFFIC STRIPING
PER GDOT DETAIL T-14, DETAIL "A" WHITE.

5" DOUBLE
YELLOW

30.00'

10
.0

0'

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
2-

00
 - 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

  C
2-

00
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

   
D

ec
 2

1,
 2

02
3 

 3
:1

8p
m

   
by

: d
av

id
.s

m
ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/20/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

12/20/2023

No.
PROFESSIONAL

REG ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

C2-00

SITE PLAN

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

N
O

R
TH

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY:
SITE SUMMARY:

CURRENT ZONING: PUD - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

SITE AREA: 2.27 ACRES
ADJUSTED SITE AREA: 2.27 ACRES

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 1.61 ACRES (70.9%)
PERVIOUS AREA: 0.66   ACRES (29.1%)

TOTAL DISTURBED AREA: 2.3 ACRES

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 75 FT
MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE: 65%
PROPOSED SQUARE FOOTAGE: 6,119 SF
PROPOSED HEIGHT: 33 FT 4 IN

BUILDING SETBACKS :

FRONT: 25 FT
SIDE: 10 FT
REAR: 0 FT

LANDSCAPE SETBACK:

FRONT: 25 FT
SIDE: 25 FT
REAR: 0 FT

PARKING SUMMARY:
REQUIRED: 8 SPACES (1/2 SPACE FOR EACH

PUMP)
3 SPACES (ONE SPACE FOR EACH

SERVICE BAY, AIR,
WATER, PROPANE)

25 SPACES (ONE SPACE PER 250
SQFT)

TOTAL REQUIRED: 37 SPACES

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED: 60 SPACES
57 STANDARD SPACES
3 ACCESSIBLE SPACES

SITE NOTES:
1. THE PROPOSED BUILDING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS

FROM AN ELECTRONIC FILE PROVIDED BY CUHACI PETERSON,
DATED 09/13/2023 AND IS FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR
EXACT BUILDING INFORMATION.

2. EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM A SURVEY
FILE PROVIDED BY HUSSEY GAY BELL, DATED 09/01/2023.

3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. SIDEWALK INSTALLED AGAINST BACK OF CURB SHALL BE
INSTALLED PER THE PLAN AS MEASURED FROM THE BACK OF
CURB.

5. ALL SIGNAGE AND STRIPING MUST MEET THE LATEST
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY MUTCD, GDOT, AND GEORGIA
STATE CODE.

6. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR ALL HARDSCAPE AND
LANDSCAPE DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

7. ALL ROAD SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MUTCD SPECIFICATIONS.

BUILDING SETBACK LINE

LANDSCAPE BUFFER LINE

PROPERTY LINE

WAWA ASPHALT PAVEMENT

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

SITE PLAN LEGEND:

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

WAWA STAMPED CONCRETE

PARKING COUNT10

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT SIDEWALK



STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

E

A

A

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1
(6

,1
19

 S
F)

FF
E:

 2
0.

20
E

S2
6°

 0
7' 

16
"W

15
3.

72
'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

16''W

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

OHE

OHE

OHE O
HE

18" RCPI.E.=16.96

12''W

12''W

12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

UGT

UGT

UGE

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

S

S

8''SAN

8''SAN

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

2 '' W

2 '' W

SS

SS

SS

0.
71

%

18

18
20

19

20

21

22

23

18

19

21

1.
45

%

1.
94

%

1.72%

0.16%

2.
58

%

0.
86

%

0.
19

%

0.39%

0.40%

0.
16

%

0.34%

0.40%

0.
76

%

0.61%

1.
87

%

0.49%

0.49%0.
91

%

0.
92

%

0.
36

%

1.46%

0.15%

1.22%

1.
57

%

1.42%

1.54%

1.21%

1.
51

%

1.48%

0.
18

%

0.14%

0.17%

17.71
18.84

17.98

18.09

18.21

19.05

18.81
18.74

18.88

18.51

18.31

18.19

18.41

1.42%

17.61

20

20

18

1818

19

19

21

21

22

22

23

20 19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

18

18

19

19

19

20

20

20

18

19

18

19

19

19

EX:18.10

EX:18.38

EX:18.84

EX:18.90

EX:18.26

EX:19.89

EX:19.05

EX:19.17

EX:19.29

EX:18.47

EX:18.04

EX:18.23

0.
86

% 1.00%

PINE BARREN ROAD

PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

CI-6B
RIM: 18.56
INV IN: 13.15
INV OUT: 13.15

30 LF OF 36" RCP @ 0.50%

CI-6A
RIM: 18.56
INV OUT: 13.30

CI-5A
RIM: 18.85
INV IN: 12.88
INV OUT: 12.88

54
 L

F 
O

F 
36

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.5

0%

PRIVATE ACCESS ROAD BY OTHERS
CONTRACTOR TO FILED VERIFY CONNECTION
POINTS BEFORE PAVING ACTIVITIES

SS

18.30
18.06

19.81

HP:19.77

18.71

18.50

19.20

18.44

18.01

18.31

19.11

19.20

19.29

19.49

HP:19.58

19.79

20.14

19.86

20.15

FFE:20.20 20.18

19.99

19.97
19.68

19.68

19.50

19.50

20.18

19.32

19.48

19.33

19.72

19.95

19.12

HP:19.50

18.40

18.45

18.66

19.08

19.37

18.93

19.28

19.38

19.20

19.48

19.40

LP:18.67

19.40
19.64

19.71

FFE:20.20

19.56

19.36

19.75

19.42

19.51

18.68

18.57

18.80

19.52

20.00

19.46

19.95

19.71

19.23

19.78

19.46

19.77

19.46

20.18
20.12

19.69

19.78

19.48

19.50

LP:18.28

FG:19.0

19.00

19.00

19.21

HP:19.33

19.26

LP:18.87

18.30

19.86

18.80

18.98

18.92 18.71

19.10

19.39

19.76

19.17

18.33

LP:17.54

19.30

19.24 19.29

19.29

19.24

19.31
19.34

19.34

19.31

19.39

19.39

19.37

19.44

19.45

19.45

19.44

19.50

19.50
19.50

19.43
19.45

19.45
19.43

19.37

19.41

19.40
19.37

19.31
19.36

19.35

19.30

19.28

19.36

19.78

20.02

20.02

19.77

19.75

20.01

19.97

19.62

19.60

19.95

19.86 TC
19.36 BC

19.81 TC
19.31 BC

19.91 TC
19.41 BC

19.95 TC
19.45 BC

20.00 TC
19.50 BC

19.96 TC
19.46 BC

19.92 TC
19.42 BC

19.88 TC
19.38 BC

FFE:20.20

FFE:20.20

FFE:20.20

FFE:20.20

18.36

18.42

19.11

19.14

18.49

18.89

18.96

18.60

18.45

19.47

19.48

18.37

18.23
18.30

18.72

18.53

18.50 18.79

18.30

18.44

18.49

18.38
18.32

LP:17.80

18.53

19.29

19.57

19.40

19.38

19.24

19.18

19.09

18.50

18.96

19.28

18.97
18.95

19.00

18.77

18.95

19.18

19.21

HP:19.52

18.25

18.43
18.42

18.3818.41
18.36

19.19

19.13
19.03

19.80

19.68

19.99

19.99
20.18

20.11

20.12
20.02

19.68

20.45 TC
19.95 BC

20.07 TC
19.57 BC

20.03 TC
19.53 BC

20.05 TC
19.55 BC

20.12 TC
19.62 BC

20.41 TC
19.91 BC

20.46 TC
19.96 BC20.25 TC

19.75 BC

20.22 TC
19.72 BC

20.23 TC
19.73 BC

20.27 TC
19.77 BC

20.46 TC
19.96 BC

19.92 TC
19.42 BC

19.95 TC
19.45 BC19.84 TC

19.34 BC

19.89 TC
19.39 BC

20.22 TC
19.72 BC

20.20 TC
19.70 BC

20.22 TC
19.72 BC

20.03 TC
19.53 BC

19.93 TC
19.43 BC

19.87 TC
19.37 BC

19.77 TC
19.27 BC

19.83 TC
19.33 BC

19.88 TC
19.38 BC

20.17 TC
19.67 BC

20.12 TC
19.62 BC

20.19 TC
19.69 BC

19.99 TC
19.49 BC

19.37

19.30

19.10

19.09

19.20

19.36

19.19

18.93

18.40

19.07

19.08

19.01

19.00

19.49

19.33

19.79 TC
19.29 BC

19.48 TC
18.98 BC

19.87 TC
19.37 BC

19.88 TC
19.38 BC

20.08 TC
19.58 BC

19.83 TC
19.33 BC

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
3-

00
 - 

G
R

AD
IN

G
 &

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

.d
w

g 
  C

3-
00

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 P

LA
N

   
D

ec
 2

1,
 2

02
3 

 3
:4

3p
m

   
by

: d
av

id
.s

m
ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/20/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

12/20/2023

No.
PROFESSIONAL

REG ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

C3-00

GRADING PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE NOTES:
1. SITE AREA:  2.27 ACRES

DISTURBED AREA:  2.3 ACRES

2. CRITICAL SPOT GRADES ARE TO PAVEMENT GRADE UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL SIDEWALKS AND
CROSSWALKS WITH A 2.0% MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE AND A 5.0%
MAXIMUM RUNNING SLOPE, UNLESS NOTED AS A RAMP. GRADES
WITHIN ADA HANDICAP PARKING AREAS NOT TO EXCEED A 2%
MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION.

4. ALL ROOF DRAIN PIPING SHALL BE PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

5. ALL ROOF DRAIN CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A
BRASS CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE PROPOSED GRADE.

6. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE
HORIZONTAL DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE
ONLY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO
DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE
SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER
OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

7. THIS PROJECT DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A 100 YEAR FLOOD HAZARD
ZONE AS DEFINED BY THE F.E.M.A. "FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY
MAP" COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 13051C0107H, DATED
8/16/2018.

8. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING
ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT
TO THE WORK AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE
UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY
COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN
NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

9. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY
SEWER AND STORM DRAINAGE SERVICE CONNECTIONS PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCY PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

10.NO GRADED SLOPE SHALL EXCEED 3H:1V

11. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL BE DESIGNED
AND PERMITTED BY AN ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE OF
GEORGIA.

12. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL HAVE FALL
PROTECTION THROUGH FENCING OR HANDRAIL AT A MINIMUM
OF 42" TALL. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS.

13.ROAD FILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO 100% STANDARD PROCTOR
OR 95% MODIFIED PROCTOR.

14.THE OWNER MUST CERTIFY THAT ALL LAND DISTURBING AND
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES WILL BE COMPLETED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT DESIGN PLAN.

15.THE DESIGNER MUST CERTIFY THAT THE DESIGN MEETS THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF POOLER AND THE LATEST
EDITION OF THE COASTAL STORMWATER SUPPLEMENT TO THE
GEORGIA STORMWATER MANAGEMENT MANUAL, AND ANY
RELEVANT LOCAL ADDENDA.

16. VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD88

950

948

945.00

945

944

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

GRADING LEGEND:

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED SPOT GRADE

PROPOSED FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

DRAINAGE FLOW ARROW

FFE:945.00

DWCB DOUBLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1034D)

STORM DRAINAGE LEGEND:
JB JUNCTION BOX (CITY OF POOLER DETAIL P-23)

CO CLEAN OUT (NYLOPLAST OR COMPARABLE)

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN PIPE

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

N
O

R
TH

HP:945.00 PROPOSED HIGH POINT GRADE

PROPOSED LOW POINT GRADELP:945.00

PROPOSED TOP OF ISLAND ELEVATION

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF ISLAND ELEVATION
19.93 TC
19.43 BC



STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

E

A

A

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1
(6

,1
19

 S
F)

FF
E:

 2
0.

20
E

S2
6°

 0
7' 

16
"W

15
3.

72
'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

N67° 54' 33"W

484.53'

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

16''W

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

OHE

OHE

OHE O
HE

18" RCPI.E.=16.96

12''W

12''W

12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

UGT

UGT

UGE

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

S

S

8''SAN

8''SAN

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

2 '' W

2 '' W

SS

SS

SS

18

18
20

19

20

21

22

23

18

19

21

8 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.50%

59 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.50%

115 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%
16

2 
LF

 O
F 

18
" R

CP
 @

 0
.5

0%

20 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.50%

25 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.50%

B.RD.9

B.CD.1

B.4 - CI
RIM: 19.11
INV IN: 14.56
INV OUT: 14.56

A.1.2 - CI
RIM: 18.28

INV OUT: 14.53

A.4 - CI
RIM: 18.67
INV OUT: 15.47

B.3 - CI
RIM: 17.54

INV IN: 13.98 - (B.4)
INV OUT: 13.98 - (B.2)

B.5
RIM: 18.87
INV IN: 14.92 - (B.6)
INV OUT: 14.92 - (B.4)B.RD.5

B.RD.6

B.RD.7

B.RD.8

B.RD.4

72
 L

F 
O

F 
18

" R
CP

 @
 0

.5
0%

A.2 - JB
RIM: 18.43

INV IN: 14.48 - (A.3)
INV IN: 14.48 - (A.1.2)
INV OUT: 14.48 - (A.1)

10 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

24 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

31 LF OF 10" HDPE @ -0.50%

B.RD.1

B.2 - JB
RIM: 19.55

INV IN: 13.87 - (B.3)
INV OUT: 13.87 - (B.1 - EXT'G CI)

114 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.50%

B.CD.1.2

B.6

A.3 - JB
RIM: 18.79
INV IN: 15.35
INV OUT: 15.35

29 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

20

20

18

1818

19

19

21

21

22

22

23

20 19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

18

18

19

19

19

20

20

20

18

19

18

19

19

19

TIE TO EXISTING STORM STRUCTURE
BEING CONSTRUCTED BY OTHERS

PLANTERS TO TIE INTO ROOF DRAIN
LINE; SEE DETAIL SHEET C6-30 (TYP.)

174 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

PINE BARREN ROAD

PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

TIE TO EXISTING STORM STRUCTURE
BEING CONSTRUCTED BY OTHERS

CI-6B
RIM: 18.56
INV IN: 13.15
INV OUT: 13.15

30 LF OF 36" RCP @ 0.50%

CI-6A
RIM: 18.56
INV OUT: 13.30

CI-5A
RIM: 18.85
INV IN: 12.88
INV OUT: 12.88

54
 L

F 
O

F 
36

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.5

0%

A.1 - JB
RIM: 19.26

INV IN: 13.66 - (A.2)
INV IN: 14.77 - (A1.1)

INV OUT: 13.66 - (AB.0 - EXT'G CI)

A1.1 - JB
RIM: 20.08
INV IN: 16.60 - (B.RD.1)
INV OUT: 15.20 - (A.1)

B.RD.2

B.RD.3

B.RD.10

37 LF OF 6" HDPE @ 0.50%
23 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.50%

20 LF OF 10" HDPE @ -0.50%

25 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 0.50%

B.CD.6

B.CD.5

B.CD.3

B.CD.2

B.CD.1.1

B.CD.4

26 LF OF 8" HDPE @ -0.75%

26 LF OF 8" HDPE @ -0.75%

26 LF OF 8" HDPE @ -0.75%

26 LF OF 10" HDPE @ -0.75%

26 LF OF 10" HDPE @ -0.75%

21 LF OF 10" HDPE @ 1.50%

26 LF OF 10" HDPE @ 1.50%

CANOPY DRAIN SYSTEM TO BE
BENEATH HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE
CANOPY PAD THROUGHOUT

SS

23 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.50%

56 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.75%

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
3-

00
 - 

G
R

AD
IN

G
 &

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

.d
w

g 
  C

3-
01

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

   
D

ec
 2

1,
 2

02
3 

 4
:4

2p
m

   
by

: d
av

id
.s

m
ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/20/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

12/20/2023

No.
PROFESSIONAL

REG ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

C3-01

DRAINAGE
PLAN

GRADING & DRAINAGE NOTES:
1. SITE AREA:  2.27 ACRES

DISTURBED AREA:  2.3 ACRES

2. CRITICAL SPOT GRADES ARE TO PAVEMENT GRADE UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL SIDEWALKS AND
CROSSWALKS WITH A 2.0% MAXIMUM CROSS SLOPE AND A 5.0%
MAXIMUM RUNNING SLOPE, UNLESS NOTED AS A RAMP. GRADES
WITHIN ADA HANDICAP PARKING AREAS NOT TO EXCEED A 2%
MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION.

4. ALL ROOF DRAIN PIPING SHALL BE PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

5. ALL ROOF DRAIN CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A
BRASS CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE PROPOSED GRADE.

6. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE
HORIZONTAL DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE
ONLY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO
DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE
SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER
OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

7. THIS PROJECT DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A 100 YEAR FLOOD HAZARD
ZONE AS DEFINED BY THE F.E.M.A. "FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY
MAP" COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 13051C0107H, DATED
8/16/2018.

8. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING
ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT
TO THE WORK AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE
UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY
COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN
NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

9. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY
SEWER AND STORM DRAINAGE SERVICE CONNECTIONS PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCY PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

10.NO GRADED SLOPE SHALL EXCEED 3H:1V

11. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL BE DESIGNED
AND PERMITTED BY AN ENGINEER LICENSED IN THE STATE OF
GEORGIA.

12. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL HAVE FALL
PROTECTION THROUGH FENCING OR HANDRAIL AT A MINIMUM
OF 42" TALL. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS.

950

948

945.00

945

944

HP:945.00

TC:945.00

BC:945.00

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

GRADING LEGEND:

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED SPOT GRADE

PROPOSED HIGH POINT GRADE

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB GRADE

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF CURB GRADE

DRAINAGE FLOW ARROW

PROPOSED LOW POINT GRADELP:945.00

DWCB DOUBLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1034D)

STORM DRAINAGE LEGEND:
JB

SDCO

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN PIPE

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

N
O

R
TH

JUNCTION BOX (CITY OF POOLER DETAIL P-23)

CLEAN OUT (NYLOPLAST OR COMPARABLE)



12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

16''W

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

OHE

OHE

OHE O
HE

12''W

12''W

12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

UGT

UGT

UGE

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

S

S

8''SAN

8''SAN

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

E

A

A

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1
(6

,1
19

 S
F)

FF
E:

 2
0.

20
E

SS

SS

SS

SS

3
/4

'' W

M

M

2
'' W

2 '' W

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UGT

UGP

UGP

UG
P

UG
P

UGP

SS

SS

SS

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UG
P

UG
P

UG
P

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

3 /4 '' W

39 LF OF 6" PVC @ 1.00%

34 LF OF
6" DIP @ 2.50%

21 LF OF
6" PVC @ 4.00%

19 LF OF
4" DIP @ 2.00%

7 LF OF
6" PVC @ 4.00%

2" WATER METER IN VAULT
SEE DETAIL W-23

1" WATER METER IN VAULT
SEE DETAIL W-22

63 LF OF
6" DIP @ 1.00%

54
 L

F 
O

F
6"

 D
IP

 @
 4

.0
0%

25 LF OF
6" PVC @ 2.00%

15 LF OF
6" PVC @ 2.00%

Z3.1.1
TOP: 20.13
INV OUT: 15.45

Z6
TOP: 20.13
INV OUT: 15.16

Z1
TOP: 18.54

INV IN: 11.20
INV OUT: 11.20

Z5 - 1250 GAL GREASE INTERCEPTOR
TOP: 16.87

INV IN: 14.78
INV OUT: 14.78

Z0
TOP: 18.56

INV IN: 10.81
INV IN: 10.81

Z2
TOP: 19.24
INV IN: 11.76
INV OUT: 11.83

Z3.1
TOP: 20.13
INV IN: 15.16
INV IN: 15.16
INV OUT: 14.91

Z3.2
TOP: 20.13
INV OUT: 15.99

GATE VALVE IN VALVE
BOX WITH UTILITY

MARKER, SEE DETAIL W-03

Z4 - SAMPLING MANHOLE
TOP: 19.69

INV IN: 14.48
INV OUT: 14.48

Z3
TOP: 19.69

INV IN: 13.98
INV IN: 14.05

INV OUT: 13.90

2" X 2" X 1" REDUCING TEE

PO
O

LE
R 

PA
RK

W
AY

PINE BARREN ROAD

12" PUBLIC
WATERLINE
(BY OTHERS)

FIRE HYDRANT
(BY OTHERS)

WATER SERVICE
LATERAL (BY OTHERS)

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER
MANHOLE (BY OTHERS)

CONTRACTOR TO
COORDINATE WITH GA

POWER FOR CONNECTION

PROPOSED
TRANSFORMER
PAD LOCATION

PROPOSED TELECOM CONNECTION
CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH
UTILITY PROVIDER

SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLAN
FOR CONTINUATION (TYP.)

SEE IRRIGATION PLAN
FOR CONTINUATION

HOSE BIB CONNECTION SEE
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR

CONTINUATION

TIE TO WATER SERVICE FOR BUILDING
SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR CONTINUATION

CONNECT TO EXISTING 2" LATERAL
BEING CONSTRUCTED BY OTHERS

3/4" WATERLINE SERVICE TO DUMPSTER AREA HOSE BIB
HDPE PIPE PRESSURE CLASS 200

2" DOMESTIC WATERLINE
HDPE PIPE PRESSURE CLASS 200

90° BEND

45° BEND

45° BEND

BEGIN PUBLIC SANITARY
SEWER AT SEWER MANHOLE

BEGIN PRIVATE SANITARY
SEWER AT 6" SERVICE LATERAL

1" RPZ DCVA BACK FLOW
PREVENTER FOR IRRIGATION

2" RPZ DCVA BACK
FLOW PREVENTER

45° BEND

90° BEND

6" SANITARY SEWER PIPE
SDR 26 PVC PER ASTMD 3034

6" SANITARY SEWER DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP)
PER ANSI A21.50 AT ALL UTILITY CROSSINGS PER

CITY OF POOLER STANDARD DETAIL W-16 (TYP.)

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 K
:\S

AV
_C

iv
il\

01
47

77
00

0_
W

al
nu

t\0
4-

D
av

is
 G

ro
up

\0
13

48
80

02
_P

oo
le

r P
kw

y 
Po

ol
er

 G
A\

C
AD

\P
la

ns
he

et
s\

C
4-

00
 - 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
.d

w
g 

  C
4-

00
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

   
Ja

n 
24

, 2
02

4 
 3

:3
0p

m
   

by
: d

av
id

.s
m

ith

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II) 0000092734

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

01/24/2024

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

01/24/2024

No.
PROFESSIONAL

RE
G ISTEREDG E O R G I A

ENG I NEER

PE034915

JA
M

I E
 NORR I S  GWA L T

N
E

Y

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

2010 20 40

N
O

R
TH

SS

UGP

SS

UGT

PROPOSED WATER LINE

UTILITY NOTES:
1. ALL SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE

A BRASS CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE PROPOSED GRADE.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE UTILITY CONNECTION AND
REROUTING LOCATIONS WITH APPLICABLE AGENCIES.

3. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SEWER AUTHORITY SANITARY SEWER AND WATER AUTHORITY
WATER STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE
HORIZONTAL DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE
ONLY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO
DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE
SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER
OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

5. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING
ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT
TO THE WORK AREA. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE
UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY
COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN
NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

6. ALL UTILITY CONNECTIONS END AT 5' OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING
FOOTPRINT. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL,
ELECTRICAL, AND PLUMBING PLANS FOR BUILDING LAYOUT AND
INTERNAL UTILITY SERVICE.

7. ALL ONSITE UTILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED UNDERGROUND.

8. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF DISCREPANCY PRIOR
TO PROCEEDING.

9. PROVIDE HDPE OR STAINLESS STEEL I&I INHIBITORS UNDER ALL
STORM SEWER MANHOLES IN CONCRETE OR PAVEMENT.

UTILITY LEGEND:

PROPOSED ELECTRIC LINE

PROPOSED TELEPHONE LINE

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (FDC)

WATER VALVE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER PIPE

SANITARY SEWER GREASE TRAP

WATER CONNECTIONS AND BENDS

WATER MAIN TAPPING SLEEVE

C4-00

UTILITY PLAN

w



S2
6°

 0
7' 

16
"W

15
3.

72
'

N67° 54' 33"W

N67° 54' 33"W

15
' P

ER
M

AN
EN

T 
UT

IL
IT

Y 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PB
 3

2 
"P

", 
PG

. 4
1D

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12
''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

16''W

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

10
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

12
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

18
''F

M

OHE

OHE O
HE

18" RCPI.E.=16.96

12''W

12''W

12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

UGT

UGT

UGE

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UGT

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UG
T

UNDERGROUND FIBER/TELECOM.

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 20"-30"

UNDERGROUND FIBER/TELECOM.

AVERAGE DEPTH APPROX. 20"-30"

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

E

A

A

PINE BARREN ROAD
PO

O
LE

R 
PA

RK
W

AY

23
0' 

RO
W

AD
T:

 2
0,

00
0

10
,0

00
 (N

B)
10

,0
00

 (S
B)

100' ROWADT: 4,6302,315 (NB)2,315 (SB)

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1
(6

,1
19

 S
F)

FF
E:

 2
0.

20

E

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP

STOP
STOP

STOP

SS

SS

SS

SS

(1) Highrise Live Oak

(1) Trident Maple

(1) Highrise Live Oak

(3) Highrise Live Oak

(1) Trident Maple

(5) Highrise Live Oak

(2) Eastern Redbud

SS

SS

SS

(3) Trident Maple

(3) Trident Maple

(3) Bald Cypress
(1) Eastern Redbud

(6) Bald Cypress

(2) American Holly

(1) Eastern Redbud

PROPOSED SIGN

PROPOSED SIGN

TYPE D PLANTER

25' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

TYPE A PLANTER

TYPE B PLANTER

TYPE C PLANTER

TYPE A PLANTER

TYPE B PLANTER

TYPE C PLANTER

TYPE A PLANTER

TYPE B PLANTER

TYPE C PLANTER

TYPE D PLANTER

PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

TREES QTY COMMON / BOTANICAL NAME CAL. HT. CONT.

8 TRIDENT MAPLE 2.5" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. B&B
ACER BUERGERIANUM

6 EASTERN REDBUD 2.5" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. B&B
CERCIS CANADENSIS

2 AMERICAN HOLLY 2" CAL. 8` HT. MIN. B&B OR CONTAINER
ILEX OPACA

10 HIGHRISE LIVE OAK 2.5" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. B&B
QUERCUS VIRGINIANA 'QVTIA'

9 BALD CYPRESS 2.5" CAL. 12` - 14` HT. B&B
TAXODIUM DISTICHUM

PLANT SCHEDULE
PERCENTAGE

24.24%

12.12%

6.06%

30.30%

27.27%

 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\F
R

EJ
A~

1.
C

AR
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

20
48

4\
L1

-0
0 

- T
R

EE
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

  L
1-

00
 T

R
EE

 P
R

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
   

D
ec

 1
8,

 2
02

3 
 1

0:
29

am
   

by
: F

re
ja

.C
ar

ls
on

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II)

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/01/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

N
O

R
TH

L1-00

TREE
PROTECTION

PLAN

PER CITY OF POOLER CODE:

1. FIFTEEN (15) TREES OF PREFERRED SPECIES TO BE PLANTED
PER 1 ACRE OF DISTURBED LAND IF EXISTING TREE
REQUIREMENT CANNOT BE MET

DISTURBED LAND: 2.27 AC
NON-PLANTABLE ACREAGE: 0.12
PLANTABLE DEVELOPABLE ACREAGE: 2.27-0.11 = 2.16 AC

REQUIRED TREES: 15 X 2.16 = 32.25 TREES OF PREFERRED
SPECIES
PROVIDED TREES: 33 TREES OF PREFERRED SPECIES
REQUIREMENT MET

2. FOR ALL SITES, NO MORE THAN 30% OF TREES PLANTED
SHALL BE THE SAME SPECIES IN ORDER TO INCREASE
SPECIES DIVERSITY. REQUIREMENT MET

3. ONE (1) LARGE OR MEDIUM TREES IS REQUIRED FOR EVERY
TWELVE (12) PARKING SPACES

60 PARKING SPACES / 12 = 5 TREES REQUIRED
REQUIREMENT MET

4. PER 6-20-23 MEETING WITH CITY OF POOLER, (1) LARGE
CANOPY TREES PER 500 SF OR (1) MEDIUM CANOPY TREE PER
300 SF

5. TREES SHALL NOT BE PLATED WITHIN 10 FEET OF ANY
UNDERGROUND UTILITY OR STORM DRAIN.

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

4

TOTAL CODE REQUIRED TREES: 33

50 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

25 FT LANDSCAPE BUFFER LINE

PROPERTY LINE

WAWA ASPHALT PAVEMENT

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

SITE PLAN LEGEND:

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

STAMPED CONCRETE

PARKING COUNT10

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT SIDEWALK

LIGHT



 D
ra

w
in

g 
na

m
e:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\F
R

EJ
A~

1.
C

AR
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

20
48

4\
L1

-0
0 

- T
R

EE
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
.d

w
g 

  L
2-

10
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
D

ET
AI

LS
   

D
ec

 1
8,

 2
02

3 
 1

0:
29

am
   

by
: F

re
ja

.C
ar

ls
on

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
PR

O
JE

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013488002

N
o.

IS
SU

AN
C

E 
AN

D
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

S
D

AT
E

BY

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.
(LEVEL II)

TITLE

W
AW

A 
- P

O
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

 A
T 

PI
N

E 
BA

R
R

EN
 R

O
AD

 P
O

O
LE

R
, G

A 
31

32
2

 1
ST

 D
IS

TR
IC

T
PA

R
C

EL
 ID

: 5
10

11
-0

10
27

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y

12/01/2023

©
 2

02
3 

KI
M

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

 A
N

D
 A

SS
O

C
IA

TE
S,

 IN
C

.
25

 B
U

LL
 S

TR
EE

T,
 S

U
IT

E 
40

0
SA

VA
N

N
AH

, G
EO

R
G

IA
 3

14
01

PH
O

N
E 

(9
12

) 2
31

-4
38

4
W

W
W

.K
IM

LE
Y-

H
O

R
N

.C
O

M

W
AW

A,
 IN

C
.

R
ED

 R
O

O
F 

26
0 

W
. B

AL
TI

M
O

R
E 

PI
KE

W
AW

A,
 P

EN
N

SY
LV

AN
IA

 1
90

63
PH

O
N

E:
 6

10
-3

58
-8

00
0

MF

DDS

JNG

L2-10

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

L2-10

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

L2-10

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

2 LANDSCAPE BED PLANTING DETAIL
NTS

NOTES:
        THIS DETAIL IS APPLICABLE FOR SOIL AND ROOTBALL INSTALLATION.

1 ROOTBALL:
- IN ENGINEERED WELL DRAINED SOIL CONDITIONS:

SET TOP SURFACE ELEVATION OF ROOT BALL 1"-2" ABOVE 
FINISHED GRADE AND ROOT BALL IS TO BE COVERED WITH 1" 
MULCH.

- NO MULCH TO TOUCH THE TREE TRUNK AND ROOT FLARE IT TO BE
VISIBLE.

2 SHRUB PLANTING

3 GROUNDCOVER PLANTING

4 EARTHEN SAUCER

5 3'' MULCH LAYER OR GRAVEL
     -MULCH OR GRAVEL SHALL NOT BE PLACED WITHIN 6" OF TREE TRUNK

ROOT FLARE
     -MULCH OR GRAVEL SHALL NOT BE PLACE WITHIN 6" OF SHRUB TRUNK

OR STEM FLARE

6 TREE:
     EXCAVATE PLANTING PIT TO 3 TIMES THE WIDTH OF ROOTBALL (8' MIN.)

FLARING SIDES OF PIT AS SHOWN.  SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT SO THAT THE
SIDES ARE NOT SMOOTH OR GLAZED.
SHRUB:

     EXCAVATE PIT TO 2 TIMES THE WIDTH OF ROOTBALL OR CONTAINER
SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT SO THAT SIDES ARE NOT SMOOTH/GLAZED

7 BACKFILL WITH SOIL MIX PER SPECIFICATIONS

8   REMOVE TOP 3/4 OF BURLAP ROOTBALL COVERING.  REMOVE ALL
     SYNTHETIC COVERING FROM ENTIRE ROOTBALL.

9   ROOTBALLS GREATER THAN 24" DIAMETER SHALL BE PLACED ON MOUND
     OF UNDISTURBED SOIL TO PREVENT SETTLING ROOTBALLS SMALLER
     THAN 24" IN DIA. MAY SIT ON COMPACTED EARTH. NOT LOOSE
     BACKFILL MATERIAL.

   10   UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE
NOTES:
B&B MATERIAL
1. REMOVE ALL SYNTHETIC STRAP AND SYNTHETIC BURLAP FROM ROOTBALL
2. REMOVE 34 OF BURLAP FROM TOP OF ROOT BALL COVERING
3. REMOVE TOP 12 OF WIRE BASKET (IF PRESENT)
4. DO NOT INSTALL MULCH WITHIN 6" OF MAIN TRUNK OF STEM

CONTAINER MATERIAL
1. REMOVE CONTAINER FROM AROUND PLANT PRIOR TO PLANTING
2. BREAK UP ANY CIRCLING OR BINDING ROOTS
3. SCARIFY SIDE OF ROOTBALL
4. DO NOT INSTALL MULCH WITHIN 6" OF TRUNK FLARE

10

9
8

7
6

5
4
1

SECTION

1. SET TOP SURFACE ELEVATION OF ROOT
BALL 1"-2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE AND
ROOT BALL IS TO BE COVERED WITH 1"
MULCH.

2. WHEN USED IN MASSES- PRUNE ALL
    SHRUBS TO ACHIEVE A UNIFORM
    MASS/HEIGHT

3. 3" MINIMUM OF HARDWOOD BARK MULCH
    COMPACTED OR AS SPECIFIED.

4. EXCAVATE ENTIRE BED SPECIFIED FOR
    GROUNDCOVER BED.

5. 5" MINIMUM OF TOPSOIL TO BRING TO
    FINISHED GRADE (SEE GRADING PLAN).

6. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED.
    NOTE: WHEN GROUND- COVERS AND
    SHRUBS USED IN MASSES ENTIRE BED TO
    BE AMENDED WITH PLANTING SOIL MIX AS
    SPECIFIED.

7. SCARIFY ROOTBALL SIDES AND BOTTOM.

BEST FACE OF SHRUB/
GROUNDCOVER TO FACE
FRONT OF PLANTING BED.

REFER TO PLANT
SCHEDULE FOR SPACING

1 TYPICAL TREE PLANTING
NTS

BOLLARD BY OTHERS
PLANTER, SEE SCHEDULE FOR
SPECIFICATIONS
EDGE OF PAVEMENT BELOW

DRAIN BELOW, BY OTHERS
PLANTER IRRIGATION - TYP.
SEE IRRIGATION PLAN

PLANT MATERIAL TYP -
SEE PLANTING PLAN

PLANT MATERIAL TYP - SEE PLANTING PLAN

BOLLARD BY OTHERS

FILL SOIL TO 1" BELOW TOP OF PLANTER POT

PLANTER, SEE SCHEDULE FOR SPECIFICATION

IRRIGATION TYP - SEE IRRIGATION PLAN

FILL BASE OF POT WITH 1" OF NO.57 STONE FOR
EVERY 5" OF PLANTER HEIGHT
DRAINAGE PIPE WITH ATRIUM GRATE TO BE
CONNECTED TO DRAINAGE SYSTEM, SEE CIVIL PLANS
ADJACENT CONDITIONS VARY - SEE SITE PLAN

NO. 57 STONE OVER LANDSCAPE FABRIC

IRRIGATION LATERAL LINE CONDUIT, SEE
IRRIGATION PLAN FOR LOCATION

3 TYPICAL RAISED PLANTING DETAIL
NTS

24
"

24"

14" MIN

TYPE A TYPE B TYPE C TYPE D

4 RAISED PLANTER PLANTING LAYOUT
NTS

WARM SEASON
1. YELLOW TALL MARIGOLD
2. PINK PORTULACA
3. ORANGE ZINNIA
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. PINK PENTAS
6. ORANGE PLUME CELOSIA
7. YELLOW DAHLBERG DAISY

COOL SEASON
1. ORANGE TALL SNAPDRAGON
2. YELLOW PANSY
3. WHITE ALYSSUM
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. YELLOW CALENDULA
6. RED PETUNIA
7. PINK PANSY

WARM SEASON
1. DUNE FLOWER
2. PINK BEGONIA
3. RED SALVIA
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. WHITE PENTAS
6. ORANGE PLUME CELOSIA
7. PINK BEGONIA

COOL SEASON
1. PURPLE CONEFLOWER
2. YELLOW CALEDULA
3. RED PANSY
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. YELLOW PANSY
6. PINK PETUNIA
7. SHASTA DAISY

WARM SEASON
1. TALL PINK ZINNIA
2. ORANGE PLUME CELOSIA
3. YELLOW DAHLBERG DAISY
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. RED PENTAS
6. PINK PORTULACA
7. WHITE BEGONIA

COOL SEASON
1. YELLOW TALL SNAPDRAGON
2. WHITE CANDYTUFT
3. PINK ALYSSUM
4. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS
5. YELLOW PANSY
6. WHITE PETUNIA
7. COTTAGE PINK OXALIS

WARM SEASON
1. YELLOW TALL MARIGOLD
2. PINK PORTULACA
3. ORANGE ZINNIA
4. PINK PENTAS
5. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS

COOL SEASON
1. PURPLE CONEFLOWER
2. YELLOW CALENDULA
3. RED PANSY
4. YELLOW PANSY
5. DWARF WHITE FOUNTAIN GRASS

BOULEVARD SERIES PLANTER BY ALLIED MOLDED
PRODUCTS, LLC.

MODELS # 1RECLP-482424 I# 1SLP-2425

COLOR : DC-35 PURE WHITE

FINISH: FEATI-lER-LITE STONE 100

PLAN

SECTION

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES:
1.  ALL TOPSOIL SHALL BE A MINIMUM 4” IN ALL SOD AREAS AND 10” - 12” IN TREE, SHRUB AND GROUND COVER BEDS, INCLUDING

PARKING LOT ISLAND BEDS.  IT SHALL BE APPROVED BY A WAWA CONSTRUCTION REPRESENTATIVE, PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION.

2.  PLANTING BEHIND PERPENDICULAR PARKING IS TO BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 5' BEHIND THE CURB LINE.

3.  ALL LANDSCAPE AND GRASS AREAS ARE TO BE HAND RAKED AND LEFT CLEAR OF ALL STONES, ROCK, CONSTRUCTION
DEBRIS AND ANY UNSUITABLE MATERIALS.

4.  ALL LANDSCAPE AND GRASS AREAS ARE TO BE IRRIGATED BY AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM.  (SEE IRRIGATION
SPECIFICATION.)

5.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR WILL LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION AND PLANTING
INSTALLATION.

6.  ALL AREAS TO BE LANDSCAPED OR COVERED WITH STONE MUST BE TREATED WITH A PRE-EMERGENCE HERBICIDE
(SURFLAN, DACTAL OR APPROVED EQUAL) IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE REGULATIONS AND THE
MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.

7.  MULCH BEDS ARE TO BE DELINEATED WITH HAND OR MACHINE DUG SHOVEL EDGING.

8.  RIVER ROCK BEDS ARE TO BE DELINEATED WITH 5 ½” ALUMINUM LANDSCAPE EDGING, STAKED AT 3' INTERVALS.  ALUMINUM
EDGING IS TO BE CLEANLINE 3/16” X 5 ½” X 16' BY PERMALOC. (800-356-9660, //WWW.PERMALOC.COM.)  FOLLOW
MANUFACTURERS INSTALLATION DIRECTIONS INCLUDED AT THE END OF THIS SECTION.

9.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY AND INSTALL A PERVIOUS WEED BARRIER (DEWITT, DUPONT OR APPROVED EQUAL) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS WITHIN ALL LANDSCAPES, INCLUDING STONE AND MULCH BEDS.  ALL
WEED BARRIER WILL BE OVERLAPPED A MINIMUM OF 6” AT ALL SEAMS.  AT PLANT LOCATIONS, BARRIER SHOULD BE CUT IN
AN “X” PATTERN SO TO ACCOMMODATE ROOT BALL AND REPLACED AFTER PLANT HAS BEEN INSTALLED.

10. WEED BARRIER SHALL NOT BE VISIBLE IN AREAS DESIGNATED FOR STONE MULCH. WHEN STONE IS CALLED FOR ADJACENT
TO CURB OR SIDEWALKS, IT SHALL BE FEATHERED DOWN TO CURB LEVEL FROM A DISTANCE 24” FROM THE CURB.

11. ALL PROPOSED LANDSCAPING TO BE NURSERY GROWN, TYPICAL OF THEIR SPECIES OR VARIETY. THEY ARE TO HAVE
NORMAL VIGOROUS ROOT SYSTEMS, FREE FROM DEFECTS AND INFECTIONS AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANSI Z60.1

12. ALL PROPOSED PLANTINGS SHOULD BE INSTALLED PER STANDARDS OF THE “AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN”
AND STATE NURSERY/ LANDSCAPE ASSOCIATIONS WITH REGARD TO PLANTING, PIT SIZE, BACKFILL MIXTURE, STAKING AND
GUYING.

13. ALL PLANTING CONTAINERS AND BASKETS SHALL BE REMOVED DURING PLANTING.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE SET PLUMB AND
POSITIONED SO THAT THE TOP OF THE ROOT COLLAR MATCHES OR IS NO MORE THAN TWO (2”) INCHES ABOVE, FINISHED
GRADE.  REPLACE AMENDED BACKFILL IN 6-INCH LAYERS AND COMPACT BACKFILL TO ELIMINATE VOIDS.  CONTRACTOR
SHALL PROVIDE A FOURINCH HIGH EARTHEN WATERING SAUCER ALONG THE PERIMETER OF EACH PLANTING PIT.
CONTRACTOR SHALL WATER NEWLY PLANTED VEGETATION PRIOR TO MULCHING PLANTING PIT.  ALL VOIDS SHALL BE FILLED
AND SETTLING MITIGATED AS REQUIRED. ALUMINUM EDGING SHALL BE INSTALLED AROUND ALL PLANTING AREAS TO
DELINEATE BETWEEN DIFFERENT LANDSCAPE MATERIALS.

14. AFTER INITIAL WATERING AND PRIOR TO MULCHING, CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY HERBICIDES AND PRE-EMERGENT
HERBICIDES AS REQUIRED TO ELIMINATE ANY WEED SEEDS OR PLANTS PRESENT ON ROOT BALL.

15. ALL PLANTING BEDS AND PITS EXCEPT FOR LANDSCAPE ISLANDS ADJACENT TO THE BUILDING AND DESIGNATED AREA AT
THE FUEL VENT STACKS, SHALL BE MULCHED WITH DOUBLE GROUND HARDWOOD MULCH AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 3”.
LANDSCAPE ISLANDS ADJACENT TO THE TANK MAT SHALL BE MULCHED WITH 1”-3” “RIVER STONE” MULCH TO AT LEAST A
DISTANCE OF 5' FROM THE TANK MAT AND VENT STACK.  FOR LANDSCAPES ADJACENT TO BUILDING, CONTACT WAWA'S
PROJECT ENGINEER.

16. TURF SPECIFICATION AND SEEDBED PREPARATION

A. UNLESS REQUIRED FOR PARTICULAR BMP AREAS, ALL TURF ON WAWA LEASED PREMISES IS TO BE SOD.  WHEN
REQUIRED FOR BMP'S, SEED MIX IS TO MEET LOCAL REQUIREMENTS.  SOD SHALL BE TURF TYPE TALL FESCUE AND
INSTALLED ON A MINIMUM OF 4” OF TOPSOIL.

B. APPLY LIMESTONE AND FERTILIZER ACCORDING TO SOIL TESTS OR FERTILIZER MAY BE APPLIED AT THE RATE OF 260
POUNDS PER ACRE OR 6 POUNDS PER 1000 SQUARE FEET USING 10-20-10 OR EQUIVALENT.  IN ADDITION, 300 POUNDS
4-1-2 PER ACRE OR EQUIVALENT OF SLOW-RELEASE NITROGEN MAY BE USED IN LIEU OF TOPDRESSING.

C. WORK LIME AND FERTILIZER INTO THE SOIL AS PRACTICAL TO A DEPTH OF 4-INCHES WITH A DISC, SPRING TOOTH
HARROW OR OTHER SUITABLE EQUIPMENT.  THE FINAL HARROWING OR DISKING OPERATION SHOULD PARALLEL TO THE
GENERAL CONTOUR.  CONTINUE TILLAGE UNTIL A REASONABLE UNIFORM, FINE SEEDBED IS PREPARED.  ALL BUT CLAY
OR SILTY SOILS AND COARSE SANDS SHOULD BE ROLLED TO FIRM THE SEEDBED WHEREVER FEASIBLE.

D. INSPECT SEEDBED JUST BEFORE SEEDING.  IF TRAFFIC HAS LEFT THE SOIL COMPACTED, THE AREA MUST BE RETILLED
AND FIRMED AS OUTLINED BELOW.

17. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR ONE YEAR FROM THE DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETENESS. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE PLANTS, DEAD, UNHEALTHY, DYING OR DAMAGED THROUGH LOSS OF BRANCHES AND/OR
FOLIAGE.  LAWNS THAT ARE NOT IN GOOD CONDITION AT THE END OF THE GUARANTEE PERIOD SHALL BE REPAIRED UNTIL A
GOOD LAWN RESULTS.  IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNER SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR WATERING ALL PLANT
MATERIAL AND LAWN AREA BEGINNING WITH THE DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETENESS.

5 TREE STAKING
NTS

1

1. PROTECT TREE TRUNK
WITH BLACK RUBBER
HOSE.

2. #10 GAUGE WIRE(NOTE
FOR MULTI-TRUNK
TREES, GUY TO
STRONGEST TRUNK AT
CENTER).

3. THREE 2" X 8" LODGE
POLES SPACED EVENLY
AROUND TREE.

4. 3" MINIMUM OF MULCH
COMPACTED OR AS
SPECIFIED.

5. SOIL BERM TO HOLD
WATER.

6. FINISHED GRADE (SEE
GRADING PLAN).

7. SET TOP SURFACE
ELEVATION OF ROOT
BALL 1"-2" ABOVE
FINISHED GRADE AND
ROOT BALL IS TO BE
COVERED WITH 1"
MULCH.

8. NO MULCH TO TOUCH
THE TREE TRUNK AND
ROOT FLARE IT TO BE
VISIBLE.

9. B & B OR
CONTAINERIZED (SEE
SPECIFICATIONS FOR
ROOT BALL
REQUIREMENTS).

10. PREPARED PLANTING
SOIL AS SPECIFIES.

11. ROOT BALLS GREATER
THAN 24" DIAMETER
SHALL BE PLACED ON
MOUND OF
UNDISTURBED SOIL TO
PREVENT SETTLING.
ROOT BALLS SMALLER
THAN 24" IN DIAMETER
MAY SIT ON COMPACTED
EARTH.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1012"
TYP.

6"
TYP.

120°

120°

120°
PLAN



20 25 25 27 23 18

25 32 29 34 23 22

30 30 33 34 30 26

29 41 39 39 26 26

34 42 42 46 34 29

35 43 45 48 41 31

35 43 42 46 34 30

35 43 41 41 36 29

35 43 41 41 36 29

35 44 42 47 35 30

35 44 46 48 41 33

36 44 43 47 36 30

32 43 42 41 28 29

36 37 41 41 37 32

36 44 42 46 34 31

35 44 45 48 41 32

36 44 44 48 36 30

32 44 42 41 30 31

36 37 30 34 38 31

36 44 42 41 30 30

35 44 45 48 37 30

35 44 45 48 37 30

36 44 42 41 30 30

36 38 32 35 38 31

32 44 42 41 29 30

36 44 44 47 36 30

35 44 45 48 41 32

36 44 42 46 34 30

36 37 41 41 37 31

32 43 41 41 28 29

36 44 43 47 36 30

35 44 46 48 41 32

36 44 42 47 35 30

35 43 41 41 36 29

35 43 41 41 36 29

35 43 42 46 35 30

34 43 45 48 41 32

34 42 42 46 34 29

29 40 39 39 26 27

29 29 32 33 30 26

25 31 29 33 23 22

19 24 24 26 22 18

6.7 4.8 5.2 4.5 5.4 5.2 5.3 6.2 5.9 6.0 5.1 5.8 4.8 5.0 5.5 6.1

7.0 7.8 7.3 6.7 7.5 7.2 6.0 6.4 6.2 6.5 6.6 8.5 7.1 7.3 8.0 6.9

7.8 8.3 6.4 7.4 6.5 7.5 6.9 5.9 5.6 6.9 7.7 6.6 7.5 7.1 6.9 8.4

7.0 6.5 4.7 4.9 4.8 5.7 6.2 5.3 5.0 6.1 6.3 5.1 5.2 5.1 5.2 7.1

1.8 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.6 3.4

2.4 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.9 3.7

3.2 3.7 3.7 3.2 3.3 4.1

3.3 3.8 3.8 3.4 3.5 4.3

2.7 3.9 4.1 3.8 3.9 4.3

2.6 3.8 4.4 4.2 4.4 4.6

3.5 3.6 4.4 5.2

4.2 5.4

2.3 2.5 3.0 3.8 4.6 3.9

1.9 2.3 2.6 3.3 3.8 3.5 5.0 5.2 5.5 7.6 11.0 16.7 11.1 6.8 5.0 4.1 3.4

1.8 2.4 2.7 3.4 3.7 3.1 4.8 4.8 5.5 7.2 10.0 15.6 9.8 6.1 4.7 3.8 3.4

2.1 2.9 3.2 3.8 4.3 3.4 4.4 4.1 5.4 6.6 8.8 13.3 8.4 5.3 4.5 4.1 3.2

2.5 3.5 3.7 4.0 3.8 3.3 3.5 3.7 5.0 5.9 7.6 10.6 6.8 4.3 3.9 3.5 2.8

2.6 3.3 3.5 3.0 2.6 2.5 3.2 3.3 4.3 4.7 5.9 8.6 5.2 3.5 3.0 2.6 2.2

1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.2 2.9 2.4 3.0 2.9 2.9 3.5 3.9 4.7 5.9 7.8 10.1 11.3 10.9 11.0 9.7 7.5 5.9 3.9 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7

2.7 2.4 2.5 2.8 2.9 3.4 4.0 4.6 5.7 6.4 6.6 6.2 5.9 4.8 3.8 2.6 2.0 1.7 1.6 1.4

4.5

4.9 4.9 4.3 4.5 5.8 7.5 6.0 3.8 3.8 4.0 3.8 4.5

4.0 3.5 4.0 5.4 7.1 5.9 5.1 5.4 5.7 7.7 5.4 5.3 3.9 4.8 5.4 5.6 1.6 2.2 3.6 3.6 3.4 3.5 3.4 2.1

4.6 4.8 4.8 6.5 7.9 7.0 4.4 3.8 4.7 6.7 4.9 3.7 3.7 4.9 6.0 8.4 5.1 4.4 4.4 6.2 6.5 6.8 6.3 4.4 2.5 1.5

4.7 5.4 5.0 6.0 6.0 5.8 3.9 2.7 3.2 4.0 3.1 2.5 3.3 5.5 7.4 6.1 5.7 5.5 5.6 8.1 3.5 1.8

5.6 5.1 4.1 3.7 3.1 3.1 2.5 2.0 2.0 2.2 1.9 1.8 2.5 3.9 4.4 5.2 4.5 4.5 6.2 10.0 4.6 2.1 1.3

3.3 4.1 2.7 2.0 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.4 2.9 3.1 6.0 12.8 6.2 2.5 1.7

3.1 2.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 2.6 5.4 14.0 7.0 3.0 2.0

3.0 2.9 3.0 2.1 1.3 1.2 1.7 2.2 5.1 14.3 8.0 4.4 2.8

3.2 3.8 3.0 1.8 1.1 1.1 1.7 1.0 1.3 2.0 5.1 14.5 9.0 4.9 3.5

4.0 3.3 2.2 1.5 1.1 1.3 1.8 1.0 1.3 2.0 5.1 14.3 9.6 5.0 2.9

2.8 3.0 2.3 1.7 1.2 1.4 2.4 1.2 1.3 2.0 5.1 14.7 9.5 5.2 3.2

4.2 3.0 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.6 2.7 1.9 1.4 2.0 5.0 14.5 8.7 5.2 3.3

3.2 4.1 2.8 1.8 1.4 1.7 2.8 2.4 1.5 2.1 5.0 14.5 8.0 4.3 2.8

4.2 3.8 3.2 2.2 1.5 1.7 3.7 2.6 1.6 2.1 5.1 14.7 7.6 3.3

3.6 4.1 3.2 2.0 1.4 1.6 3.1 2.4 1.7 2.2 5.2 14.3 7.4 2.8

4.1 3.4 2.3 1.7 1.3 1.7 2.8 2.5 2.0 2.3 5.2 14.6 7.1 2.7

2.9 3.0 2.3 1.8 1.3 1.5 2.5 2.8 1.9 2.3 5.1 14.4 7.2 2.7

4.2 3.0 2.2 1.7 1.2 1.4 2.3 5.1 14.4 7.1 2.8

3.4 4.4 3.0 1.9 1.3 1.4 2.1 5.1 7.5 3.3 2.1 2.3 5.2 14.9 7.4 3.2

6.0 6.3 3.7 2.4 1.6 1.5 2.4 4.8 6.3 3.3 2.3 2.4 5.2 14.5 7.7 3.7

1.9 2.5 2.8 2.7 2.7 3.7 4.1 3.3 3.2 4.6 4.8 3.5 3.8 3.7 4.5 2.6 2.3 2.7 5.4 14.6 8.5 5.1

1.5 2.3 4.1 3.6 4.0 3.6 2.8 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.2 3.0 3.1 3.3 3.0 2.8 2.6 3.2 6.0 14.7 9.2 4.8

1.9 2.4 3.3 4.3 3.2 2.8 2.6 2.6 3.3 3.7 3.6 3.1 3.2 3.9 3.4 3.3 3.3 4.2 6.4 14.1 9.1 4.7

3.2 2.5 3.2 3.4 3.5 3.5 3.6 3.5 4.6 4.4 3.9

3.3 1.4 2.9 2.9 2.4 2.9 3.2 3.6 4.1 4.3 3.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.8 1.1 0.6 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.4 1.5 1.6 2.0 2.8 2.0 0.3 0.4 2.1 1.8 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 1.3 3.1 3.5 3.6 3.9 3.7 2.8 0.8 1.9 2.6 3.1 2.3 2.2 1.9 1.6 1.1 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.8 3.0 4.7 4.4 4.5 4.5 3.7 3.4 4.4 4.1 3.3 3.5 3.7 3.2 2.2 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 1.0 1.5 1.6 2.2 1.6 1.0 3.2 3.5 1.8 1.3 1.7 2.0 1.1 1.9 1.6 1.2 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.7 3.4 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.4 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.8 2.3 1.1 0.6 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.3 1.0 2.3 2.5 3.1 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.8 1.5 2.6 3.6 3.2 1.8 1.7 3.0 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 1.0 2.4 3.2 3.0 1.3 1.4 1.8 1.7 2.0 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.5 2.9 3.7 2.5 10.4 8.7 8.3 7.1 9.3 8.0 1.1 1.1 1.4 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 2.4 4.3 4.0 3.1 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 2.0 3.0 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 1.4 4.4 1.5 0.8 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 1.9 4.0 3.7 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 2.2 5.5 8.5 0.9 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 3.4 8.1 9.2 2.1 0.9 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 2.7 7.8 9.4 1.8 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 2.0 4.9 8.0 1.5 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.4 4.9 8.2 1.4 0.7 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.8 1.4 2.2 3.4 3.4 2.4 1.9 1.6 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 2.1 2.1 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.4 3.1 2.4 0.9 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.7 3.0 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 3.3 0.8 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 2.3 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 1.0 3.1 3.5 4.0 3.2 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 3.1 3.5 4.5 2.6 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 1.1 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.4 1.3 1.2 0.6 1.1 1.5 2.3 3.2 3.0 3.3 3.1 1.8 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.9 1.4 2.1 2.3 1.7 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.5 1.1 1.9 2.1 3.1 2.7 2.1 2.4 2.9 3.9 4.8 4.6 3.0 1.9 1.5 1.2 0.5 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

FOOTCANDLE LEVELS CALCULATED AT GRADE USING INITIAL LUMEN VALUES

LABEL AVG MAX MIN AVG/MIN MAX/MIN

CANOPY 36.42 48 18 2.02 2.67

DELIVERY AREA 6.31 8.5 4.5 1.40 1.89

ENTRANCE & EXIT DRIVES 4.42 16.7 1.4 3.16 11.93

PARKING & INTERIOR DRIVE AISLES 4.05 14.9 1.0 4.05 14.90

UNDEFINED 0.60 10.4 0.0 N.A. N.A.

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

SYMBOL QTY LABEL ARRANGEMENT LUMENS LLF BUG RATING WATTS/LUMINAIRE TOTAL WATTS MANUFACTURER CATALOG LOGIC

4 A4 SINGLE 8891 1.010 B1-U0-G2 134 536 CREE, INC. ARE-EDG-3MB-DA-06-E-UL-XX-700-57K

3 B1 SINGLE 12678 1.010 B3-U0-G2 134 402 Cree Inc. ARE-EDG-4M-DA-06-E-UL-XX-700-57K

2 B4 SINGLE 9549 1.010 B1-U0-G2 134 268 CREE, INC. ARE-EDG-4MB-DA-06-E-UL-XX-700-57K

3 B5 2 @ 90 degrees 9549 1.010 B1-U0-G2 134 804 CREE, INC. ARE-EDG-4MB-DA-06-E-UL-XX-700-57K

32 C1 SINGLE 10912 1.010 B3-U0-G1 101 3232 CREE, INC. CAN-304-SL-RD-06-E-UL-XX-525-57K

24 D1 SINGLE 1970 1.010 B2-U0-G0 24 576 Cree Lighting KR6R-20L-935-12-XX + KR6T-SSGC-FF

2 D2 SINGLE 1000 1.010 B1-U0-G0 13 26 Cree Lighting KR4R-9L-935-12-XX + KR4T-SSGC-FF

2 S1 SINGLE 2659 1.000 B0-U5-G2 20 40 FC/SSL Lighting FCWS7170-XXX-35K-2500-CRI85-XX-D

2 S2 SINGLE 2542 1.000 B0-U4-G2 20 40 FC/SSL Lighting FCWS7168-UNV-35K-2500-CRI85-XX-D

6 W1 SINGLE 2859 1.010 B0-U0-G1 50 300 CREE INC. SEC-EDG-4MB-WM-02-E-UL-XX-700-57K

2 W2 SINGLE 8480 1.010 B1-U0-G2 134 268 CREE INC. SEC-EDG-4MB-WM-06-E-UL-XX-700-57K

2 W3 SINGLE 1557 1.010 B0-U0-G1 25 50 CREE, INC. SEC-EDG-3MB-WM-02-E-UL-XX-350-57K

LUMINAIRE LOCATION SUMMARY

LUM NO. LABEL MTG. HT.

44 C1 16.21

45 C1 16.21

46 D1 9

47 D1 9

48 D1 9

49 D1 9

50 D1 9

51 D1 9

52 D1 9

53 D1 9

54 D1 9

55 D1 9

56 D1 9

57 D1 9

58 D1 9

59 D1 9

60 D1 9

61 D1 9

62 D1 9

63 D1 9

64 D1 9

65 D1 9

66 D1 9

67 D1 9

68 D1 9

69 D1 9

70 D2 9

71 D2 9

72 S1 9

73 S1 9

74 S2 8.5

75 S2 8.5

76 W1 15

77 W1 15

78 W1 15

79 W1 15

80 W1 15

81 W1 15

82 W2 15

83 W2 15

84 W3 8

85 W3 8

LUMINAIRE LOCATION SUMMARY

LUM NO. LABEL MTG. HT.

2 A4 20.5

3 A4 20.5

4 A4 20.5

5 A4 20.5

6 B1 20.5

7 B1 20.5

8 B1 20.5

9 B4 20.5

10 B4 20.5

11 B5 20.5

12 B5 20.5

13 B5 20.5

14 C1 18.21

15 C1 18.21

16 C1 18.21

17 C1 18.21

18 C1 18.21

19 C1 18.21

20 C1 18.21

21 C1 18.21

22 C1 18.21

23 C1 18.21

24 C1 18.21

25 C1 18.21

26 C1 18.21

27 C1 18.21

28 C1 18.21

29 C1 18.21

30 C1 16.21

31 C1 16.21

32 C1 16.21

33 C1 16.21

34 C1 16.21

35 C1 16.21

36 C1 16.21

37 C1 16.21

38 C1 16.21

39 C1 16.21

40 C1 16.21

41 C1 16.21

42 C1 16.21

43 C1 16.21

NOTES:
- ALL AREA LIGHTS ON 20 FT. POLES MOUNTED ON 6 IN. CONCRETE BASES

2
A4

3
A4

4
A4

5
A4 6

B1

7
B1

8
B1

9
B4

10
B4

11
B5

12
B5

13
B5

14
C1

15
C1

16
C1

17
C1

18
C1

19
C1

20
C1

21
C1

22
C1

23
C1

24
C1

25
C1

26
C1

27
C1

28
C1

29
C1

30
C1

31
C1

32
C1

33
C1

34
C1

35
C1

36
C1

37
C1

38
C1

39
C1

40
C1

41
C1

42
C1

43
C1

44
C1

45
C1

46
D1

47
D1

48
D1

49
D1
50
D1

51
D1

52
D1

53
D1

54
D1

55
D1

56
D1

57
D1

58
D1

59
D1

60
D1

61
D1

62
D1

63
D1

64
D1

65
D1

66
D1

67
D1

68
D1

69
D1 70

D2

71
D2

72
S1

73
S1

74
S2

75
S2

76
W1

77
W1

78
W1

79
W1

80
W1

81
W1

82
W2

83
W2

84
W3

85
W3

E

A

A

E

PINE BARREN ROAD
PO

O
LE

R
 P

AR
KW

AY

F8
5 

F/
B 

L 
V2

02
1.

1

THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN A REGION WHERE LIGHTING IS
REGULATED BY LOCAL ORDINANCES

WAWA #6309
POOLER, GA

SCALE:

1" = 30'

D 10/26/23

LMP
LAYOUT BY:

DWG SIZE: DATE:

PROJECT NAME:

DRAWING NUMBER:

RL-9263-S1

REV. BY DATE DESCRIPTION
.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240
513-574-9500   redleonard.com

ANY SITE PLAN(S), FLOOR PLAN(S), RENDERING(S), LIGHTING LAYOUT(S) AND PHOTOMETRIC PLAN(S) INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY PROJECT(S) CREATED/PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC., ARE ONLY INTENDED
FOR ILLUSTRATION AND QUOTING PURPOSES ONLY. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES HAS THE RIGHT TO USE THIRD PARTY LASERS, SCANNERS, AND CAMERAS BUT ACTUAL PROJECT CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS, AND ACCURACY OF
MEASUREMENTS MAY DIFFER FROM THESE OR ANY PARAMETERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES INC. ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR WHAT IS CREATED/PRODUCED IN THESE RECREATIONS. THIS INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO THE
USE OF, INSTALLATION OF AND/OR INTEGRITY OF EXISTING BUILDING(S), SURROUNDING AREA FOR PRODUCT(S) SUCH AS EXISTING POLE(S), ANCHOR BOLT(S), BASE(S), ARCHITECTURAL AND SIGNAGE STRUCTURE(S), LANDSCAPING
PLAN(S), LIGHTING PLAN(S), FIXTURE SELECTION(S) AND PLACEMENT, MATERIAL(S), COLOR ACCURACY, TEXTURE(S), AND ANYTHING ATTRIBUTED TO PHOTO REALISM THAT IS CREATED. FURTHERMORE, RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES
INC., DOES NOT ASSUME LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY PURCHASES MADE BY CLIENT BEFORE, DURING, OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PUBLISHED WORK. THE CUSTOMER, ITS RELATIVE AFFILIATES, AS WELL AS ANY OTHER
PERSON(S) IN VIEWING OF THIS PRODUCT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH ANY BUT NOT LIMITED TO ALL CODES, PERMITS, RESTRICTIONS, INSTRUCTIONS, PURCHASES, AND INSTALLATIONS OF OBJECTS VIEWED
WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT(S) OR PROJECT(S). SYMBOLS ARE NOT DRAWN TO SCALE. SIZE IS FOR CLARITY PURPOSES ONLY. SIZES AND DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE, ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS MAY VARY. DRAWINGS ARE NOT
INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION USE. THIS DOCUMENT, ANY RED LEONARD DRAWING(S), OR PROJECT(S) IS NOT TO BE USED AND/OR INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES, BUT FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. ANY LOCATIONS OF EMERGENCY LIGHTING SHOWN WERE PROVIDED BY OTHERS. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR INSUFFICIENT LIGHTING DURING AN EMERGENCY EVENT.
ANY USE OF THIS DOCUMENTATION AND/OR OTHER ARTICLES PRODUCED BY RED LEONARD WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM JAYME J. LEONARD IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

DISCLAIMER

1340 Kemper Meadow Dr, Forest Park, OH 45240
513-574-9500  |  redleonard.com



January 24th, 2024 
Jamie N. Gwaltney, P.E. 
Kimley Horn
25 Bull St, Suite 400
Savannah, GA 31401

Dear Mr. Gwaltney,

I am pleased to provide you with a recommendation for Approval of the site development plans for Wawa, 
which is provided below.

Submittal Documents: Site Development Plans  Jan. 2024
GSWCC Approval   Dec. 2023
Stormwater Management Report  Nov. 2023
Water Distribution & Hydrant Flow Test  Nov. 2023

We have reviewed the submittal for the referenced project. The plans were reviewed for general 
conformance with the requirements of the City of Pooler.  This review of the submitted site plans does not 
relieve the Owner, Designer and Contractor, or their representatives, from their individual or collective 
responsibility to comply with the applicable provisions of the local, State and Federal Laws and 
Engineering Standards, and all Development Codes that apply to the City of Pooler. This review is not to 
be construed as a check of every item in the plans or construction. Failure of this office to note any 
conflict with said requirements does not relieve the developer from compliance. 

The Owner and the Design Consultant are fully responsible for all testing and inspections of their project 
during construction, and they also are fully responsible that the project is constructed in accordance with 
the approved construction plans. The design engineer is solely responsible that their designs are in 
compliance to all Federal, State, and City codes and regulations.  All required permits and approvals, 
pursuant to land disturbing activities and land development shall be provided and found acceptable to the 
City of Pooler. All the required testing results, plans and related material must be available to the City of 
Pooler, or assigned representation, during and after the construction is complete.

To the best of our knowledge, it is our opinion that the plans are in general conformance with the City of 
Pooler’s applicable design standards, codes and ordinances. We hereby recommend Approval of the site 
development plans.

Please contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached via email or phone at 
tshoemaker@eomworx.com or (912) 445-0050 ext. 4400.

Sincerely,

Trevor Shoemaker 
Project Manager
EOM

ATTACHMENT C

mailto:tshoemaker@eomworx.com


CC: Nicole Dixon; Director of Planning and Development – City of Pooler
Brian Crooks; City Planner - City of Pooler
Liberto Chacon, PE; Sr. Vice President – EOM



1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Site Plan for 780 Pooler Parkway

Project: #210748

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Alec Metzger (EMC Engineering) 

Location (Address): 780 Pooler Parkway 

Parcel (PIN): 51011 01027 

Acreage: 1.62 total – 1.42 disturbed 

Zoning: PUD [Godley Station] 

Proposed Use: Commercial retail center 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

Zoning Action Standards: 1. Whether the site plan is consistent with the Comprehensive

Plan for the City of Pooler and any other small area plans.

o The site plan is consistent with the recommendations and

policies of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan for the FLUM

designation and Character Area.

2. Whether the site plan provides for adequate pedestrian and

traffic access.

o The site plan complies with the provisions for access and

circulation per the Godley Station PUD; Sec. 11 of App.



  

2 

A, Art. V related to traffic impacts; and Sec. 2 of App. A, 

Art. III for traffic access. 

3. Whether the site plan provides for adequate space for off-

street parking and loading/unloading zones where applicable. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the Godley 

Station PUD and Sec. 5 of App. A, Art. III for parking and 

loading standards. 

4. Whether the site plan provides for the appropriate location, 

arrangement, size, and design of buildings, lighting, and 

signs, giving due consideration to the applicable zoning 

district(s). 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

development standards for commercial development, 

including setbacks, building separation, and height and 

Chapter 74, Art. VI for lighting. 

5. Whether the site plan is appropriate in scale and relation to 

proposed use(s) to one another and those of adjacent 

properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to the 

location of uses/development areas, development 

standards for commercial development, and buffer 

standards. 

6. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by existing or proposed public facilities, including roads, 

water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater infrastructure. 

o The site plan complies with Sec. 606 of App. B, Art. VI; 

Chapter 74, Art. V; and Chapter 42, Art. V related to 

servicing of utilities and infrastructure. 

7. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by other public serves to account for current or projected 

needs. 

o The site is adequately served by any other public services 

for current or projected needs. 

8. Whether the site plan provides adequate protection for 

adjacent properties against noise, glare, unsightliness, or 

other objectionable features. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

buffer and screening standards. 

9. Whether the site plan provides adequate landscaping, 

including type and arrangement of trees, shrubs, and other 



  

3 

landscaping, which may provide a visual or noise-deterring 

buffer between adjacent properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of Chapter 42, 

Art. VI for tree and landscaping requirements, in general, 

and related buffers. 

10. Whether the site plan provides for improvements in 

accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

including without limitation the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Pooler. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the City of 

Pooler Code of Ordinances, specifications, or standards, 

and all other applicable laws. 

   

Conclusion:  The site plan addresses the site plan approval criteria.  As such, staff 

recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

C. Approval Letter 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #210748 -
780 Pooler
Parkway

02/08/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





SITE

Know what's below.
www.Georgia811.com

R

Call before you dig.

UTILITY LOCATION DISCLAIMER

THE UTILITIES ARE SHOWN AS PER THE LOCATION OF POLES, MANHOLES, VALVES,
PEDESTALS, ETC., EXISTING DRAWINGS AND INFORMATION PROVIDED BY UTILITY
PERSONNEL. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN
COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE
THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED, ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE
LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

EMC ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
ENVIRONMENTAL- MARINE - CIVIL - SURVEY

PROJECT LOCATION: REVISION DESCRIPTION

ENVIRONMENTAL

CIVIL
MARINE

Prepared for

SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS
FOR

DATE

EMC  ENGINEERING  SERVICES,  INC.
 10  CHATHAM CENTER SOUTH,  SUITE  100

 SAVANNAH,  GEORGIA   31405
PHONE:  (912) 232-6533

FAX:  (912) 233-4580
savannah@emc-eng.com

www.emc-eng.com
ALBANY • ATLANTA • AUGUSTA • BRUNSWICK • COLUMBUS • SAVANNAH

STATESBORO • THOMASTON • VALDOSTA • WARNER ROBINS

COMBAT VETERANS, LLC

POOLER, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA

POOLER, CHATHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA
780 POOLER PARKWAY

EMC PROJECT# 20-0130

COMMERCIAL SPACE

1 REVISIONS PER CITY OF POOLER - INITIAL SUBMITTAL DATE 7/1/2021 - REVISIONS RECIEVED 7/21/2021 9/1/2021

2 REVISIONS PER CITY OF POOLER - RESUBMITTAL DATE 9/1/2021 - REVISIONS RECIEVED 10/6/2021 10/26/2021

3 REVISIONS PER CITY OF POOLER - RESUBMITTAL DATE 10/26/2021 - REVISIONS RECIEVED 11/4/2021 11/ /2021

4 REVISIONS PER CITY OF POOLER - FINAL COMMENTS 8/1/2023

- - -

- - -

- - -JULY 2023

PROJECT DATA
OWNER/DEVELOPER:

24HR CONTACT:

PARCEL AREA:

TAX MAP & PARCEL NUMBER:

ZONING CLASSIFICATION:

TOTAL BUILDING AREA:

PROPOSED USE:

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED:

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED:

DISTURBED AREA:

IMPERVIOUS AREA:

COMBAT VETERANS, LLC
107 GODLEY WAY
POOLER, GEORGIA, 31322

ALEC B. METZGER
(912) 644-3223

50017A01040

1.62 AC

PUD - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

COMMERCIAL / RETAIL

0.81 AC

1.42 AC

9,070 SF

37

58

CONSTRUCTION EXIT:
LATITUDE: N032.130325
LONGITUDE: W081.258933

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title

1 COVER

2 GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND

3 EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN

4 STAKING PLAN

5 UTILITY PLAN

6

7

PAVING, GRADING, & DRAINAGE PLAN

8

9

LANDSCAPE PLAN

10

INITIAL EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, & POLLUTION
CONTROL PLAN

11-12

13-16 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

----

INTERMEDIATE EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, & POLLUTION
CONTROL PLAN

FINAL EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, & POLLUTION
CONTROL PLAN

EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, & POLLUTION
CONTROL NOTES

THE OWNER MUST CERTIFY THAT ALL LAND DISTURBING AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES WILL BE
COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DESIGN PLAN.

SIGNATURE: _________________________________________________________________________

THE DESIGNER MUST CERTIFY THAT THE DESIGN MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF
POOLER AND THE LATEST EDITION OF THE COASTAL STORMWATER SUPPLEMENT TO THE
GEORGIA STORMWATER MANAGEMENT MANUAL, AND ANY RELEVANT LOCAL ADDENDA.

SIGNATURE: _________________________________________________________________________

ATTACHMENT B

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
GRID NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
O:\2020\20-0130 780 POOLER PARKWAY\DWG\20-0130C_B01 7-26-23.DWG 1/24/2024 5:42 PM 1/24/2024 5:42 PM1/24/2024 5:42 PM

Alec
Image



SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

10
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 1
00

Sa
va

nn
ah

, G
A 

31
40

5
Ph

: (
91

2)
 2

32
-6

53
3

Fa
x:

 (9
12

) 2
33

-4
58

0
sa

va
nn

ah
@

em
c-

en
g.

co
m

w
w

w
.e

m
c-

en
g.

co
m

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
SA

VA
N

N
AH

 • 
ST

AT
ES

BO
R

O
 • 

TH
O

M
AS

TO
N

 • 
VA

LD
O

ST
A 

• W
AR

N
ER

 R
O

BI
N

S

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

& 
D

EM
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

78
0 

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

, C
H

AT
H

AM
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

SP
AC

E

C
O

M
BA

T 
VE

TE
R

AN
S,

 L
LC

20-0130
MRK
MRK

BREWER
2018
ABM

1" = 20' 
JULY 2023

3
17

20' 20' 

20' 

10'

1
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

9/
1/

20
21

2
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

10
/2

6/
20

21

3
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

11
/ /

20
21

4
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

8/
1/

20
23

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

----

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
EDGE OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
POOLER PARKWAY  R/W VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
PKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
CURB INLET TOP:18.10 IE N:9.80 IE S:9.90 IE W:9.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
SEWER MH TOP:17.37 IE: 15.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
STORM MH TOP:18.45 IE E:10.40 IE S:11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
CURB INLET TOP:17.47 IE: 13.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
SEWER MH TOP:18.08 IE S:15.68 IE E:15.63 IE W:15.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
EXISTING SEWER MH TOP:18.03 IE: 15.41 IE: 15.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
30"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
NOW OR FORMERLY GODLEY STATION HOLDINGS LLC 5-0017A-01-041 210 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 6 

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
40' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
NOW OR FORMERLY CAR WASH EXPRESS INC 5-0017A-01-039 214 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
LOT 5 5-0017A-01-040 780 POOLER PARKWAY 1.615 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
100' RESERVED FOR FUTURE CANAL R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
PIPEMAKER'S CANAL  80' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
WOODS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
N32°36'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
43.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
N21°58'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
61.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
N10°43'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
242.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
N40°18'44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
98.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
S50°52'58"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
321.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
CURB INLET TOP:18.41 IE N:11.61 IE E:11.96 IE S:12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
30' UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
50' BUILDING / PAVEMENT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
60' DRAINAGE & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
A=300.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
R=2810.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
=6°07'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
B=N42°13'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
C=300.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
BENCHMARK PK NAIL IN ASPHALT NAVD88 EL: 17.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
STORM MH TOP:16.95 IE N:12.95 IE E:9.85 IE W:9.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
10x10 ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
SETBACK / BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
50' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
TO DETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
GRID NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
PIPEMAKERS CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
15' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
N48°07'08"W    26.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
ZONE AE (BFE 19.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD HAZARD LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
O:\2020\20-0130 780 POOLER PARKWAY\DWG\20-0130C_B01 7-26-23.DWG 1/24/2024 5:42 PM 1/24/2024 5:42 PM1/24/2024 5:42 PM

Alec_1
Image



WM BFP

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

NO
PARKING

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST

ST
R5'

R15'

R5'

R6'

R6'

R5'

R5'

R5'

R24'

R5'

R7'

PROPOSED BUILDING
8,438 SF TOTAL

11

11

10 12

5

AREA 400
1,458 SF

AREA 300
1,458 SF

AREA 200
1,458 SF

AREA 100
1,458 SF

AREA 500
1,419 SF

AREA 600
1,576 SF

5" WHITE STRIPING
(PAINTED)

BIORETENTION
AREA

CONCRETE SIDEWALK, TYP.

5" WHITE STRIPING
(PAINTED)

18" STANDARD
CURB & GUTTER

STANDARD DUTY
ASPHALT PAVEMENT, TYP.

PERVIOUS
PAVERS, TYP.

SS
SS

SS

WM BFP

R5'

3' TRANSITION FROM FLUSH HEADER CURB
TO STANDARD CURB AND GUTTER

18" FLUSH HEADER CURB

ST

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

MONUMENT SIGN
(14' X 24' X 2')

4' WIDE
CONCRETE
FLUME, TYP.

BIORETENTION
AREA

R25'

ST

FOR DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE,
LEAVE 3 BLOCKS ON BOTTOM

COURSE OPEN FOR DRAINAGE.

8

20'

20'

24'

123.5'

20'

24'

5'

81'

6'

24'

20'

10'

9'

9'

9'

9'

7'

11'

16'

30'

18'

18'

18'

18'

18'

27.18'

23.58'

33.51'

R5'

R15'

1"W

SS

1"
W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"
W

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

RETAINING WALL

3'
RAMP

RETAINING WALL
WITH HANDRAIL

STEPS WITH
HANDRAIL

EXPOSED WALL
FOOTING

RAMP WITH
HANDRAILSCONCRETE

PATIO AREA

SS

SS

SS

FH

2"W 2"W

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

10
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 1
00

Sa
va

nn
ah

, G
A 

31
40

5
Ph

: (
91

2)
 2

32
-6

53
3

Fa
x:

 (9
12

) 2
33

-4
58

0
sa

va
nn

ah
@

em
c-

en
g.

co
m

w
w

w
.e

m
c-

en
g.

co
m

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
SA

VA
N

N
AH

 • 
ST

AT
ES

BO
R

O
 • 

TH
O

M
AS

TO
N

 • 
VA

LD
O

ST
A 

• W
AR

N
ER

 R
O

BI
N

S

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
ST

AK
IN

G
 P

LA
N

78
0 

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

, C
H

AT
H

AM
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

SP
AC

E

C
O

M
BA

T 
VE

TE
R

AN
S,

 L
LC

20-0130
MRK
MRK

BREWER
2018
ABM

1" = 20' 
JULY 2023

4
17

20' 20' 

20' 

10'

1
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

9/
1/

20
21

2
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

10
/2

6/
20

21

3
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

11
/ /

20
21

4
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

8/
1/

20
23

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

NOTES:

1. ALL LINEAR AND RADIAL DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

2. MONUMENT SIGNS SHOULD NOT DISPLACE REQUIRED LANDSCAPING.

3. SCREEN DUMPSTER AND RECYCLING BINS WITH MASONRY WALL TO MATCH
THE BUILDING / OPAQUE METAL GATES AND EVERGREEN PLANTINGS.

SITE DATA:

PARCEL: 1.62 AC.

ZONING: PUD

FRONT BUILDING SETBACK: 50'
SIDE BUILDING SETBACK: 25'
REAR BUILDING SETBACK: 25'

PARKING DATA:

RETAIL STORES: 4,266 SF
PARKING REQUIRED: 1 SPACE PER 250 SF LEASABLE AREA
PARKING REQUIRED: 18

RESTAURANT: 4,171 SF (78 SEATS)
PARKING REQUIRED: 1 SPACE PER 4 SEATS
PARKING REQUIRED: 20

TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED: 38
PARKING PROVIDED: 57

HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED: 2
HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 2

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

----

GREENSPACE REQUIREMENTS:

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 0.67 AC
GREENSPACE: 0.67 AC

20% MINIMUM GREENSPACE REQUIRED
41% GREENSPACE PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
EDGE OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
POOLER PARKWAY  R/W VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
PKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
30"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
S 40°18'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
212.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
NOW OR FORMERLY GODLEY STATION HOLDINGS LLC 5-0017A-01-041 210 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 6 

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
40' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
NOW OR FORMERLY CAR WASH EXPRESS INC 5-0017A-01-039 214 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
N32°36'47"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
43.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
N21°58'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
61.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
N10°43'35"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
242.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
N40°18'44"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
98.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
S50°52'58"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
321.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
30' UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
50' BUILDING / PAVEMENT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
60' DRAINAGE & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
A=300.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
R=2810.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
=6°07'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
B=N42°13'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
C=300.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
BENCHMARK PK NAIL IN ASPHALT NAVD88 EL: 17.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
SETBACK / BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
50' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
GRAND CENTRAL BLVD  60' R/W 

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
GRID NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
PIPEMAKERS CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
15' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
N48°07'08"W    26.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
ZONE AE (BFE 19.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD HAZARD LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
O:\2020\20-0130 780 POOLER PARKWAY\DWG\20-0130C_B01 7-26-23.DWG 1/24/2024 5:43 PM 1/24/2024 5:43 PM1/24/2024 5:43 PM

Alec_2
Image



WM BFP

G

G

G

G

G

E

E

E

E

E

CO

CO

CO

CO

PROPOSED BUILDING
8,438 SF

FFE: 20.00

GAS LINE
(COORDINATE SIZE

AND LOCATIONS WITH
GAS COMPANY)

ELECTRICAL METER
(COORDINATE WITH

GEORGIA POWER)

ELECTRICAL
TRANSFORMER

(COORDINATE WITH
GEORGIA POWER)

ELECTRICAL LINE

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST

SS
SS

SS

WM BFP

ST

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

CORE DRILL: 15.51

ST

ST

CO

CO

CO

17

17

17

17

18

15 141617

17

16
17

18

18

18

151616

161717

17181919

16

2019

18

18

18

20

19

16
17

16
15

18

19

15
16

17
18

15

15

13

13

14

14

16

17

1"W

CO

CO
CO

CO

SS

18.57

19.35

19.35

18.15 18.18

CO

1"
W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"W

1"
W

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

REMOVE EXISTING 8" PVC STUB
AND PLUG AT MANHOLE

102 LF 6" DI @ 0.40%
(PRIVATE)

118 LF 8" DI @ 0.40%
(PRIVATE)

SSMH 1
TOP: 20.00

IE IN (SW): 15.98
IE OUT (NW): 15.88

2,000 GAL
GREASE TRAP

2,000 GAL
GREASE TRAP

IE IN: 16.54

37 LF 6" DI @ 0.40%
(PRIVATE)

2,000 GAL
GREASE TRAP

IE IN: 16.39

1" HDPE DOMESTIC
SERVICE LATERAL, TYP

2" WATER METER
2" RPZ BFP

CONNECT TO EXISTING
8" WATER MAIN WITH

8" VALVE IN BOX

2" HDPE WATER MAIN

45° ELL
45° ELL

RELOCATE EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT TO
THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF THE ACCESS

DRIVE, PER FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUEST..

MASTER WATER
METER BANK

(PRIVATE)

1" IRRIGATION WATER METER
1" RPZ BFP FOR IRRIGATION

(IRRIGATION BY OTHERS)

2" X 1" TEE

ADJUST ANY WATER VALVES
TO BE FLUSH WITH PAVEMENT

CO

CO

CO
CO

CO

SS

SS

SS

CO

CO

CO

FH

FIRE HYDRANT
ASSEMBLY

2"W 2"W

8" X 8" TEE

8" X 4" X 2" REDUCER
2" VALVE IN BOX

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

10
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 1
00

Sa
va

nn
ah

, G
A 

31
40

5
Ph

: (
91

2)
 2

32
-6

53
3

Fa
x:

 (9
12

) 2
33

-4
58

0
sa

va
nn

ah
@

em
c-

en
g.

co
m

w
w

w
.e

m
c-

en
g.

co
m

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
SA

VA
N

N
AH

 • 
ST

AT
ES

BO
R

O
 • 

TH
O

M
AS

TO
N

 • 
VA

LD
O

ST
A 

• W
AR

N
ER

 R
O

BI
N

S

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

78
0 

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

, C
H

AT
H

AM
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

SP
AC

E

C
O

M
BA

T 
VE

TE
R

AN
S,

 L
LC

20-0130
MRK
MRK

BREWER
2018
ABM

1" = 20' 
JULY 2023

5
17

20' 20' 

20' 

10'

1
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

9/
1/

20
21

2
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

10
/2

6/
20

21

3
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

11
/ /

20
21

4
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

8/
1/

20
23

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

NOTES:

1. REFER TO GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND
(SHEET 2) FOR UTILITY PIPE MATERIAL
INFORMATION.

2. MOVE ALL MANHOLES OUT OF SIDEWALK.

3. ALL WATER AND SEWER LINES LOCATED
WITHIN THE PROPERTY WILL BE
PRIVATELY MAINTAINED.

4. ALL PROPOSED WATER VALVES SHALL
HAVE A CONCRETE MONUMENT WITH
W/VALVE INSCRIBED ON TWO SIDES OF
THE MONUMENT. MONUMENTS TO BE
PLACED 2-3 FT AWAY FROM THE VALVE.

5. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR UTILITY
CONNECTIONS TO BUILDING.

6. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE TO BE LINED.

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

----

TYPICAL SANITARY SEWER
SERVICE CONNECTION

NOT TO SCALE

BUILDING

CLEANOUT
IE: 17.05

4" DI (SLOPE VARIES TO
CONNECT TO HEADER PIPE)

4" DI (SLOPE VARIES TO
CONNECT GREASE TRAP)

GREASE TRAP WITH
TRAFFIC RATED TOP

SAMPLING MANHOLE
IE IN: VARIES

IE OUT: VARIES

4" DI (SLOPE VARIES TO
CONNECT TO HEADER PIPE) CLEANOUT

IE: VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
EDGE OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
POOLER PARKWAY  R/W VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
PKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
SEWER MH TOP:17.37 IE: 15.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
SEWER MH TOP:18.08 IE S:15.68 IE E:15.63 IE W:15.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
EXISTING SEWER MH TOP:18.03 IE: 15.41 IE: 15.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
30"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
S 40°18'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
212.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
NOW OR FORMERLY GODLEY STATION HOLDINGS LLC 5-0017A-01-041 210 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 6 

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
40' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
NOW OR FORMERLY CAR WASH EXPRESS INC 5-0017A-01-039 214 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
50' BUILDING / PAVEMENT SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
25' BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
BENCHMARK PK NAIL IN ASPHALT NAVD88 EL: 17.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
SETBACK / BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
50' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
GRAND CENTRAL BLVD  60' R/W 

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
25' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
GRID NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
PIPEMAKERS CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
15' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
ZONE AE (BFE 19.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD HAZARD LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
O:\2020\20-0130 780 POOLER PARKWAY\DWG\20-0130C_B01 7-26-23.DWG 1/24/2024 5:43 PM 1/24/2024 5:43 PM1/24/2024 5:43 PM

Alec_3
Image



NO
PARKING

PROPOSED BUILDING
9070 SF

FFE: 20.00

S

S S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

GRATE INLET 02
TOP: 16.50
IE OUT (NW): 14.21

GRATE INLET 01
TOP: 17.71

IE OUT (W): 13.36

ST

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

<

CO

CO

CO

BIORETENTION
AREA 02

TOP: 17.00
BOTTOM: 15.50

ST

STMH (4' X 16')
TOP: 17.81
IE IN (SE): 14.02
IE OUT (N): 13.02

CONCRETE HEADWALL
GDOT DETAILS #1001-B & #1004-B

TOP: 15.03
IE IN (S): 12.09

FILL EXISTING DITCH. ADD (4) 30" RCP PIPES TO
ACCOUNT FOR 227 CY OF VOLUME IN THE DITCH
THAT WILL BE FILLED. CITY PERSONNEL SHOULD
INSPECT THE PIPES BEFORE TRENCH IS FILLED.

18" STANDARD CURB
AND GUTTER, TYP.

STANDARD DUTY
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PERVIOUS
PAVERS, TYP.

3' WIDE CONCRETE
FLUME, TYP.

HEAVY DUTY
CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

BIORETENTION AREA 01
TOP: 18.00

BOTTOM: 15.50

FIRE TRUCK TURN
AROUND AREA

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
(BY OTHERS)

IE: 16.12

IE: 15.50

295 LF RETAINING WALL,
TOP VARIES

BEGIN CURB TRANSITION
0" TO 6" OVER 5'

166 LF DRAINAGE SWALE
@ S=0.30%

FLUSH HEADER CURB

STMH
TOP: 17.53

IE IN (S): 12.22
IE IN (E): 13.22

IE OUT (N): 12.22

17

17

17

17

18

15 141617

17

16
17

18

18

18

151616

161717

17181919

16

2019

18

18

18

20

19

16
17

16
15

18

19

15
16

17
18

15

15

13

13

14

14

16

17

SAWCUT TO PROVIDE
SMOOTH TRANSITION

AT EXISTING GRADE

62 LF 18" RCP @ 0.30%

(4) 267 LF 30" RCP @ 0.30%

(4) 46 LF 30" RCP @ 0.30%

46
 L

F 
18

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.3

0%

EXPOSED WALL
FOOTING

RETAINING WALL
WITH HANDRAIL

STEPS WITH
HANDRAIL

CONCRETE PATIO

RETAINING WALL WITH
4' CHAIN LINK FENCE

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

16.83

19.95

19.95

20.00
20.00

TC: 19.90
TP: 19.40

TC: 17.70
TP: 17.20

TC: 18.51
TP: 18.01

17.03
17.47 17.45

19.10

19.10

19.10

19.10

19.40

TC: 19.90
TP: 19.40

TC: 19.90
TP: 19.40

20.00

20.00

20.00

16.70

17.27

15.50

15.50

15.50

15.50

17.53

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

17.87

15.50

15.50

16.82

16.83

13.50

15.00

13.00TOP 18.20

TOP 18.20

TOP 18.20

14.00

15.00

14.00

16.93

17.92

17.87

16.74

TC: 18.10
TP: 17.60

TC: 18.10
TP: 17.60TC: 18.10

TP: 17.60
TC: 18.10
TP: 17.60

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 17.14
TP: 16.64

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

TC: 18.65
TP: 18.15

TC: 18.30
TP: 17.80

TC: 17.98
TP: 17.52

TC: 17.98
TP: 17.55

TC: 19.22
TP: 18.72

TC: 19.38
TP: 18.90

TC: 17.87
TP: 17.37

TC: 19.22
TP: 18.72

17.70

19.10

19.40

19.10

18.80

18.50

18.03

18.31

18.70

17.81

TC: 18.10
TP: 17.60

TC: 18.20
TP: 17.70

18.20

TC: 19.90
TP: 19.40

TOP OF WALL: 19.90
BOTTOM OF WALL: 18.20

16.80

16.88

16.95
16.95

16.91

16.85
16.85
16.71

16.7117.50

18.20

H/C RAMP WITH HANDRAILS
(12:1 MAX SLOPE)

83 LF 8" HDPE
@ S = 0.40%

IE: 16.45

IE: 16.74

71 LF 8" HDPE
@ S = 0.40%

TOP OF WALL: 19.90
BOTTOM OF WALL: 19.40

19.40

19.90

TC: 19.90
TP: 19.40

CONCRETE WHEEL
STOP, TYP.

TC: 18.97
TP: 18.48

IE: 15.54

IE: 15.77

87 LF 8" HDPE
@ S = 0.40%

57 LF 8" HDPE
@ S = 0.40%

9 LF 8" HDPE
@ S = 0.40%

SHEET

OF

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r:

SURVEY DATE:

SE
R

VI
C

ES
, I

N
C

.
 E

M
C

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 

SCALE:
DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

SURVEYED BY:

CHECKED BY:

DESIGNED BY:
DRAWN BY:

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" =

0'

10
 C

ha
th

am
 C

en
te

r S
ou

th
, S

ui
te

 1
00

Sa
va

nn
ah

, G
A 

31
40

5
Ph

: (
91

2)
 2

32
-6

53
3

Fa
x:

 (9
12

) 2
33

-4
58

0
sa

va
nn

ah
@

em
c-

en
g.

co
m

w
w

w
.e

m
c-

en
g.

co
m

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L

C
IV

IL
M

AR
IN

E

AL
BA

N
Y 

• A
TL

AN
TA

 • 
AU

G
U

ST
A 

• B
R

U
N

SW
IC

K 
• C

O
LU

M
BU

S
SA

VA
N

N
AH

 • 
ST

AT
ES

BO
R

O
 • 

TH
O

M
AS

TO
N

 • 
VA

LD
O

ST
A 

• W
AR

N
ER

 R
O

BI
N

S

D
AT

E
N

O
.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
PA

VI
N

G
, G

R
AD

IN
G

, &
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
PL

AN

78
0 

PO
O

LE
R

 P
AR

KW
AY

PO
O

LE
R

, C
H

AT
H

AM
 C

O
U

N
TY

, G
EO

R
G

IA

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

SP
AC

E

C
O

M
BA

T 
VE

TE
R

AN
S,

 L
LC

20-0130
MRK
MRK

BREWER
2018
ABM

1" = 20' 
JULY 2023

6
17

20' 20' 

20' 

10'

1
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

9/
1/

20
21

2
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

10
/2

6/
20

21

3
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

11
/ /

20
21

4
R

EV
IS

IO
N

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PO
O

LE
R

8/
1/

20
23

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

FINAL SURFACE INDEX:

PERVIOUS PAVERS

STANDARD DUTY
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE

HEAVY DUTY CONC.

PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER

REGISTERED

*G

EO
RGIA

*

ALEC B. METZGER

No. PE30429

----

3:
1 

M
IN

.

NOT TO SCALE
BIO-RETENTION AREA 01 CROSS SECTION

GRATE INLET
TOP = 16.50
IE = 13.27

18" RCP
BOTTOM = 15.50

TOP OF BANK = 18.00

FINAL GRADE

3:1 MIN.

IE = 13.14

PLANTING SOIL (NON-COMPACTING)2.0'

PLANTING SOIL MIX SPECIFICATIONS:

TEXTURE:  SANDY LOAM OR LOAMY SAND

SAND CONTENT:  CONTAIN 85%-88% CLEAN, WASHED SAND

TOPSOIL CONTENT:  CONTAIN 8% - 12% TOPSOIL

ORGANIC MATTER CONTENT:  CONTAIN 3% - 5% ORGANIC MATTER

INFILTRATION RATE:  HAVE A RATE OF AT LEAST 0.25 IN/HR

PHOSPHOROUS INDEX:  HAVE A P-INDEX OF LESS THAN 30

EXCHANGE CAPACITY:  HAVE A CEC THAT EXCEEDS 10 MEQ PER 100 GRAMS OF DRY WEIGHT

pH:   HAVE A pH OF 6-8

SPECIAL NOTE:
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR SPECIFIC PLANTINGS

2" MULCH

RUNOFF REDUCTION VOLUME

WATER LEVEL= 16.50

3:
1 

M
IN

.

NOT TO SCALE
BIO-RETENTION AREA 02 CROSS SECTION

GRATE INLET
TOP = 16.50
IE = 14.11

18" RCP
BOTTOM = 15.50

TOP OF BANK = 17.00

FINAL GRADE

3:1 MIN.

IE = 13.91

PLANTING SOIL (NON-COMPACTING)2.0'

PLANTING SOIL MIX SPECIFICATIONS:

TEXTURE:  SANDY LOAM OR LOAMY SAND

SAND CONTENT:  CONTAIN 85%-88% CLEAN, WASHED SAND

TOPSOIL CONTENT:  CONTAIN 8% - 12% TOPSOIL

ORGANIC MATTER CONTENT:  CONTAIN 3% - 5% ORGANIC MATTER

INFILTRATION RATE:  HAVE A RATE OF AT LEAST 0.25 IN/HR

PHOSPHOROUS INDEX:  HAVE A P-INDEX OF LESS THAN 30

EXCHANGE CAPACITY:  HAVE A CEC THAT EXCEEDS 10 MEQ PER 100 GRAMS OF DRY WEIGHT

pH:   HAVE A pH OF 6-8

SPECIAL NOTE:
REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR SPECIFIC PLANTINGS

2" MULCH

RUNOFF REDUCTION VOLUME

WATER LEVEL= 16.50

RETAINING WALL DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

1'-0"3'-4"

5'-0"

2"

1'
-0

"

VA
R

IE
S

3"

C.I.P. RETAINING WALL SECTION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

3" COVER

8"

#6 @ 12"
EACH WAY

#6 @ 12"
EACH WAY

4" I.D. WEEPHOLES
AT 8'-0" O.C.

CONT. COMPOSITE
WALL DRAIN
(GDOT QPL #47)

1'-6"
MIN. COVER

NOTE:
SUBGRADE COMPACTED TO 95% STD. PROCTOR

8"

4' CHAIN LINK FENCE

18
"

6" MIN
WALL

THICKNESS

6" MIN
FOOTING

WIDTH

A A

18" RCP

MANHOLE RING
AND COVER

16'

4'

NOTES:
1. JUNCTION BOX TO BE PRE-CAST PER ASTM C-478. CONCRETE
TO HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3,000 PSI.

2. SHOP DRAWINGS SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW PRIOR
TO FABRICATION.

3. MANHOLE RING AND COVER TO BE PER DETAIL.

4. MANHOLE STEPS TO BE PER DETAIL.

PLAN
NOT TO SCALE

4-30" RCP

MANHOLE RING
AND COVER
TOP: 17.81

ELEV. 17.31
ELEV. 16.81

I.E. 13.02 I.E. 14.02

POURED
INVERT

4.00'

5.00'

6.00'

SECTION A-A
NOT TO SCALE

18" RCP
3-36" RCP

6" THICK
AGGREGATE
SUB-BASE

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE 95%
PROCTOR DENSITY

NOT TO SCALE
JUNCTION BOX DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
EDGE OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
POOLER PARKWAY  R/W VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
PKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
CURB INLET TOP:18.10 IE N:9.80 IE S:9.90 IE W:9.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
STORM MH TOP:18.45 IE E:10.40 IE S:11.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
30"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
NOW OR FORMERLY GODLEY STATION HOLDINGS LLC 5-0017A-01-041 210 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 6 

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
40' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
NOW OR FORMERLY CAR WASH EXPRESS INC 5-0017A-01-039 214 GRAND CENTRAL BOULEVARD LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
CURB INLET TOP:18.41 IE N:11.61 IE E:11.96 IE S:12.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
30' UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
60' DRAINAGE & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
BENCHMARK PK NAIL IN ASPHALT NAVD88 EL: 17.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
STORM MH TOP:16.95 IE N:12.95 IE E:9.85 IE W:9.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
18"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
TO DETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
PIPEMAKERS CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
GA SPC EAST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
GRID NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
ZONE AE (BFE 19.0)

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
ZONE AE (FLOODWAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF FLOOD HAZARD LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
O:\2020\20-0130 780 POOLER PARKWAY\DWG\20-0130C_B01 7-26-23.DWG 1/24/2024 5:43 PM 1/24/2024 5:43 PM1/24/2024 5:43 PM

Alec_4
Image





January 29th, 2024
Alec B. Metzger, P.E. 
EMC Engineering Services
27 Chatham Center South, Suite A
Savannah, GA 31405

Dear Mr. Metzger,

I am pleased to provide you with a recommendation for Approval of the site plans for 780 Pooler Pkwy, 
which is provided below.

Site Plan Review

Submittal Documents: Site Development Plans Jan. 2024

We have reviewed the submittal for the referenced project. The plans were reviewed for general 
conformance with the requirements of the City of Pooler.  This review of the submitted site plans does not 
relieve the Owner, Designer and Contractor, or their representatives, from their individual or collective 
responsibility to comply with the applicable provisions of the local, State and Federal Laws and 
Engineering Standards, and all Development Codes that apply to the City of Pooler. This review is not to 
be construed as a check of every item in the plans or construction. Failure of this office to note any 
conflict with said requirements does not relieve the developer from compliance. 

The Owner and the Design Consultant are fully responsible for all testing and inspections of their project 
during construction, and they also are fully responsible that the project is constructed in accordance with 
the approved construction plans. The design engineer is solely responsible that their designs are in 
compliance to all Federal, State and City ordinances and regulations.  All required permits, 
documentation, and 3rd party approvals pursuant to land disturbing activity and land development shall be 
provided and found acceptable to the City of Pooler. All the required testing data, plans and related 
material must be available to the City of Pooler, or assigned representation, during and after the 
construction is complete.

To the best of our knowledge, it is our opinion that the plans are in general conformance with the City of 
Pooler’s applicable design standards, codes and ordinances. We hereby recommend Approval of the site 
development plans.

Please contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached via email or phone at 
tshoemaker@eomworx.com or (912) 445-0050 ext. 4400.

Sincerely,

Trevor Shoemaker 
Project Manager
EOM

ATTACHMENT C

mailto:tshoemaker@eomworx.com


CC: Nicole Dixon; Director of Planning & Development – City of Pooler
Brian Crooks; City Planner - City of Pooler
Liberto Chacon, PE; Sr. Vice President – EOM



1 

PLANNING & ZONING STAFF REPORT 
Site Plan for TTRES at 2300 Pooler Parkway 

Project: #231157 

P&Z Meeting Date: February 12, 2024 

City Council Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 

Applicant and Authorized Agent: Rusty Windsor (Kimley-Horn) 

Location (Address): 2300 Pooler Parkway 

Parcel (PIN): 51009 01041 

Acreage: 24.89 total – 21.77 disturbed 

Zoning: PUD [Savannah Quarters, Ph. 16] 

Proposed Use: Multi-family residential development [360 units, 10 buildings] 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Planning & Zoning Commission: P&Z agreed with staff and recommends approval.

Recommended Motion: “After review of the criteria, move for approval of the request.” 

Zoning Action Standards: 1. Whether the site plan is consistent with the Comprehensive

Plan for the City of Pooler and any other small area plans.

o The site plan is consistent with the recommendations and

policies of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan for the FLUM

designation and Character Area.

2. Whether the site plan provides for adequate pedestrian and

traffic access.

o The site plan complies with the provisions for access and

circulation per the Savannah Quarters PUD; Sec. 11 of



  

2 

App. A, Art. V related to traffic impacts; and Sec. 2 of 

App. A, Art. III for traffic access. 

3. Whether the site plan provides for adequate space for off-

street parking and loading/unloading zones where applicable. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the 

Savannah Quarters PUD and Sec. 5 of App. A, Art. III for 

parking and loading standards. 

4. Whether the site plan provides for the appropriate location, 

arrangement, size, and design of buildings, lighting, and 

signs, giving due consideration to the applicable zoning 

district(s). 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

development standards for commercial development, 

including setbacks, building separation, and height and 

Chapter 74, Art. VI for lighting. 

5. Whether the site plan is appropriate in scale and relation to 

proposed use(s) to one another and those of adjacent 

properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to the 

location of uses/development areas, development 

standards for commercial development, and buffer 

standards. 

6. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by existing or proposed public facilities, including roads, 

water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater infrastructure. 

o The site plan complies with Sec. 606 of App. B, Art. VI; 

Chapter 74, Art. V; and Chapter 42, Art. V related to 

servicing of utilities and infrastructure. 

7. Whether the proposed development site is adequately served 

by other public serves to account for current or projected 

needs. 

o The site is adequately served by any other public services 

for current or projected needs. 

8. Whether the site plan provides adequate protection for 

adjacent properties against noise, glare, unsightliness, or 

other objectionable features. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions related to 

buffer and screening standards. 

9. Whether the site plan provides adequate landscaping, 

including type and arrangement of trees, shrubs, and other 



  

3 

landscaping, which may provide a visual or noise-deterring 

buffer between adjacent properties. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of Chapter 42, 

Art. VI for tree and landscaping requirements, in general, 

and related buffers. 

10. Whether the site plan provides for improvements in 

accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

including without limitation the Code of Ordinances for the 

City of Pooler. 

o The site plan complies with the provisions of the City of 

Pooler Code of Ordinances, specifications, or standards, 

and all other applicable laws. 

   

Conclusion:  The site plan addresses the site plan approval criteria.  As such, staff 

recommends Approval of the request. 

   

Attachments:  A. Vicinity Map 

B. Application and Submittal Documentation 

C. Approval Letter 

   

 



This map was created using geothinQ | www.geothinQ.com | Mapping Smart Land Decisions

Project #231157 -
2300 Pooler

Parkway
02/08/2024

 Parcels

ATTACHMENT A





S 30°38'06"E 372.15'

S 30°38'13"E 194.26'

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

B
1

B2

B
3

B4

B
5

B6

B
7

B
8

B9

B
10

B11

B
1
2

B13

B
1
4

B15

B16

B
17

B18B19B20

B21
B22

B23

B24
B25

B26

B27

B28

B29

B30

B31

B32

B33

B34

B35

B36

B
37

B
3
8

B
3
9

B
4
0

B
41

B42

B
4
3

B
44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

L
1

2
5
'

S 53°50'30"W
1
6
4
.6

1
'

BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER
(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS
CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD

VARIABLE R/W

OLD QUACCO ROAD

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

40.0'

25.0'

26.0'

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

25.0'

25' WETLAND

BUFFER

25' WETLAND

BUFFER

20' R
EAR

/S
ID

E S
ETBAC

K

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

FULL ACCESS

DRIVEWAY
FULL ACCESS

DRIVEWAY

24.0' 26.0'26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

12.0'

24.0' 24.0' 24.0'

26.0' 26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

24.0'

FUTURE R/W LINE

FUTURE R/W LINE

40' 40'

ACCESS GATE WITH

"CLICK2ENTER" FOR

EMERGENCY ACCESS

ACCESS GATE WITH

"CLICK2ENTER" FOR

EMERGENCY ACCESS

ACCESS GATE WITH

"CLICK2ENTER" FOR

EMERGENCY ACCESS

14

12

15

8

26

26

22 22

222222

12

17

13 15

11 11

11

14 17

15

10

12 12 6 6 12 5

1212 1212

3

1515

8

10

11

12

12

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
AREA

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
AREA

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

AREA

BUILDING 9
TYPE A

BUILDING 8
TYPE C

BUILDING 10
TYPE B

BUILDING 5
TYPE A

BUILDING 1
TYPE A

BUILDING 6
TYPE C

BUILDING 2
TYPE C

BUILDING 4
TYPE B

BUILDING 3
TYPE B

LEASING

DOG PARK
8,050 SF

LIFT

STATION

CLUBHOUSE FITNESS

PICKLE BALL
COURTS

GARAGES
G7

BUILDING 2
TYPE C

MAIL
ROOM

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR

DETAILED AMENITY

AREA PLANS

BUILDING 7
TYPE B

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

GARAGES
G2

GARAGES
G3

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES
G4

GARAGES
G5

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

WETLANDS DO

NOT DISTURB

12.0'
16.0'

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 4
0

0
 -

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 4
0

0
 O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:1

6
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 400

OVERALL SITE
PLAN

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

35 70 140

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY:

SITE SUMMARY:

CURRENT ZONING: PUD (SAVANNAH QUARTERS)

PROPOSED ZONING: PUD (SAVANNAH QUARTERS)

SITE AREA: 24.89 ACRES

TOTAL DISTURBED AREA: 21.77 ACRES

IMPERVIOUS AREA: 10.61 ACRES

PERCENTAGE/LOT AREA: 46.4 %

MAXIMUM: 60%

BUILDING SETBACK:

FRONT 40 FT

SIDE 20 FT

REAR 20 FT

BUILDING HEIGHT:

MAXIMUM : 50 FT

PROPOSED : 46 FT

PROPOSED LAND USES & DENSITIES:
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL 360 UNITS

PARKING SUMMARY:
REQUIRED PARKING: 630 SPACES (TOTAL)

MULTIFAMILY (360 UNITS) 630 SPACES (1.75/UNIT)

PROPOSED PARKING: 641 SPACES (TOTAL)
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL 641 SPACES (1.78 /UNIT)

STANDARD 537 SPACES

HANDICAP TOTAL 14 SPACES

CAR ACCESS 11 SPACES

VAN ACCESS 3 SPACES

GARAGE 90 SPACES (2 ACCESSIBLE)

SITE NOTES:

1. THE PROPOSED BUILDING INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS

FROM AN ELECTRONIC FILE PROVIDED BY STUDIO M, DATED

00/00/0000 AND IS FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR

EXACT BUILDING INFORMATION.

2. EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM A SURVEY

FILE PROVIDED BY JAMES M. ANDERSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.,

DATED 03/24/2023.

3. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

4. SIDEWALK INSTALLED AGAINST BACK OF CURB SHALL BE

INSTALLED PER THE PLAN AS MEASURED FROM THE BACK OF

CURB.

5. ALL SIGNAGE AND STRIPING MUST MEET THE LATEST

REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH BY MUTCD, GDOT, AND GEORGIA

STATE CODE.

6. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR ALL HARDSCAPE AND

LANDSCAPE DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

7. ALL GATES ARE CLICK TO ENTER FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT

EMERGENCY ACCESS.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH CONTRACTOR OF

PROPOSED POOLER PARKWAY/QUACCO ROAD WIDENING

PROJECT PER TIMING OF GRADING AND FINAL STABILIZATION.

EVERYTHING IN LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE WILL COMPLETED BY

THOMPSON THRIFT RESIDENTIAL.

N
O

R
T
H

PROPERTY LINE

SITE PLAN LEGEND:

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

KEY MAP:

C 401 C 402 C 403 C 404

C 407C 406C 405

ATTACHMENT B



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

CP

CP

CP

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

VAN

VAN

VAN

EV

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE

CHANNEL AND CURB

CUTS AT GATES

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE

CHANNEL AND CURB

CUTS AT GATES

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

FUTURE R/W LINE

FUTURE R/W LINE

SEE LA PLANS FOR

COURT PAVEMENT

DETAILS

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

WETLANDS DO

NOT DISTURB

TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD BY

CONTRACTOR. ALL OTHER WORK IN ROW

TO BE DONE BY CITY OF POOLER. SEE

PAVEMENT SPEC ON SHEET C 609 FOR

ENTRY IN ROW.

TEMPORARY ACCESS ROAD BY

CONTRACTOR. ALL OTHER WORK IN ROW
TO BE DONE BY CITY OF POOLER

 D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 4
0

0
 -

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 4
1

0
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 D

E
L

IN
E

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

  
 F

e
b

 0
9

, 
2

0
2

4
  

1
2

:1
7

p
m

  
 b

y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 410

PAVEMENT
DELINEATION

PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
7035 70 140

NORTH

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT (SHEET C 806)

PROPERTY LINE

STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT (SHEET C 806)

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE SIDEWALK (SHEET C 806)

SITE PLAN LEGEND:

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT (SHEET C 806)

CITY OF POOLER HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (SHEET C 809)

GRAVEL FOR LIFT STATION ACCESS DRIVE (SEE C 805)



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

1
2" GAS LINE

VIKING 1600A SERIES

WALL MOUNTED PHONE

@ 42" AFF

CONNECTED TO COMMUNICATION LINES

GFIC OUTLET
W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@60" AFF

GFIC OUTLET
W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@ 2" AFF

1
2" GAS LINE

SET BETWEEN 4.5" MIN TO 10.5" MAX W.C.

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@18" AFF

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC WEATHERPROOF COVER

@18" AFF

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

STRING LIGHTS. TYP.

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC WEATHERPROOF COVER

@18" AFF

POOL EMERGENCY STOP BUTTON

CP

CP

CP

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@ 2" AFF

1
2" GAS LINE

SET BETWEEN 4.5" MIN TO 10.5" MAX W.C.

RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

FUTURE RIGHT OF WAY LINE

VAN

VAN

VAN

EV

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

WETLAND

ANSI ANSI

ANSI ANSI

ANSI ANSI

ANSI ANSI

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

FUTURE R/W LINE

FUTURE R/W LINE

14

12

15

8

26

26

22 22

222222

12

17

13 15

11 11

11

14 17

15

10

12 12 6 6 12 5

1212 1212

3

1515

8

10

11

12

12

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
AREA

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT
AREA

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

AREA

BUILDING 9
TYPE A

BUILDING 8
TYPE C

BUILDING 10
TYPE B

BUILDING 5
TYPE A

BUILDING 1
TYPE A

BUILDING 6
TYPE C

BUILDING 2
TYPE C

BUILDING 4
TYPE B

BUILDING 3
TYPE B

LEASING

DOG PARK
8,050 SF

LIFT

STATION

CLUBHOUSE FITNESS

PICKLE BALL
COURTS

GARAGES
G7

MAIL
ROOM

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR

DETAILED AMENITY

AREA PLANS

BUILDING 7
TYPE B

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

FUTURE 40 FT BUILDING SETBACK LINE

GARAGES
G2

GARAGES
G3

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES
G4

GARAGES
G5

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

WETLANDS DO

NOT DISTURB

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA PARKING SPACE

ADA GARAGE

PARKING SPACE

ADA GARAGE

PARKING SPACE

 D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 4
0

0
 -

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 4
2

0
 A

D
A

 A
C

C
E

S
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

  
 F

e
b

 0
9

, 
2

0
2

4
  

1
2

:1
7

p
m

  
 b

y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 420

ADA
ACCESSIBILITY

PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
7035 70 140

NORTH

ADA ACCESSIBILITY PATH

ADA ACCESSIBILITY LEGEND:



SWIMMING POOL
2,047 SF

1
2" GAS LINE

VIKING 1600A SERIES

WALL MOUNTED PHONE

@ 42" AFF

CONNECTED TO COMMUNICATION LINES

GFIC OUTLET
W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@60" AFF

GFIC OUTLET
W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@ 2" AFF

1
2" GAS LINE

SET BETWEEN 4.5" MIN TO 10.5" MAX W.C.

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@18" AFF

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC WEATHERPROOF COVER

@18" AFF

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

REFER TO MEP FOR EXTERIOR

PLUMBING AND POWER

STRING LIGHTS. TYP.

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC WEATHERPROOF COVER

@18" AFF

POOL EMERGENCY STOP BUTTON

CP

CP

CP

GFIC OUTLET

W/ TAYMAC

WEATHERPROOF

COVER

@ 2" AFF

1
2" GAS LINE

SET BETWEEN 4.5" MIN TO 10.5" MAX W.C.

M

VAN

VAN

VAN

EV

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

26.0'

24.0'

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

305 LF HOSE LAY

300 LF. HOSE LAY

355 LF. HOSE LAY

370 LF. HOSE LAY

380 LF. HOSE LAY

345 LF. HOSE LAY

350 LF. HOSE LAY

370 LF. HOSE LAY

345 LF. HOSE LAY

330 LF. HOSE LAY

325 LF. HOSE LAY

FDC, WALL

MOUNTED
FDC, WALL

MOUNTED
FDC, WALL

MOUNTED

FDC, WALL

MOUNTED
FDC, WALL

MOUNTED

FDC, WALL

MOUNTED

FDC, WALL

MOUNTEDFDC, WALL

MOUNTED

FDC, WALL

MOUNTED

FDC, WALL

MOUNTED
6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

6'' PIV

360 LF. HOSE LAY

6'' PIV

315 LF HOSE LAY

260 LF. HOSE LAY

FIRE APPARATUS ROUTE

350 FT HOSE LAY

250 FT HOSE LAY

245 FT HOSE LAY

350 LF. HOSE LAY

300 LF. HOSE LAY

220 LF. HOSE LAY

40.0'

12.0'

FIRE HYDRANT

340 LF. HOSE LAY

113.3'

116.9'

117.4'

141.1'

48.0'

94.1'

87.3' 60.3'

99.8'

70.2'

170 LF. HOSE LAY

 D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 4
0

0
 -

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 4
3

0
 F

IR
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:1

7
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 430

FIRE
PROTECTION

PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
7035 70 140

NORTH

FIRE HYDRANT

400 FT MAX HOSE LAY

SITE PLAN LEGEND:

22.007.00

43.00

: 33.3Steering Angle

8.50

8.50
6.0

Aerial Fire Truck

feet

:

:
:

Width

Track
Lock to Lock Time

FDC, WALL MOUNTED

DESIGN FIRE TRUCK:

PIV



M

>

>

>

>

>
> >

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

S

S

S

SS

S
S

SSSS

SS

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSS

SS SSSS

2
5
'

25' BUFFER

(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

EOP

EOP

EOP

P
P

P
P

POOLER PARKWAY

 A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD

VARIABLE R/W

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

20' R
EAR/S

ID
E S

ETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' R
EAR/SIDE SETBACK

20' REAR/SIDE SETBACK

PH1:CH

PH2:B1

PH3:B2

PH4:B3 PH7:B5

PH6:B4

PH8:B6

PH10:B8

PH9:B7

PH6

PH11:B9

PH12:B10

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 1)

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 2)

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 3)

BUILDING 9
TYPE A

BUILDING 8
TYPE C

BUILDING
10 TYPE B

BUILDING 5
TYPE A

BUILDING 1
TYPE A

BUILDING 6
TYPE C

BUILDING 2
TYPE C BUILDING 7

TYPE B

BUILDING 4
TYPE B

BUILDING 3
TYPE B

LEASING

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR

DETAILED AMENITY AREA

PLANS

LIFT
STATION

CLUBHOUSE FITNESS

PICKLE
BALL

COURTS

GARAGES
G2

GARAGES
G3

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES
G4

GARAGES
G5

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

GARAGES
G7

PH5:

POOL

 D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 4
4

0
 -

 P
H

A
S

IN
G

 P
L

A
N

.d
w

g
  

 C
 4

4
0

 P
H

A
S

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:1

8
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 440

PHASING SITE
PLAN

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

35 70 140

PHASING NOTES:

1. PHASING WILL BE COMPLETED IN NUMERICAL ORDER 1

THROUGH 12.

2. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH OWNER AND ENGINEER

COMMENCING OF EACH PHASES OF THE CONSTRUCTION.

3. PHASE 1 WILL COMPLETE AMENITIES, MAIN ENTRANCE & GATE

FIRST.

4. ALL ASSOCIATED UTILITIES FOR EACH BUILDINGS IN THE

PHASE IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT SAME PHASE.

5. FINAL STABILIZATION APPLIES TO EACH PHASE OF

CONSTRUCTION.

6. PER CITY OF POOLER REQUIREMENTS, THE FOLLOWING MUST

BE COMPLETED/PROVIDED TO RECEIVE BUILDINGS COO'S IN

EACH PHASE:

· PARKING PROVIDED

· STORM INFRASTRUCTURE COMPLETE

· LANDSCAPE INSTALLED

N
O

R
T
H

PHASE SUMMARY:

PHASE 1:
GARAGE: G1

STRUCTURES: MAIN ENTRANCE & GATE

CLUB HOUSE

LEASING

FITNESS CENTER

PICKLE BALL COURT

PHASE 2:
BUILDING: 1

STORMWATER: POND 1

STRUCTURE: SANITARY LIFT STATION

PHASE 3:
BUILDING: 2

GARAGE: G2

PHASE 4:
BUILDING: 3

GARAGE: G3

PHASE 5:
STRUCTURES: POOL

PHASE 6:
BUILDING: 4

STORMWATER: POND 2

PHASE 7:
BUILDING: 5

GARAGE: G4

PHASE 8:
BUILDING: 6

GARAGE: G5

PHASE 9:
BUILDING: 7

PHASE 10:
BUILDING: 8

GARAGE: G6

PHASE 11:
BUILDING: 9

STORMWATER: POND 3

PHASE 12:
BUILDING : 10

GARAGE: G7

STRUCTURE: SOUTH ENTRANCE & GATE

DUMPSTER PAD



C1

P
.B

. 3
1P

 P
G
. 3

A

W
E
S
TB

R
O
O
K
 A

T S
A
V
A
N
N
A
H
 Q

U
A
R
TE

R
S
 C

O
M

M
U
N
IT

Y

1
5
.9

1
4
.8

1
4
.7

1
4
.6

1
6
.5

1
6
.6

14

1
5
.3

1
7
.3

1
8
.2

1
8
.6

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY

31" RED MAPLE

30" RED MAPLE

33" RED MAPLE

31" RED MAPLE

28" RED MAPLE

28" RED MAPLE

FIELD FENCE

W W W W W

W
W

EXISTING UTILITY
EASEMENT (20'X20')
DB 206 "Y", PG. 63
PB 16"P", PG. 75

WETLANDS

1
7
.5

S 30°38'06"E 372.15'

S 30°38'13"E 194.26'

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

B
1

B2

B
3

B4

B
5

B6

B
7

B8
B9

B
10

B11

B
1
2

B13

B
1
4

B15

B16

B
17

B18B19B20

B21
B22

B23

B24
B25

B26

B27

B28

B29

B30

B31

B32
B33

B34

B35

B36

B
37

B
3
8

B
3
9

B
4
0

B
41

B42

B
4
3

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

L
1

18" LIVE OAK

2
5
'

S 53°50'30"W
1
6
4
.6

1
'

1
4

1
4

1
4

141414

1
61
4

1
61
4

1
61
4 1

5
1
5

1717

1
6

1
6

1
6

1
5

1
5

141414

161616

1
6

1
6

1
6

1
6

1616

1515

1515

1515

1
6

1
6

1
6

1
7

1
7

1717

161616

14

16

19

18
17

202020

2121

2121

202020
19
18
17
16

19
18
17
16

18

16

1
6

1
6

1
6

1515

141414

181818

1
8

1
8

1
8

1
81

8
1
8

1717

1717

1
61616

1
6

1
6

1
6

141414

1515

18

17

18

17

18

161616

1515

141414

1
4

1
4

1
4

141414

1
8

1
8

1
8

1
7

16
1
7

1616

1
5

1
5

181
8

1
8

181
8

18

1717

181818

1
8

1
8

1
8

17

16

17

1616

1515

18

17

1
6

18

17

1
6

18

1
6

18

17
16

18

17
16

18

16 1717
16
15

1
9

1
92020202121

181818

1717

161616

1515

141414

17

16

17

1616

1515

181818

1
8

1
8

1
8

181818

1
8

1
8

1
8

21

19
18

21

19
1818

202020

181818
S S

S
BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER
(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS
CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

30' UTILITY EASEMENT

P.B. 23P PG. 50

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

HW
HW

R
S

R
SR
S

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

S

S

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

18"RCP

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

4" STEEL

8" PVC

F
O

R
C

E
 M

A
IN

8
" 

P
V

C
UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP

OHP OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

INV.=14.5'

INV.=14.7'
FORCE MAIN
CONTINUES TO CITY

OF POOLER LIFT
STATION

WATER VALVE CONC.
MONUMENT (TYP.)

WATER MH
TOP = 14.6'WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

24.89 ACRES

UGC

18" LIVE OAK

SWIMMING POOL

2,047 SF

CP

CP

CP

>

>

>

>

>

> >

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

1
5 1
0

1
0

1
5

2
0

20

6.39%

6
.9

5
%

FFE:20.35
FFE:20.35

FFE:21.30

FFE:20.10
FFE:18.93

FFE:20.10

FFE:20.10

FFE:20.10

FFE:18.75

FFE:20.35

FFE:20.10

FFE:19.56

FFE:20.01FFE:19.98

FFE:21.15

FFE:21.30

FFE:20.63

FFE:18.89

FFE:20.30

FFE:19.90

10

10

10

10

10

1
0

1
015

15

15

15

15

1
5

1
5

1
0

1
5

15

20

10

15

2
0

101
0

10

1
0

15

1
5

15

15

10

1
0

15

1
5

151515

ep

bc

tc

back

3
.8

8
%

4
.8

7
%

4
.6

4
%

2.88%

2
.3

8
%

2
.7

5
%

1
.9

9
%

2
.0

0
%

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 5
0

0
 -

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
L

A
N

.d
w

g
  

 C
 5

0
0

 O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:1

8
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 500

OVERALL
GRADING PLAN

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

7035 70 140

NORTH

GRADING & DRAINAGE NOTES:

1. SITE AREA:  24.89 ACRES

DISTURBED AREA:  21.77 ACRES

2. CRITICAL SPOT GRADES ARE TO PAVEMENT GRADE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL SIDEWALKS AND CROSSWALKS WITH A 2.0% MAXIMUM CROSS

SLOPE AND A 5.0% MAXIMUM RUNNING SLOPE, UNLESS NOTED AS A RAMP. GRADES WITHIN ADA

HANDICAP PARKING AREAS NOT TO EXCEED A 2% MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION.

4. ALL ROOF DRAIN PIPING SHALL BE PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ALL ROOF DRAIN CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A BRASS CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE

PROPOSED GRADE.

6. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE HORIZONTAL DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS

BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF

STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

7. THIS PROJECT DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A 100 YEAR FLOOD HAZARD ZONE AS DEFINED BY THE F.E.M.A.

"FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY MAP" COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 13051C0109G, DATED 08/16/2018.

8. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO THE WORK AREA.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY

COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

9. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY SEWER AND STORM DRAINAGE SERVICE

CONNECTIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF DISCREPANCY

PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

10.NO GRADED SLOPE SHALL EXCEED 2H:1V

11. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL BE DESIGNED AND PERMITTED BY AN ENGINEER

LICENSED IN THE STATE OF GEORGIA.

12. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL HAVE FALL PROTECTION THROUGH FENCING OR

HANDRAIL AT A MINIMUM OF 42" TALL. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS.

13.THE INFILTRATION FOR THE STORMWATER SYSTEM IS BASED ON IN-SITU TESTING BY GEOTECHNICAL

ENGINEER. THE SYSTEM IS BASED ON OBTAINING INFILTRATION RATES SIMILAR TO THE TESTED VALUES

PRE-CONSTRUCTION. AS SUCH, THE AREAS WHERE STORMWATER IS DIRECTED TO INFILTRATE ARE TO

REMAIN RESIDUAL SOILS AND COMPACTION IS TO BE LIMITED TO ENSURE THE SOIL CHARACTERISTICS

CONTINUE TO FUNCTION AS TESTED PRE-CONSTRUCTION. IF THESE AREAS ARE DISTURBED,

COMPACTED, OR FILLED, THE ENGINEER IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS ADDITIONAL TESTING AND COORDINATION

WOULD BE REQUIRED TO ENSURE THE PREVIOUSLY RECORDED INFILTRATION RATES CAN BE ACHIEVED.

950

948

945.00

945

944

HP:945.00

TS:945.00

BS:945.00

TC:945.00

BC:945.00

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

GRADING LEGEND:

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED SPOT GRADE

PROPOSED TOP GRADE AT WALL

PROPOSED BOTTOM GRADE AT WALL

PROPOSED TOP OF STAIR GRADE

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF STAIR GRADE

PROPOSED HIGH POINT GRADE

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB GRADE

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF CURB GRADE

DRAINAGE FLOW ARROW

BG:945.00

TG:945.00

PROPOSED LOW POINT GRADELP:945.00

KEY MAP:

CI

GI

SWCB

DWCB

CURB INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-19)

GRATE INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-21)

SINGLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1033D)

DOUBLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1034D)

YD YARD DRAIN (NDS CATCH BASIN OR COMPARABLE)

STORM DRAINAGE LEGEND:

JB JUNCTION BOX (POOLER DETAIL P-23)

CO CLEAN OUT (SHEET C 310 OR COMPARABLE)

OCS OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE (CAST-IN-PLACE)

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN PIPE

C 505

C 501 C 503C 502
C 504

C 507C 506

GENERAL ADA NOTES:

1. THE RUNNING SLOPES ALONG ACCESSIBLE ROUTES TO ACCESSIBLE

BUILDING ENTRANCES NOT TO EXCEED 5% MAX.

2. THE SURFACE SLOPES IN ALL DIRECTIONS IN THE SPACE REQUIRED FOR

DOOR MANEUVERING CLEARANCES AT ACCESSIBLE BUILDING ENTRANCES

NOT TO EXCEED 2% MAX.

SWALE LINE> >



1
6
.5

X

W
W

W
W

W

WETLANDS

1
6
4
.6

1
'

S S S S S S S S S S

S
S

R/W MARKER

P
P

P
P

BENCHMARK #1

8" PVC
UGC

OHP OHP

OHP

O
H
P

CONTINUES TO CITY

VAN

LL

LL

LL

EV

FFE:18.75

19.36

19.36

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

19.10

19.14

18.98

18.67

18.40

18.38

18.71

2.21%

0
.5

5
%

0
.5

4
%

17.84

18.50

18.85

18.67

18.29

18.82

18.51

18.52

18.89

19.03

18

19

1
8

1
7

1
6

19

19

18

18

19

18

19

1817

16

15

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
0 1

9

1
8

1
7

1
6

18
17

19

17

18

18

R
27'

R
27

'

REMOVE 26 LF OF

CURB & GUTTER

REMOVE 24 LF OF

CURB & GUTTER

39 LF OF 18"

CURB & GUTTER

CITY TO REMOVE

EXISTING WALL

1
8

1
8

1
9

NEW ASPHALT

PAVEMENT

REPLACE

PAVEMENT
AS NEEDED

C1

1
7
.5

EOP

R
S

R
S

UGC

UGC

OHP
OHP

U
G

P

UGC

LL LL LL

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

AREA

18.17

18.93

18.19

LP:18.07
LP:18.05

18.15

18.18

18.58 18.59

1
0

1
5

9

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

19

2
0

19.16

18.91

70 LF OF 18"

CURB & GUTTER

67 LF OF 18"

CURB & GUTTER

NEW
ASPHALT

PAVEMENT

TIE PROPOSED CURB TO

EXISTING CURB INLET

TIE PROPOSED CURB TO

EXISTING CURB INLET

TIE PROPOSED CURB TO

EXISTING CURB INLET

TIE PROPOSED CURB TO

EXISTING CURB INLET

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 5
0

8
 -

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
L

A
N

 F
U

T
U

R
E

.d
w

g
  

 C
 5

0
8

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:2

0
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 508

FUTURE
DETAILED

ENTRANCE PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
2010 20 40

NORTH

KEY MAP:

CI

GI

SWCB

DWCB

CURB INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-19)

GRATE INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-21)

SINGLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1033D)

DOUBLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1034D)

YD YARD DRAIN (NDS CATCH BASIN OR COMPARABLE)

STORM DRAINAGE LEGEND:

JB JUNCTION BOX (POOLER DETAIL P-23)

CO CLEAN OUT (SHEET C 310 OR COMPARABLE)

OCS OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE (CAST-IN-PLACE)

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN PIPE

950

948

945

944

EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

GRADING LEGEND:

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED SPOT GRADE

PROPOSED TOP GRADE AT WALL

PROPOSED BOTTOM GRADE AT WALL

PROPOSED TOP OF STAIR GRADE

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF STAIR GRADE

PROPOSED HIGH POINT GRADE

PROPOSED TOP OF CURB GRADE

PROPOSED BOTTOM OF CURB GRADE

DRAINAGE FLOW ARROW

PROPOSED LOW POINT GRADE

SWALE LINE

PH2 PH2



C1

P
.B

. 3
1P

 P
G
. 3

A

W
E
S
TB

R
O
O
K
 A

T S
A
V
A
N
N
A
H
 Q

U
A
R
TE

R
S
 C

O
M

M
U
N
IT

Y

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY

FIELD FENCE

EXISTING UTILITY
EASEMENT (20'X20')
DB 206 "Y", PG. 63
PB 16"P", PG. 75

1
7
.5

S 30°38'06"E 372.15'

S 30°38'13"E 194.26'

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

B
1

B2

B
3

B4

B
5

B6

B
7

B
8

B9

B
10

B11

B
1
2

B13

B
1
4

B15

B16

B
17

B18B19B20

B21
B22

B23

B24
B25

B26

B27

B28

B29

B30

B31

B32
B33

B34

B35

B36

B
37

B
3
8

B
3
9

B
4
0

B
41

B42

B
4
3

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

L
1

2
5
'

S 53°50'30"W
1
6
4
.6

1
'

BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER

(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS
CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

30' UTILITY EASEMENT

P.B. 23P PG. 50

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

HW
HW

R
S

R
S

R
SR
S

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

S

S

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

18"RCP

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

4" STEEL

8" PVC

F
O

R
C

E
 M

A
IN

8
" 

P
V

C

UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP

OHP OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

INV.=14.5'

INV.=14.7'
FORCE MAIN
CONTINUES TO CITY

OF POOLER LIFT
STATION

WATER VALVE CONC.

MONUMENT (TYP.)

WATER MH
TOP = 14.6'WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

24.89 ACRES

UGC

C1

P
.B

. 3
1P

 P
G
. 3

A

W
E
S
TB

R
O
O
K
 A

T S
A
V
A
N
N
A
H
 Q

U
A
R
TE

R
S
 C

O
M

M
U
N
IT

Y

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY

FIELD FENCE

EXISTING UTILITY
EASEMENT (20'X20')
DB 206 "Y", PG. 63
PB 16"P", PG. 75

1
7
.5

S 30°38'06"E 372.15'

S 30°38'13"E 194.26'

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

B
1

B2

B
3

B4

B
5

B6

B
7

B
8

B9

B
10

B11

B
1
2

B13

B
1
4

B15

B16

B
17

B18B19B20

B21
B22

B23

B24
B25

B26

B27

B28

B29

B30

B31

B32
B33

B34

B35

B36

B
37

B
3
8

B
3
9

B
4
0

B
41

B42

B
4
3

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

L
1

2
5
'

S 53°50'30"W
1
6
4
.6

1
'

BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER

(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS
CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

30' UTILITY EASEMENT

P.B. 23P PG. 50

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

HW
HW

R
S

R
S

R
SR
S

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

S

S

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

18"RCP

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

4" STEEL

8" PVC

F
O

R
C

E
 M

A
IN

8
" 

P
V

C

UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP

OHP OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

INV.=14.5'

INV.=14.7'
FORCE MAIN
CONTINUES TO CITY

OF POOLER LIFT
STATION

WATER VALVE CONC.

MONUMENT (TYP.)

WATER MH
TOP = 14.6'WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD
VARIABLE R/W

24.89 ACRES

UGC

SWIMMING POOL

2,047 SF

12" AD12" AD
12" AD 12" AD

12" AD

12" AD

12" AD 4" SD

12" AD

CP

CP

CP

>

>

>

>

>
> >

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

S

W

W

WW

W

WW

W
W

F
M

S

S

W W

W

FM

FMFM

SS

S
S

SSSS

SS

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSS

SS SSSS

M

8" PVC WATER MAIN

8" PVC WATER MAIN

8" PVC SS

GRAVITY MAIN

8" PVC SS

GRAVITY MAIN

8" PVC SS

FORCE MAIN

(PUBLIC)

10" PVC WATER MAIN

(PUBLIC)

8" PVC SS

FORCE MAIN

(PUBLIC)

LIFT STATION

W/ GENERATOR

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 1)

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 2)

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT AREA

(POND 3)

BUILDING 9
TYPE A

BUILDING 8
TYPE C

BUILDING
10 TYPE B

BUILDING 5
TYPE A

BUILDING 1
TYPE A

BUILDING 6
TYPE C

BUILDING 2
TYPE C BUILDING 7

TYPE B

BUILDING 4
TYPE B

BUILDING 3
TYPE B

LEASING

AMENITY AREA
SEE LA PLANS FOR

DETAILED AMENITY AREA

PLANSCLUBHOUSE FITNESS

GARAGES
G2

GARAGES
G3

GARAGES
G6

GARAGES
G4

GARAGES
G5

GARAGES &
MAINTENANCE

G1

GARAGES
G7

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

FIELD FENCE S 30°38'06"E

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

BEGINNING POINT:
STATE PLANE CO-ORD.

N=754908.64'
E=931477.03'

(NAD 83) CIPS

CIPS

P
P

P
P

G G

UGC

UGC

UGC

U
G

C

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

FIELD FENCE S 30°38'06"E

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

BEGINNING POINT:
STATE PLANE CO-ORD.

N=754908.64'
E=931477.03'

(NAD 83) CIPS

CIPS

P
P

P
P

G G

UGC

UGC

UGC

U
G

C

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

40' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

40' BUILDING SETBACK LINE

C4

S 37° 58' 26" E 174.81'

S 37° 58' 26" E 497.86'

>

>

LL

LL LL LL LL

LL

0
+

0
0

0+00

1+00 2+00

S

F
M

FM

0
+

0
0

1+00

2+003+004+005+00
6+00

7+00

8+009+00

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

17+00

18+00

18+27

S

S

0
+

0
0

FM

FMFM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

SS

5
1
'

4
6
'

POOLER PARKWAY
(R/W VARIES)

WETLANDS

POOLER PARKWAY (R/W VARIES)

12'

8" PVC SS

FORCE MAIN

(PUBLIC)

8" PVC SS

FORCE MAIN

(PUBLIC)

SS MH

RIM 15.30
INV. IN 10.98

INV OUT 8.66

EXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

(POOLER PARKWAY ROAD

WIDENING PROJECT TO

COMMENCE IN NEAR FUTURE)

FORCE MAIN EXTENSION TO

TIE TO EXISTING MANHOLE
SANITARY

SEWER

FORCE
MAIN

EXTENTION

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

PROPOSED FOR

WIDENING PROJECT

PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY

12" SCH 80 PVC CONDUIT (125 LF)

TO BE PROVIDED FOR FORCE MAIN

RUN UNDER FUTURE ROADWAY
PROJECTEXISTING EDGE OF PAVEMENT

(POOLER PARKWAY ROAD

WIDENING PROJECT TO
COMMENCE IN NEAR FUTURE)

EDGE OF PAVEMENT PROPOSED

FOR WIDENING PROJECT

RECEIVING MH TO BE LINED

WITH RAVEN LINER PRODUCT

FOR CORROSION PROTECTION

GRAVEL ACCESS PATH FROM

EXISTING ROAD AND ACCESS

EASEMENT FROM ROW

12" SCH 80 PVC CONDUIT (105 LF)

TO BE PROVIDED FOR FORCE

MAIN RUN UNDER FUTURE

DRIVEWAY

FORCE MAIN EXTENSION

(PUBLIC)

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 6
0

0
 -

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 6
0

0
 O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:2

1
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

35 70 140

NORTH

SS

W

SS

PROPOSED WATER LINE (C 900)

UTILITY NOTES:

1. ALL SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A BRASS

CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE PROPOSED GRADE.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE UTILITY CONNECTION AND REROUTING

LOCATIONS WITH APPLICABLE AGENCIES.

3. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF

POOLER SEWER AUTHORITY SANITARY SEWER AND CITY OF POOLER

WATER AUTHORITY WATER STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

4. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE HORIZONTAL

DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS

BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE

MEASURED FROM CENTER OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY

COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO THE WORK AREA.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND

COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS

RELOCATED WHEN NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

6. ALL UTILITY CONNECTIONS END AT 5' OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING

FOOTPRINT. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND

PLUMBING PLANS FOR BUILDING LAYOUT AND INTERNAL UTILITY SERVICE.

7. ALL ONSITE UTILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED UNDERGROUND.

8. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY SEWER

SERVICE CONNECTIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL

NOTIFY ENGINEER OF DISCREPANCY PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

9. ALL PROPOSED WATER LINES PASSED THE CONNECTION TO THE EXISTING

PUBLIC WATER MAIN WILL BE PRIVATE AND NOT MAINTAINED BY THE CITY

OF POOLER.

UTILITY LEGEND:

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (FDC)

WATER VALVE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER PIPE (SDR-55)

FIRE HYDRANT

POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)

WATER CONNECTIONS AND BENDS

WATER MAIN TAPPING SLEEVE

C 600

OVERALL
UTILITY PLAN

FORCE MAIN EXTENSION

KEY MAP:

C 605

C 601 C 603C 602
C 604

C 607C 606

FO
R

C
E 

M
A

IN
 E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
M

A
TC

H
LI

N
E 

SE
E 

A
B

O
VE

FM PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN (SDR-35)



C1

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

FIELD FENCE 1
7
.5

S 30°38'06"E 372.15'

S 30°38'13"E 194.26'

S 30°35'38"E 654.67'

B
3

B4

B
5

B6

B
7

B
8

B9

B
10

B11

B
1
2

B13

B
1
4

B15

B16

B
17

B18B19B20

B21
B22

B23

B24
B25

B26

B27

B28

B29

B30

B31

B32
B33

B34

B35

B
4
3

B44

B
4
5

B
4
6

B
47

B
4
8

L
1

2
5
'

S 53°50'30"W
1
6
4
.6

1
'

BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER

(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

HW
HW

R
S

R
SR
S

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

18"RCP

BENCHMARK #1

4" STEEL

UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP OHP

OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

INV.=14.7'
FORCE MAIN

CONTINUES TO CITY
OF POOLER LIFT

STATION

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD

VARIABLE R/W

UGC

24" WHITE OAK

24" WILLOW OAK

27" BLACK GUM

W

W

WW

W W W W

WW

W
W

W

>
>

>

>

>

>
>

>

> >

>

>

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

S

S

S

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

SSSSSS

SS

S
S

S
S

SS SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSS

SSSS SSSS

SS

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

M

IRRIGATION SLEEVES (TYP.)

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER
TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

TRANSFORMER

3 PHASE TRANSFORMER

FOR LIFT STATION

3 PHASE TRANSFORMER
FOR PUMP ROOM

3" GAS LINE SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY. UTILITY

LOCATION TO BE COORDINATED

WITH UTILITY PROVIDER.

3" GAS LINE SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY. UTILITY

LOCATION TO BE COORDINATED

WITH UTILITY PROVIDER.

GAS METER

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

A/C UNIT (TYP.)

ELECTRIC VEHICLE

CHARGER

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

UNDERGROUND POWER LINE (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

BUILDING LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

STREET LIGHT (TYP.)

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 6
3

0
 -

 D
R

Y
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

.d
w

g
  

 C
 6

3
0

 D
R

Y
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

  
 F

e
b

 0
9

, 
2

0
2

4
  

1
2

:2
4

p
m

  
 b

y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 630

DRY UTILITY
PLAN

0
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

6030 60 120

NORTH

SS

W

UGP

SS

G

PROPOSED WATER LINE

UTILITY NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE UTILITY CONNECTION AND REROUTING

LOCATIONS WITH APPLICABLE AGENCIES.

2. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE HORIZONTAL

DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS THE

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS

BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED

FROM CENTER OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY

COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO THE WORK AREA.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND

COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED

WHEN NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

4. ALL UTILITY CONNECTIONS END AT 5' OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING FOOTPRINT.

REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND PLUMBING

PLANS FOR BUILDING LAYOUT AND INTERNAL UTILITY SERVICE.

5. ALL ONSITE UTILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED UNDERGROUND.

UTILITY LEGEND:

PROPOSED ELECTRIC LINE

PROPOSED NATURAL GAS LINE

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (FDC)

WATER VALVE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER PIPE

FIRE HYDRANT

POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)

WATER CONNECTIONS AND BENDS

WATER MAIN TAPPING SLEEVE

WATER CONNECTIONS AND BENDS

DATA NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE (2) 4" CONDUITS FROM RIGHT OF WAY TO THE

MINIMUM POINT OF ENTRY.

2. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE (2) 4" CONDUITS FROM MINIMUM POINT OF ENTRY

TO EACH PULL BOX / SPLICE CASE.

3. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE (1) 2" CONDUIT FROM PULL BOX / SPLICE CASE TO

IDF.

4. REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS.

ELECTRIC NOTES:

1. UTILITY TO PROVIDE 4" PRIMARY CONDUITS & CONDUCTOR TO

TRANSFORMERS IN COORDINATION WITH FINAL ELECTRIC DESIGN.

2. UTILITY TO PROVIDE CONDUITS & CONDUCTOR FROM TRANSFORMERS TO

BUILDINGS IN COORDINATION WITH FINAL ELECTRIC DESIGN.

3. REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR DETAILS.



12" AD12" AD 12" AD 12" AD

12" AD

12" AD

12" AD

ADA

GATE +12"

ADA

ADA

36"X48"

ADA
GATE +18"

ADA
GATE +12"

ADA

GATE +18"

ADA
60" DIA

4" SD

12" AD

CP

CP

CP

C1

P
.B

. 3
1P

 P
G
. 3

A

W
E
S
TB

R
O
O
K
 A

T S
A
V
A
N
N
A
H
 Q

U
A
R
TE

R
S
 C

O
M

M
U
N
IT

Y

P
.B

. 
3
1
P

 P
G

. 
3
A

W
E

S
T
B

R
O

O
K

 A
T
 S

A
V

A
N

N
A

H
 Q

U
A

R
T
E

R
S

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY P.B. 31P PG. 3A

WESTBROOK AT SAVANNAH QUARTERS COMMUNITY

FIELD FENCE

EXISTING UTILITY

EASEMENT (20'X20')
DB 206 "Y", PG. 63
PB 16"P", PG. 75

1
7
.5

2
5
'

BEGINNING POINT:

STATE PLANE CO-ORD.
N=754908.64'

E=931477.03'
(NAD 83)

25' BUFFER

(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

CIPS
CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CRBS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

CIPS

R/W MARKER
R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER R/W MARKER

R/W MARKER

30' UTILITY EASEMENT

P.B. 23P PG. 50

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

EOP

EOP

EOP

HW
HW

R
S

R
S

R
SR
S

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

R
S

S

S

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

18"RCP

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

4" STEEL

8" PVC

F
O

R
C

E
 M

A
IN

8
" 

P
V

C

UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP

OHP OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

INV.=14.5'

INV.=14.7'
FORCE MAIN
CONTINUES TO CITY

OF POOLER LIFT
STATION

WATER VALVE CONC.
MONUMENT (TYP.)

WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'

POOLER PARKWAY

A.K.A. QUACCO ROAD

VARIABLE R/W

24.89 ACRES

UGC

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL 15

16

15

1
5

15

1
41

4

14

16

16

1
6

15

14

16

15

15

14
14

14

14 14

1
4

1
4 14

14

1
4

1
4

15

1
5

15

15 15

1
5

15

1
5

15
15

15

1
4

1
4

14

1
4

14

14

1
4

14

14 14 14

14 14

15

15

1
5

1
5

14

14

1
4

14

1
4

14

1515

1
5

1
4

16

1
6

16

16

17

16 1
7

20
20

20

20

1
7

1
8

18

181818

18
18

18 18
19

19
19

19
21

21

17

17

17

17

17

1
8

18

19

15

15

16

16

16

16
17

17

1717

17

17

1818

18

18 18
19

1
5

15

15

14

1
4

14

16

1
6

1
6

17

15

1
6

1
7

17

18

18

18

18

18

17 17
181
8

17

17

1716

16

1
6

1
7

1
6

16

15

15

16

1
7 17

17

1
8

18

181
8

1
7

17

18

15

14

16

17

1818

1
7

1
7

18

1
8

18

NORMAL WATER

ELEVATION: 14.0

BOTTOM: 8.0

TOP: 18.0

NORMAL WATER

ELEVATION: 15.0

BOTTOM: 9.0

TOP: 19.0

NORMAL WATER

ELEVATION: 15.0

BOTTOM: 9.0

TOP: 19.0

>

>

>

>

>

> >

2
0 2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

202020

2
0

2
0

2
0

20

2
0

2020

20

2020

20 2
0

20
2
0

2
0

2
0

2020

2
0202
0

2
0

20

20

20

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

20

2
0

2
0

1818

18 1
8

1
8

1
8

1
81
8

18

18

1
8

19
19

1
9 1
9 1
9 19

1
9 1
9

1
9

19 19

1
9 19

19
19

19

1
9

1
9 1

9

19

191
9

1
9

1
9

1
9 1
9

1
9

1
9

1
9

1
9

19 1
9

19

19

21

2
1

2
1212
121

21

21

2
1

2
1

1
0

10

1
0

10

10

1
0

1
0

1
0

10

10

1
0

10

1
5

15

1
5

15

1
5

1
5

15

15

15

15

1
5

15

15

15

15

15

15

1
5

1
5

15

1
5

1
5

1
5

15

1
5

1
5

15

1
5

1
5

2
0

2
0

2
0

20

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

20

2
0

2
0

2
0

RIP RAP

Z-1 - 48" OCS

Y-1 - 60" OCS

E-1 - DWCB

A-5.2 - SWCBA-5.1 - SWCB

C-2 - DI

C-4 - DI
C-1 - JB

A-9.1 - DI

D-6 - DI

C-1.1.1 - DI

C-3.1 - DI

D-4 - DI

C-1.3 - DI

D-8 - DI

D-7 - Cylindrical Junction Structure NF

D-5 - DI

D-3 - DI

D-4.1 - DI

C-5 - JB

C-7 - DI

X-1 - 48" OCS

B-1.1 - DI
B-3.2 - DI

A-12 - DI

A-3.1 - DI

A-8 - DI

B-2 - DI

A-10 - DI
A-11 - DI

B-5 - DI

A-1 - DI

A-2 - DI

A-4 - DI

A-5 - DI

B-4 - DIB-3 - DI

A-2.2 - DI

X-0 - HW

Y-0 - HW

A-0 - INV. INTO POND

D-0 - INV. INTO POND

C-0 - INV. INTO POND
B-0 - INV. INTO POND

B-3.3 - JB

Z-0 - HW

C-1.1 - JB

C-1.2 - DI

A-3 - JB

C-3 - JB

B-1 - MH

A-9 - MH

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\C

 7
0

0
 -

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 C

 7
0

0
 O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 P

L
A

N
  

 F
e

b
 0

9
, 

2
0

2
4

  
1

2
:2

6
p

m
  

 b
y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY JW

DESIGNED BY BC

DRAWN BY BC

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II) 0000073900

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

12/15/2023

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

C 700

OVERALL
DRAINAGE

PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
7035 70 140

NORTH

GRADING & DRAINAGE NOTES:

1. SITE AREA:  24.89 ACRES

DISTURBED AREA:  21.77 ACRES

2. CRITICAL SPOT GRADES ARE TO PAVEMENT GRADE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL SIDEWALKS AND CROSSWALKS WITH A 2.0% MAXIMUM CROSS

SLOPE AND A 5.0% MAXIMUM RUNNING SLOPE, UNLESS NOTED AS A RAMP. GRADES WITHIN ADA

HANDICAP PARKING AREAS NOT TO EXCEED A 2% MAXIMUM SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION.

4. ALL ROOF DRAIN PIPING SHALL BE PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ALL ROOF DRAIN CLEANOUTS IN PAVED AREAS SHALL HAVE A BRASS CAP SET FLUSH WITH THE

PROPOSED GRADE.

6. ALL PIPE LENGTHS SPECIFIED IN THESE PLANS ARE THE HORIZONTAL DISTANCE AND ARE SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE ACTUAL LENGTHS

BASED ON PROPOSED PIPE SLOPE. PIPE LENGTHS IN PLANS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF

STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

7. THIS PROJECT DOES NOT LIE WITHIN A 100 YEAR FLOOD HAZARD ZONE AS DEFINED BY THE F.E.M.A.

"FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY MAP" COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 13051C0109G, DATED 08/16/2018.

8. UTILITIES MAY EXIST WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY COMPANIES HAVING UTILITIES WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO THE WORK AREA.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE THE UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED AND COORDINATE WITH THE UTILITY

COMPANIES TO HAVE CONFLICTS RELOCATED WHEN NECESSARY OR ADAPTED FOR TIE-INS.

9. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING INVERT FOR SANITARY SEWER AND STORM DRAINAGE SERVICE

CONNECTIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER OF DISCREPANCY

PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

10.NO GRADED SLOPE SHALL EXCEED 2H:1V

11. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL BE DESIGNED AND PERMITTED BY AN ENGINEER

LICENSED IN THE STATE OF GEORGIA.

12. ALL WALLS GREATER THAN 30" IN HEIGHT SHALL HAVE FALL PROTECTION THROUGH FENCING OR

HANDRAIL AT A MINIMUM OF 42" TALL. REFERENCE LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAILS.

CI

GI

SWCB

DWCB

CURB INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-19)

GRATE INLET (POOLER DETAIL P-21)

SINGLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1033D)

DOUBLE WING CATCH BASIN (GDOT 1034D)

YD YARD DRAIN (NDS CATCH BASIN OR COMPARABLE)

STORM DRAINAGE LEGEND:

JB JUNCTION BOX (POOLER DETAIL P-23)

CO CLEAN OUT (SHEET C 310 OR COMPARABLE)

OCS OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE (CAST-IN-PLACE)

PROPOSED STORM PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF DRAIN PIPE



M

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S SS

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

SSSS

SS

S
S

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSS

SS SSSS

C1

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

31" RED MAPLE

30" RED MAPLE

33" RED MAPLE

31" RED MAPLE

28" RED MAPLE

28" RED MAPLE

FIELD FENCE

WETLANDS

1
7
.5

18" LIVE OAK

2
5
'

25' BUFFER
(P.B. 18P PG. 6B)

P
P

P
P

G G G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

BENCHMARK #1 BENCHMARK #2

4" STEEL

UGC UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC

UGC UGC

UGC

U
G

C

UGC

UGC OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP

O
H

P

OHP

OHP OHP

OHP

OHP
OHP

O
H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

U
G

P

UGP

WATER VALVE CONC.

MONUMENT (TYP.)

WATER MH
TOP = 14.6'WATER MH

TOP = 14.6'

UGC

18" LIVE OAK

VAN

VAN

VAN

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LLLLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL LL LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LLLLLL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL
LL

LLLL LL

LL

LL

LLLL

LL

LL

LLLL

EV

LL

LL

LL

LL

LL LL

SS

S
S

T
P

F

TPF

T
P

F

TPF

T
P

FTPF

T
P
F

T
P

F

TPF

TPF

TPF

TPF

TPF
TPF

TPFTPF

TPFTPFTPFTPF
TPFTPF

TPF

TPF

TPF

T
P
F

T
P

F
TP

F

TPF

TPF

T
P

F
T

P
F

T
P

F

T
P

F

STORMWATER

MANAGEMENT

AREA

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

AREA

STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

AREA

BUILDING 10
TYPE A

BUILDING 8
TYPE C

BUILDING 5
TYPE A

BUILDING 1
TYPE A

BUILDING 6
TYPE C

BUILDING 2
TYPE C

BUILDING 7
TYPE B

BUILDING 4
TYPE B

BUILDING 3
TYPE B

LEASING

CLUBHOUSE
FITNESS

BUILDING 9
TYPE B

GARAGE
G1

AMENITY
AREA

GARAGE
G2

GARAGE
G5

GARAGE
G3

GARAGE
G4

GARAGE
G7

LIFT

STATION

DOG
PARK

PICKELBALL
COURTS

X

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TAG #2830

X

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TAG #2829

X

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TAG #2828

X

TREE TO BE REMOVED

TAG #729

SS

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

6" CAL.

D
ra

w
in

g
 n

a
m

e
: 

K
:\

S
A

V
_

C
iv

il\
0

1
3

2
0

5
0

1
3

_
T

T
R

E
S

 @
 P

o
o

le
r\

C
A

D
\P

la
n

s
h

e
e

ts
\L

1
-0

0
 -

 T
R

E
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
.d

w
g

  
 L

 2
0

0
 O

V
E

R
A

L
L

 P
L

A
N

 A
N

D
 T

R
E

E
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

  
 F

e
b

 0
9

, 
2

0
2

4
  

1
2

:3
2

p
m

  
 b

y
: 

m
ik

e
.f

ri
tz

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT NO.

DATE

013205013

N
o

.
IS

S
U

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
B

Y

REVIEWED BY

DESIGNED BY

DRAWN BY

GSWCC NO.

(LEVEL II)

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

TITLE

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

 T
H

R
IF

T
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

1
1

1
 M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 C

IR
C

L
E

, 
S

U
IT

E
 1

5
0

0

IN
D

IA
N

A
P

O
L

IS
, 

IN
 4

6
2

0
4

P
H

O
N

E
: 

4
6

3
.2

3
7

.3
2

6
9

T
T

R
E

S
 P

O
O

L
E

R
P

O
O

L
E

R
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 @
 O

L
D

 Q
U

A
C

C
O

 R
O

A
D

IN
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

, 
P

O
O

L
E

R
 G

A
 3

1
3

2
2

P
A

R
C

E
L

 I
D

: 
5

1
0

0
9

 0
1

0
4

1

FC

FC

LB

10/19/2023

0000073900

L 200

OVERALL PLAN
AND TREE

PROTECTION PLAN

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS & CALCULATIONS

POOLER, GA

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

AREA CODE REQUIREMENT MEASUREMENT TOTAL QUANITY REQUIRED TOTAL QUANITY PROVIDED NOTES SECTION

TREE REPLACEMENT (15) PREFERRED SPECIES

TREES PLANTED PER 1 ACRE

OF DISTURBED LAND IF

EXISTING TREE REQUIREMENT

CANNOT BE MET

20.31 20.31 ACRES X 15 = 320 TREES 329 TREES OF PREFERRED

SPECIES PROPOSED

TREES TO BE PLANTED AT

MINIMUM OF 2" CALIPER & 8' IN

HEIGHT PER SECTION

REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 42-199

TREE MITIGATION WHEN A SIGNIFICANT TREE IS

REMOVED, PLANTING OF SAME

SPECIES, OR PREFERRED

SPECIES TOTALING THE SAME

NUMBER OF INCHES REMOVED

IS REQUIRED WITH

REPLACEMENT TREES HAVING

A MINIMUM OF A 6" CALIPER

60 " TO BE REPLACED 60" / 6" = 10 TREES AT A 6"

CALIPER TO BE PLANTED

(10) 6" CALIPER TREES OF

PREFERRED SPECIES

REQUIRED

(7) 6" TREES OF PREFERRED

SPECIES PROVIDED

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN TO

ACCOUNT FOR THE (3) THREE

ADDITIONAL TREES REQUIRED

PREFERRED SPECIES

PROVIDED INSTEAD OF SAME

SPECIES DUE TO TREES TO BE

REMOVED ARE NOT ON THE

PREFERRED SPECIES LIST

SECTION 42-198

TREE SPECIES DIVERSITY FOR ALL SITES, NO MORE

THAN 30% OF TREES PLANTED

SHALL BE THE SAME SPECIES

IN ORDER TO INCREASE

SPECIES DIVERSITY

329 TREES 329 X .3 = 99 TREES PER

SPECIES MAXIMUM

(4 SPECIES MINIMUM)

10 SPECIES PROVIDED NO SPECIES EXCEEDS 30% OF

TOTAL WHICH MEETS

DIVERSITY REQUIREMENTS

SECTION 42-199

PARKING LOT REQUIREMENTS PER 6-20-23 MEETING WITH

CITY OF POOLER, (1) LARGE

CANOPY TREES PER 500 SF OR

(1) MEDIUM CANOPY TREE PER

300 SF

--- --- --- --- SECTION 42-200 AND BY

AGREEMENT

KEY MAP

L 201 L 202 L 203

L 206L 205 L 207

L 204

TREES TO BE REMOVED
SIZE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME STATUS REPLACEMENT.

DBH

TREES TO REMAIN
SIZE BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME STATUS

N
O

R
T
H

L 201 L 202 L 203
L 204

L 205 L 206 L 207



February 9th, 2024
Rusty Windsor, P.E. 
Kimley Horn
554 E Gordon St
Savannah, GA 31401

Dear Mr. Windsor,

I am pleased to provide you with a recommendation for Approval of the site development plans 
for Thompson Thrift Residential, which is provided below.

Site Plan Review

Submittal Documents: Site Development Plans        Feb. 2024
Lift Station Calculations         Feb. 2024
Stormwater Management Report        Nov. 2023
Water System Report        Nov. 2023
Technical Traffic Memorandum         Sep. 2023

We have reviewed the submittal for the referenced project. The plans were reviewed for general 
conformance with the requirements of the City of Pooler.  This review of the submitted site plans 
does not relieve the Owner, Designer and Contractor, or their representatives, from their 
individual or collective responsibility to comply with the applicable provisions of the local, State 
and Federal Laws and Engineering Standards, and all Development Codes that apply to the City 
of Pooler. This review is not to be construed as a check of every item in the plans or 
construction. Failure of this office to note any conflict with said requirements does not relieve 
the developer from compliance. 

The Owner and the Design Consultant are fully responsible for all testing and inspections of their 
project during construction, and they also are fully responsible that the project is constructed in 
accordance with the approved construction plans. The design engineer is solely responsible that 
their designs are in compliance to all Federal, State and City ordinances and regulations.  All 
required permits and 3rd party approvals pursuant to land disturbing activity and land 
development shall be provided and found acceptable to the City of Pooler. All the required 
testing data, permits, and related material must be available to the City of Pooler, or assigned 
representation, during and after the construction is complete.

To the best of our knowledge, it is our opinion that the plans are in general conformance with the 
City of Pooler’s applicable design standards, codes and ordinances. We hereby recommend 
Approval of the site development plans.

ATTACHMENT C



Please contact me if you have any questions. I can be reached via email or phone at 
tshoemaker@eomworx.com or (912) 445-0050 ext. 4400.

Sincerely,

Trevor Shoemaker 
Project Manager
EOM

CC: Nicole Dixon; Director of Planning & Development – City of Pooler
Brian Crooks; City Planner - City of Pooler
Liberto Chacon, PE; Sr. Vice President – EOM

mailto:tshoemaker@eomworx.com


Native Development Group - Westside Commerce Center

On March 21, 2022, a rezoning request was approved by the City of Pooler Council for four (4) 
adjoining parcels within Westside Business Park to I-1, Industrial, light district.  A condition was 
placed on the rezoning that the applicant (Native Development Group) be required to obtain a 
permit from an outside agency (GDOT) to install a traffic signal on US Hwy 80 (SR26) at Westside 
Boulevard.  The condition stated that a Certificate of Occupancy would not be issued for the 
proposed building until said signal was installed and operational.

A warrant study was submitted to GDOT District 5 in July 2021.  Through multiple iterations, the 
warrant study was passed on to the Traffic Office in Atlanta for approval in February 2022.  Again, 
through multiple iterations and assistance from the City of Pooler, the warrant was approved by 
GDOT on March 21, 2022.  At this point design of the signal improvements commenced.

On February 27, 2023, design plans for the signal were submitted to District 5.  After multiple 
iterations of review and revisions, District 5 approval was obtained. The District 5 GDOT 
representatives then forwarded the plans to the Atlanta Transportation Management Center (TMC) 
on September 15, 2023 for their review and approval.  The TMC provided no response on these 
plans for weeks/months, and finally responding by questioning in mid-December, 2023 the already 
approved warrant assessment.  Most recently, we have been notified in January, 2024 that the 
Department does intend to issue the permit for the signal.  However, as of this date, February 12, 
2024 no notification has been received as to the formal acceptance of the signal which has delayed 
response to final GDOT comments, final design, bidding and awarding of the signal cost and 
infrastructure.

The developer has diligently pursued the permits from GDOT.  At this time, even if the permit 
was issued today, the signal could not be installed in time for the final inspection and CO issuance 
for the building which is tracking for May 31, 2024.   The developer instead offers to place a bond 
in the amount of $900,000 (current project cost estimate-support available upon request) with the 
City of Pooler for up to two years as support for its commitment to complete the signal and required 
infrastructure (road work etc.).  In the meantime, traffic from the project will be able to use the 
access provided by Columbia Drive and its new signal improvements as well as the existing right 
in right out (for autos only) on Highway 80 until such signal is installed.


















	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 5, 2024
	6A_City Council Meeting_2024-02-05_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February
	6B_City Council Meeting_2024-02-05_Executive Session Affidavit_executed

	C. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for 
	6C_Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for the Love & Soul Family Festival on June 1, 2

	D. Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for 
	6D_Special Event Permit Application (No Alcohol) for the 5K Friendship Fun Run on July 27, 2024 

	E. Department Reports
	1. Public Works
	6E1_PW

	2. Finance
	Monthly Report

	3. Fire Department
	6E3_Fire

	4. Police Department
	Council report January 2024

	5. Recreation
	feb20

	6. Planning & Zoning, Building
	6E6_P&D



	VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2024-02.A – Council Meeting Start Time 
	7A_Ordinance O2024-02.A – Council Meeting Start Time (First Reading)

	B. Ordinance O2024-02.B – Zoning Text Amendment to Ap
	7B_Ordinance O2024-02.B_Multi-Use Development_draft

	C. Resolution R2024-02.A – Amendment to the 2024 Sche
	7C1_Resolution R2024-02.A – Amendment to the 2024 Schedule of Fees
	7C2_2024.01.31 Schedule of Fees - 2024 proposed fees


	VIII. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Zoning Map Amendment for Property on Clear Lake Wa
	8A_Zoning Map Amendment for Property on Clear Lake Way from C-2 to R-3(C)

	B. Zoning Map Amendment for the Warnell Tract at Dem
	8B_Zoning Map Amendment for the Warnell Tract at Demott Drive from PUD to I-2 (Public Hearing,

	C. Conditional Use Request for a Place of Worship at 
	8C_Conditional Use Request for a Place of Worship at 1324 South Rogers St

	D. Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse Expansion 
	8D_Conditional Use Request for a Warehouse Expansion at 125 Coleman Boulevard (Public Hearing,

	E. Conditional Use Request for an Auto Body Repair at
	8E_Conditional Use Request for an Auto Body Repair at 800 Clear Lake Way

	F. Site Plan for 212 East Highway 80
	8F_Site Plan for 212 East Highway 80

	G. Site Plan for Wawa at 1480 Pooler Parkway
	8G_Site Plan for Wawa at 1480 Pooler Parkway

	H. Site Plan for 780 Pooler Parkway
	8H_Site Plan for 780 Pooler Parkway

	I. Site Plan for TTRES at 2300 Pooler Parkway
	8I_Site Plan for TTRES at 2300 Pooler Parkway

	J. Westside Commerce Center/Native Development Group 
	8J_Westside Commerce CenterNative Development Group Request for Consideration

	K. Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Asian River/Miy
	8K_Disciplinary Hearing for Owner of Asian RiverMiyah Buffet


	IX. PUBLIC COMMENT
	X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	XI. ADJOURNMENT



